
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

10.00 am

FRIDAY
15 APRIL 2016

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

MEETING PAPERS





AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 15 April 2016
VENUE: Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Apologies Andrea 
Griffiths

2.  Declarations of Interest Andrea 
Griffiths

3.  Minutes (Pages 1 - 14)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 22/1/16. Andrea 

Griffiths

4.  Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund (Pages 15 
- 52)

Elizabeth Cave

5.  Grant Thornton Annual Progress Report (Pages 53 - 68) Terry Tobin

6.  Grant Thornton Auditing Standards (Pages 69 - 94) Terry Tobin

7.  Freedom of Information Annual Report (Pages 95 - 104) Jenny 
Grodzicka

8.  Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 (Pages 105 - 158) Theresa 
Mortimer

9.  Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2015/16 (Pages 159 - 
186)

Theresa 
Mortimer

10.  Reports from Internal Audit on Limited Assurance Reports 
(Pages 187 - 200)
To receive limited assurance reports on:

- Adult Services (Deaths & Discharges) 
- BSC/Payroll - Local Government Pension Scheme

Theresa 
Mortimer



11.  Internal Audit Charter 2016- 18 (Pages 201 - 214) Theresa 
Mortimer

12.  Internal Audit Code of Ethics 2016 - 18 (Pages 215 - 222) Theresa 
Mortimer

13.  Exclusion of the Press and Public 
THAT in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for 
the business specified in agenda item 14 because it is likely that if 
members of the public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 and 7 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public

14.  Exempt Internal Audit Limited Assurance Reports (Pages 223 
- 226)

Theresa 
Mortimer

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Colin Guyton, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Tony Hicks, 
Cllr Barry Kirby, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Nigel Robbins, Cllr Mike Sztymiak, 
Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Roger Wilson

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held on Friday 22 
January 2016 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Colin Guyton
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Tony Hicks
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Nigel Robbins 
(Chairman)

Cllr Mike Sztymiak
Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Roger Wilson

Substitutes: Cllr Lesley Williams

Apologies: Jane Burns, Elizabeth Cave and Cllr Barry Kirby

1. MINUTES 

All matters arising had been dealt with and communicated to members of the 
Committee.  

Resolved

That the minutes of the Audit & Governance Committee meeting held on the 
25th September 2015 be approved and signed as a correct record by the 
Chairman.   

2. GRANT THORNTON ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 

Terry Tobin, Grant Thornton presented the report in detail.  The report summarised 
the findings from the 2014/15 audit, which was undertaken by Grant Thornton.  It 
included key messages arising from the audit of the council’s financial statements 
and the results of the work that had been undertaken to assess the Council’s 
arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources.  

It was noted that the fee charged for the audit was £130,680.  Members were 
reassured that the financial statements were brought to the attention of the relevant 
bodies and any views were shared with stakeholders.  Some members felt that the 
terminology used in the third bullet point, in the financial statement was misleading 
and suggested that it should be amended to “how to improve in the future”.  Terry 
accepted the comment and informed the committee that a “wash up” meeting took 
place at the end of the audit to deal with any issues that may have arisen during the 
course of the audit and highlight any future improvements that could be made.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

During the discussion it was noted that there may be a capacity issue for auditing 
firms to deal with the earlier closure of Local Authorities accounts given the new 
time lines.  Officers referred to the proposed change in Minimum Repayment Policy 
(MRP), during which it was explained that other authorities were also considering 
changes to their Minimum Repayment Policies.  Sharing knowledge and information 
with other organisations is regarded as good practice.  The council’s approach to 
MRP is supported by Grant Thornton. It was noted that Grant Thornton continue to 
share best practice methods with its clients.  

Earlier closure of accounts from 2017/18 was discussed.  It was explained that a 
small number of other councils already close their accounts early.  As a learning 
exercise officers had visited two authorities to observe their methods.  During the 
discussion it was noted that there was a need for a cultural change, which officers, 
members and all partners would need to embrace, in order for the accounts to be 
competed earlier.  It was inevitable that in order to speed up the year end process it 
would be necessary to use more estimates. 
 
Some members suggested that in order to conform to the new time line, Pension 
actuaries would need to provide their information earlier.  It was accepted that the 
various partners and providers of information would need to be on board to achieve 
the earlier closure.  This includes work on the interface between the schools and 
council systems.  The Director of Finance informed the committee that the finance 
team were sensibly preparing to achieve the new timeline by trialling an earlier 
timetable for the 2015/16 accounts.  

In response to a question, it was noted that Grant Thornton audit information was 
shared with the public accounts committee.  

Terry informed that the Grant Thornton report “Where Growth Happens’ was 
available online and link would be circulated in due course via email.  

RESOLVED

That the link to Grant Thornton publications be circulated via email. 

THAT the report be noted.

3. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE UPDATE REPORT 

Terry Tobin presented the report, which detailed the progress Grant Thornton had 
made in delivering their responsibilities as the external auditors.  It was noted that 
Grant Thornton had devised the plan in association with the Authority.  Members 
were informed that accounting, audit and emerging issues would be flagged up as 
part of the regular report.  Members were informed that internal and external 
auditors met on a regular basis to discuss any issues that may arise.  

The committee was further reminded that from 2017/18 the new date for approving 
the statement of accounts would be the 31st July (2018), in the interim the date for 
approval by the committee remained as the 30th September of each year. Officers 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

reiterated that nationally there was some concern over the peak of resources, given 
the new deadlines for local authorities would clash with those for health, this 
situation would continue to be closely monitored.  

Members reiterated their request to have the accounts earlier this year, to allow 
more time to review the accounts in advance of the September committee meeting.   
Officers explained that bringing the closure of accounts forward for 2015/16 would 
improve the situation, and that the Director of Strategic Finance would ensure, 
where possible, that the accounts and supporting narrative would be produced 
earlier in the process to allow members to have sufficient time to comment.  

Terry informed the committee that earlier audit testing was already taking place, to 
assist Grant Thornton and the Authority during the main part of the audit. It was 
suggested that in the future perhaps a section on value for money, fraud and 
decision making would be useful in the document to aid the discussion. 
 
The committee referred to the Audit Committee Effectiveness Review section of the 
report, many members felt that a presentation on this area would be most beneficial 
to the committee.  Members requested a shared audit effectiveness training 
session, it was agreed that this would be arranged and the invitation could be 
extended to the districts.  Members were informed that copies of Grant Thornton 
publications could be accessed via www.grant.thornton.co.uk/en/insights 

In response to a question relating to Governance it was noted that Internal Audit 
focused on risk management, as it was a key area of governance. Members were 
informed that Internal Audit also monitored the constitution and if any major 
amendments were made the Chief Internal Auditor would focus the appropriate 
audit resources to ensure compliance.  

Members noted that any amendments to the constitution, which related to the Audit 
& Governance Committee, would be discussed with this committee.  It was noted 
that the Monitoring Officer was a lead officer on this committee and the constitution 
committee and undoubtedly if she thought there were any issues, they would be 
raised accordingly.  The Chairman requested that this issue was clarified with the 
Monitoring Officer.  

The issue of devolution and the possibility of two constitutional arrangements were 
raised, members were advised that this was an issue for the Constitution 
Committee.  However, the Monitoring Officer would be asked to clarify the potential 
issue.  In addition, members requested that the Monitoring Officer clarify what was 
meant by ‘Governance’ and what the Audit & Governance Committee’s 
responsibilities were.  Members were advised that the role and responsibilities of 
the committee were defined within the constitution.  

RESOLVED

That the Monitoring Officer be asked to clarify the position regarding the 
constitutional arrangements, in terms of devolution and relating to the Audit 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

& Governance committee.  In addition, what was meant by the term 
‘Governance’ and the committee’s responsibilities.  

That a shared audit effectiveness training session in conjunction with Grant 
Thornton be arranged and the invitation be extended to the districts.  

That the report be noted.

4. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of Financial management presented the proposed Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2016/17, which met the CIPFA Code of Practice, and 
governed how the Authority undertook Treasury Management activities.

It was noted that the strategy will be approved by full Council as part of the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and was being submitted to the Audit and 
Governance Committee in accordance with its terms of reference to regularly 
monitor the Council’s Treasury Management policy and practices.

Members were informed that it was a very detailed and important document in the 
context that the Council regularly had in excess of £300 million of balances 
invested, with external Capital borrowing forecasted to be just under £300 million at 
the end of 2015/16.

It was noted that the Audit & Governance committee members had undertaken in 
depth Treasury Management training session, prior to the formal meeting.  During 
the discussion the key changes to the strategy were summarised.  

The committee were referred to the Approved Investment Counterparties, as shown 
in section 8.4, table 2. Members were informed that approved Counterparties had 
been split to detail secured and unsecured deposit limits.  In addition, limits on 
unsecured investments had been lowered to reflect the additional risk this category 
carried. 

A new category had been added with a limit of £30 million in total for loans to 
corporates. This was to allow for secured investments in corporate bonds, subject 
to advice from Arlingclose.  Also the lowest risk category approved for use had 
been raised from BBB- to BBB to reflect the additional risks following the bail in 
legislation.  

Officers explained that the investment limit had been slightly increased for balances 
over 364 days to allow flexibility in the use of longer dated instruments, from £100 
million to £120 million in 2016/17. The limit with foreign counterparties had 
increased to £30 million per country to allow more flexibility in the use of secured 
investments.   

The committee noted that of all the proposed changes, the most significant was the 
Minimum Repayment Policy (MRP) policy. It was noted that the MRP had been 
amended to allow for a lower contribution, whilst still maintaining a prudent 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

provision.  Members were informed that changes had been discussed with and 
were supported by Arlingclose, the Authority’s Treasury Management advisors.  
The proposed approach was discussed in detail with the External Auditors who told 
officers they had no objections to the proposed approach.    
It was noted that under the new proposal if there was no further borrowing going 
forward debt would be repaid in 62 years.  However, under the current methodology 
it was never repaid because it was 4% on a reducing balance.  Members noted that 
at the end of 62 years the CFR would be zero under this proposal but would still be 
£35 million under the current methodology.

The committee was pleased to note that the strategy enabled the Authority to 
reduce the capital financing budget from £11.4 million to £7.4 million.  The £4 
million saving was indicated in the draft budget proposals that were submitted to the 
December 2015 Cabinet meeting, which deemed it to be a logical approach.

In response to a question, it was noted that it was not value for money to repay 
external debt early under current economic conditions, as early repayment would 
result in substantial premium costs, making the repayment financially unviable.  
Officers were pleased to report that all internal debt would be redeemed by the end 
of this financial year.  The current policy was deemed to be a very prudent policy 
and members would closely monitor the policy going forward.  

Officers added that the covering Treasury Management Strategy report would refer 
to the Audit & Governance Committee members undertaking Treasury 
Management training and that the Committee accepted the proposed change to 
MRP, if agreed.  Members welcomed this approach.  

Members continued to have a vigorous discussion relating to the various reserves.  
In response to a question, the committee noted that the two largest ear marked 
reserves were for waste and broadband.  The Director of Finance informed the 
committee that she felt the forecast level of reserves was reasonable.  

Some members disagreed and felt that issue of reserves should be for council to 
decide, the Director of Finance informed members that she was governed by 
delegated powers and made those decisions accordingly, however she understood 
member’s views.    

Officers explained that they undertook analysis of core cash and cash flow 
forecasting on a daily basis, and adequate levels of cash were always instantly 
accessible to the Authority.  

In response to a question it was confirmed that general reserves remained at 
around 4.74% of the council’s revenue budget, which equated to £19 million.  Grant 
Thornton also confirmed they were satisfied with this level of general reserve, given 
the level of risk the council faces with national funding reductions and the number of 
transformation projects.  Many members were supportive, feeling that the level was 
a pragmatic approach, given the risks faced by the council.  In addition, it was noted 
that ear marked reserves were regularly reviewed.  

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Members were informed that many of the Council’s services were statutory and on 
balance the level of general reserves were reasonable, and the Director of Finance 
did not currently consider it prudent to reduce the level of general reserves.  In 
summary, the majority of members, with the exception of one dissenting voice, 
supported the existing level of general reserves.  

The Chief Internal Auditor, was also the County Council’s Head of Insurance 
Services, informed the committee that an actuarial review of the Insurance fund 
took place approximately every two years.  This review recommends the levels of 
insurance reserves held by the Council, in order to safeguard the Council against 
any past or future financial liabilities.  

Resolved 

That committee accepted the Treasury Management Strategy

5. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS UPDATE 

John Kear, Financial Accounting Manager presented the report.  Some discussion 
arose concerning the earlier timetable for closing accounts, in accordance with the 
Account and Audit Regulations, and the external auditing arrangements.  Officers 
indicated that initial discussions had already taken place with external auditors to 
agree a revised audit timetable and members supported the approach that this 
should be progressed sooner rather than later.  

Officers explained that there was a fundamental change in the approach regarding 
the timing of accounts and the committee meeting schedule to approve the 
accounts, including the requirement for Committee to approve the 2017/18 by the 
end of July 2018. It was confirmed that given the earlier timetable being trialled for 
the production of the 2015/16 accounts, it was anticipated that this would give 
officers the opportunity to produce a shorter, more focused summary set of 
accounts and narrative for members to review at the September committee 
meeting.  Members reiterated the benefits of having headline messages for the 
benefit of all.  However, officers also confirmed that the committee in September 
would still be asked to approve the full set of accounts, as required by the statute.  

The consensus was that it was necessary to bring about cultural change to the 
organisation.  The reality was that a fundamental review would be required to 
achieve those earlier target dates.  

During the debate, members referred to the inclusion of the Highways as an asset 
within the accounts.  Officers explained that extensive preparatory work had been 
undertaken over the last two years by both Finance and Highways staff and the 
Council is well placed to meet the statutory requirement.  In principle a dry-run audit 
of the asset has been agreed Grant Thornton in autumn 2016.  It was recognised 
that colleagues in the Highways department have a great deal of knowledge and 
expertise in the area, as the Council already takes an asset driven approach to 
highways, and were supporting finance in their preparation for the change.  Grant 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Thornton added that GCC was currently ahead in assessing its Highways Asset 
and they were impressed by the level of work which had already been undertaken.  

In response to a question, it was noted that CIPFA was accountable for the decision 
to include highways on the balance sheet.  Members wished to know the initial cost 
of the exercise, officers explained that they had not yet costed the project, in terms 
of finance, highways time, etc.  It was noted that many Authorities had conveyed 
their feelings to CIPFA on this issue.    

Resolved

That the committee noted the report.  

6. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT - GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2014/15 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) presented the report.  The report 
provided assurance to the Audit and Governance Committee that the improvement 
areas and associated actions identified as part of the annual review of the 
governance arrangements operating within GCC, had been/were being addressed.  
It was recommended that the Committee reviewed and considered the actions 
taken to address the governance improvement areas identified.

It was explained that the Council was required by the Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2015 to publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS), in accordance with 
‘proper practices’ in order to report publicly on the extent to which we comply with 
our own Local Code of Corporate Governance, including monitoring the 
effectiveness of our arrangements in year and on any planned changes to our 
governance arrangements in the coming year.

The Chief Internal Auditor explained that following the annual review, three key 
improvement areas had been identified to further enhance the governance 
arrangements.  These areas were highlighted within the AGS improvement plan 
and related to the requirement to have a detailed scheme of delegation for adults 
and public health, good governance in working with others (partnerships, alternative 
service delivery models, etc.) and the ICT control environment. 

In response to a question relating to the outcome of partner organisation audits, it 
was noted that the Council’s Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy has  been 
disseminated to the various partners, schools, nhs, etc.  In addition, it is a 
requirement of the Council’s Risk Management Strategy that joint partnership risk 
registers are maintained and that the risk management principles (including the 
consideration of fraud and irregularity risk, financial risk and supply chain risk) are 
also fully considered as part of any contractual arrangements.  

The CIA explained that risk management was one of the key elements of the 
contract management framework.  Members requested to see a copy of the 
contract management framework.  It was agreed the appropriate link would be 
circulated via email.     

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

In response to a question members were informed that as part of the risk based 
internal audit planning process, where it is identified that the Council has been 
designated as the accountable body, full consideration was given to including an 
audit within the plan of reviewing the effectiveness of the Governance 
arrangements in operation, e.g. The Local Enterprise Partnership.  It was noted that 
audit plan was dynamic and would respond to in year demand and risk.  The 
Committee was assured that every audit undertaken was reported back to the 
committee.  

In response to a question, it was noted the accountable body in association with the 
Authority was predominantly the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  
Consequently, the authority worked collaboratively with the LEP to build sound 
processes.  The committee requested a list of accountable bodies, in terms of audit 
work, previous and planned.  

The report provided assurance to the Committee that the improvement areas and 
associated actions identified as part of the annual review of governance 
arrangements operating within GCC, had been/were being addressed.

Officers explained the key risk was that failure to deliver an effective corporate 
governance framework would prevent the Council in directing and controlling its 
resources effectively and efficiently.  The AGS enabled the Council’s objectives to 
be met.

Resolved 

Members requested to see a copy of the contract management framework.  It 
was agreed the appropriate link would be circulated via email.    

The committee requested a list of accountable bodies, in terms of audit work, 
previous and planned.  

That the report be noted.  

7. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT AND STRATEGY 2016/17 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) presented the report in detail.  The 
proposed Risk Management Policy Statement and Strategy, reflected national good 
practice/standards and aligned with the Council’s operating model.  

The CIA explained nationally unprecedented challenges continued for those tasked 
with delivering public services.  It was evident that budgetary pressures would have 
an effect on all major services, at the same time demographic changes and an 
increased demand for services would compound these pressures.  There was an 
increasing focus on alternative service delivery models which would see more 
public services being delivered by, or in partnership with other public sector bodies, 
charities, communities or private sector organisations (e.g. Devolution). 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

The continuing shift in the structure of service provision would create real 
challenges and an increasingly complex matrix of risks and opportunities.

In terms of the local context and taking the national factors into consideration, it was 
now deemed an appropriate time to refresh and reaffirm the Risk Management 
Policy Statement and Strategy, to ensure that the Council’s risk and assurance 
framework continued to reflect national good practice and standards. This would 
enable the Council to effectively manage the potential opportunities and threats, 
thus improving service delivery to the local communities.

The report set out the proposed updated Risk Management Policy Statement and 
Strategy for 2016 – 2017. The aim of the strategy was to support the challenges 
that the Council may face, allowing it to react dynamically to changing external 
circumstances by enabling the Council to handle risk effectively and deliver 
successful outcomes.

It was noted that there were only very minor changes which had been highlighted in 
within the strategy.  In particular, the reference to new Risk Management 
Standards; and reference to Directors to assist in the preparation of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement by providing an annual assurance statement for the 
internal control framework operating within their service area.    

A discussion took place relating to risk monitoring and reporting arrangements, it 
was reiterated that risk monitoring and reporting were integral to the corporate 
performance management and monitoring arrangements and was within the 
Overview Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) remit.  The Council’s strategic 
risks were reported on a quarterly basis to OSMC. 

It was noted that Internal Audit provided an opinion of the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements when undertaking individual audit assignments which 
provided the committee with reasonable assurance that risk was being managed 
effectively. 

The committee was asked to agree the Strategy, and once approved it would be 
disseminated to members and managers via the Communications Team, in order to 
reaffirm the risk management objectives.  

Resolved 

That the Strategy be approved and disseminated to members and managers 
via the Communications Team, to reaffirm GCCs risk management objectives.

8. JOINT WORKING AGREEMENT BETWEEN INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL AUDIT 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor presented the report in detail which 
summarised how internal and external audit work together. Terry Tobin, Grant 
Thornton added that the Internal Audit Team at GCC was very good and the service 
was a credit to the CIA.  

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

Resolved 

That the report be noted

9. INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY PROGRESS REPORT 

Theresa Mortimer, Chief Internal Auditor presented the report which informed 
members on the progress of the internal audit activity in relation to the 2015/2016 
Internal Audit Plan and provided a progress report on those audits undertaken 
during the period October – December 2015, including the opinions provided on risk 
and control. 

The committee welcomed the report which provided the relevant risk and control 
assurance opinions in relation to the audit activity during the above period.  It was 
highlighted that the opinions provided during this period showed an overall 
satisfactory and above rating of 75% on control and 96% on risk. Members’ 
attention was drawn to the fact that 25% of the opinions on control were limited. 
Officers explained that this maybe due to transformational change, whilst focusing 
audit activity on the key risks of the Council and as a result of specific requests from 
Directors. 

The CIA informed the committee that all 40 recommendations made by internal 
audit to improve the control environment during this period, had been accepted by 
management.  

Members’ attention was drawn to two limited assurance opinions provided on 
control.  Firstly, relating to the BSC Payroll/Pensions audit, this involved issues 
relating to the BSC incorrectly interpreting the new LGPS legislation, which resulted 
in incorrect pension contribution deductions.  It was explained that this was 
compounded by delays in developing and testing the CARE report prior to it being 
submitted to Pension’s Administration manager to enable the annual benefit 
statements to be sent out to members.  It was noted that this review was 
specifically commissioned by the Director of Finance due to issues brought to her 
attention. 

Secondly, the Adult Services Deaths and Discharges audit, which focused on 
issues around contractual management, monitoring arrangements and data 
inaccuracy/data inputting errors within the ERIC (Adult Social Care database.  This 
resulted in incorrect payments being made for the provision of Care and Support; 
delays in claw back of monies and under-recoveries made.  The committee was 
informed that the Council was potentially significantly under recovering unspent 
balances within Direct Payment accounts. Members requested to know how much 
had been recovered to date.  

The CIA reported that the recommendations made to improve the control 
environments, were all accepted by management and Internal Audit would monitor 
their implementation, however, it was recommended that the relevant senior 
management attended the next meeting of the Committee to provide an update on 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

the actions taken in relation to these two audit reviews and answer the specific 
questions raised by members.  The committee accepted this recommendation.  

RESOLVED 

That in relation to the Adult Services Deaths And Discharges Audit, members 
requested to know how much unspent balances within Direct Payment 
accounts had been recovered to date.  

That the committee would receive limited assurance progress reports from 
management relating to the Adult Services (Deaths and Discharges) and the 
Local Government Pension Scheme at the April committee meeting.

That the committee accepted the report.  

10. INTERNAL AUDIT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORTS 

Gloucester Music Service
Theresa Mortimer, CIA presented the report.  During the discussion, members 
requested reassurance that the work was being done.  The CIA confirmed that a 
follow up audit would be undertaken during 2016/17 to provide the assurance that 
all agreed actions had been implemented.  

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

Provision of Care and Support – Extra Care Housing Schemes
Mark Branton, Assistant Director – Adult Social Care presented the report in detail.  

In response to a question, members were informed that the replacement of ERIC 
had been an ongoing discussion for a number of years.  It was suggested that 
perhaps a system should be built to accommodate the requirements of providers.  
Some members felt the service should consider purchasing a new system or 
develop the current system.  

It was noted that Tina Reid (Operations Lead: Adult Social Care and Business 
Development) was actively involved in the process, as staff training was a key to 
the inputting of data.  The committee noted that ERIC was a client record system 
and not a management information system, which added to the issues. 

In response to a question, it was noted that the implementation of phase two of the 
Care Act had been postponed until 2022. 

Resolved

That the report be noted

11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

THAT in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the business specified in minute 12 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the information 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

12. EXEMPT INTERNAL AUDIT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORT 

The committee received and discussed the report in detail. 

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 1.25 pm

Page 12



Audit & Governance Committee – 22nd January 2016

Topic Action Responsibility Progress
1 GRANT THORNTON 

ANNUAL AUDIT 
LETTER

The link to the Grant Thornton reports available 
online be circulated via email

Andrea Griffiths Completed

216. GRANT THORNTON 
AUDIT & 
GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE UPDATE 
REPORT

That the Monitoring Officer be asked to clarify 
the position regarding the constitutional 
arrangements, in terms of devolution and 
relating to the Audit & Governance committee.  

In addition, what was meant by the term 
‘Governance’ and the committee’s 
responsibilities.  

That a shared audit effectiveness training 
session in conjunction with Grant Thornton be 
arranged and the invitation be extended to the 
districts.  

Jane Burns 

Jane Burns 

Terry Tobin / 
Theresa Mortimer 

Monitoring Officer will give a verbal 
update at the April committee 
meeting.  

The committee’s terms of reference 
be circulated for information.  

In progress, date to be advised.  

3 ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT – 
GOVERNANCE 
ISSUES 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
2014/15 

1.

Members requested to see a copy of the 
contract management framework.  It was agreed 
the appropriate link would be circulated via 
email.    

The committee requested a list of accountable 
bodies, in terms of audit work, previous and 
planned.  

Theresa Mortimer 

Theresa Mortimer / 
Mark Spilsbury 

Completed

Audits undertaken during 15/16
Local Enterprise Partnership – 
Governance arrangements; and
Local Enterprise Partnership – 
Growing Places 

4 RISK MANAGEMENT 
POLICY STATEMENT 
AND STRATEGY 2015-
2016

That the Strategy be approved and 
disseminated to members and managers via the 
Communications Team, to reaffirm GCCs risk 
management objectives.

Theresa Mortimer Approved at Council 17th February 
2016.  Completed.  

P
age 13



5 INTERNAL AUDIT 
ACTIVITY PROGRESS 
REPORT 2015/2016

That in relation to the Adult Services Deaths 
And Discharges Audit, members requested to 
know how much unspent balances within Direct 
Payment accounts had been recovered to date.
  

That the committee would receive limited 
assurance progress reports from management 
relating to the Adult Services (Deaths and 
Discharges) and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme at the April committee meeting.

Theresa Mortimer

Theresa Mortimer  

Completed “To date, in respect of 
Direct Payment accounts held by 
the Older People and Physical 
Disabilities client group, the newly 
formed Direct Payments Team 
have recovered, over a period of 21 
weeks £116, 644 from 46 Service 
Users”.

Scheduled for the April Committee 
meeting

P
age 14



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

. 

The Audit Plan 

for Gloucestershire Pension Fund 

 

Year ending 31 March 2016 

30 March 2016 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

T 0117 305 7885 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

Terry Tobin 

Senior Manager 

T 0121 232 5276 

E  terry.p.tobin@uk.gt.com 

Mike Oldreive 

In Charge 
T +44 (0)117 305 7857  

E  mike.a.oldreive@uk.gt.com  

1 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

the Pension Fund or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared 

solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.  

 

2 

P
age 16



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2015/16 3 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Gloucestershire Pension Fund, the Audit and Governance Committee), an 

overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Pension Fund and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit 

Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015.  

Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

- give an opinion on the Fund's financial statements 

- give an opinion on the Pension Fund Annual Report. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Hartwell House 

55-61 Victoria Street 

Bristol 

T +44 (0) 117 305 7600 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

16 March 2016 

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2016 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund 

Shire Hall 

Westgate Street 

Gloucester 

GL1 2TG  

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 17



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business  

Developments and other requirements relevant to the audit  

Our audit approach  

Significant risks identified  

Other risks identified  

Key dates  

Fees and independence  

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance  

  

4 

P
age 18



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Understanding your business 

Our response 

• We will continue to discuss with 

officers  their plans for asset 

pooling and the implications that 

this will have on both the 

investment policy and governance 

arrangements of the fund. 

• Through our regular liaison with 

officers we will consider the impact 

of any planned large scale TUPE 

transfers of staff  and the effect on 

the fund. 

 

Guidance note 

Consider the topic heading 

suggested on this slide, and 

select those which are relevant 

to provide more detailed 

comment/analysis. 
In planning our audit we need to understand the challenges and opportunities the Pension Fund is facing.  We set out a summary of our understanding below. 

Challenges/opportunities 

1. Pooling of Investments 

• As part of the summer budget 

2015  the government has invited  

LGPS administering authorities to 

submit proposals for investing 

their assets through pools of at 

least £25 billion, with the intention 

of reducing investment 

management costs and 

potentially improving returns. 

• The government anticipates that 

this will improve both capacity and 

capability to invest in large scale 

infrastructure projects. 

• Initial proposals  are to be 

submitted to DCLG by mid 

February, with final plans agreed 

by 15 July 2016. 

4.  Local Government Outsourcing 

• As many Councils  look to 

outsourcing and the set up of 

external companies as a more cost 

effective way to provide services, 

the impact on the LGPS fund 

needs to be considered. 

• Funds need to carefully consider 

requests for admission to the 

scheme and where possible 

mitigate any risks to the fund. 

• An increased number of admitted 

bodies may increase the risks for 

the fund in the event of those 

bodies failing.  it is also likely  to 

increase the administration costs of 

the scheme overall. 

3. Governance arrangements 

• Local pension boards  have 

been in place since April 2015, 

and were introduced to assist 

with compliance and effective 

governance and administration 

of the scheme. 

• There remains a continued focus 

on the affordability, cost and 

management of the scheme, and 

as such it remains critical that  

appropriate governance 

arrangements are in place for 

the fund. 

 

• We will continue our on-going 

dialogue with officers around 

their governance arrangements, 

particularly in light of their 

proposals for pooling 

investments. 

• We will continue to share 

emerging good practice with 

officers. 

2. Changes to the investment 

regulations 

• In November 2015 DCLG 

published draft proposals in 

relation to the investment 

regulations governing LGPS 

funds. 

• The proposals seek to remove 

some of the existing 

prescribed means of securing 

a diversified investment 

strategy and instead give 

funds greater responsibility to 

determine the balance of their 

investments and take account 

of risk. 

 

• We will discuss with officers 

their plans to respond to these 

changes and consider the 

impact on the fund's 

investment strategy and its risk 

management approach to 

investments.  

5. Earlier closedown of accounts 

 The Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 require funds to 

bring forward the approval  of draft 

accounts and the audit of financial 

statements to 31 May and 31 July 

respectively by the 2017/18 

financial year. 

  

 

 We will work with you to identify 

areas of your accounts production 

where you can learn from good 

practice in others.  

 We aim to complete all substantive 

work in our audit of your financial 

statements by 31 July 2016 as a 

'dry run' . 

5 

P
age 19



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Developments and other requirements relevant to your audit 

In planning our audit we also consider the impact of key developments in the sector and take account of national audit requirements as set out in the Code of Audit Practice 

and associated guidance. 

 

Guidance note 

"One Firm" - use to bring ideas, 

issues or opportunities to our 

clients.  Consult with other 

service lines or sector teams for 

relevant matters.  This is 

intended to identify issues 

relevant for audit attention and  

the prime focus on matters 

relevant to the current financial 

period.  See AFR DL1000 for 

crib sheets to assist you with 

your discussions with your 

clients on the areas that are of 

relevance to them 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

Developments and other requirements 

1. Financial Pressures 

• Pension funds are increasingly 

disinvesting from investment assets to 

fund cash flow demands on benefit and 

leaver payments that are not covered by 

contributions and investment income. 

• Pension fund investment strategies 

need to be able to respond to these 

demands as well as the changing nature 

of the investment markets  

 

4. Accounting for Fund management costs 

• There  continues to be a spotlight on the 

costs of managing  the LGPS, and in 

particular investment management costs. 

• Last year CIPFA produced guidance aimed at 

improving the transparency of management 

cost data and suggested that funds should 

include in the notes to the accounts a 

breakdown of management costs across the 

areas of investment management expenses, 

administration expenses and oversight and 

governance costs. 

• This guidance is currently being updated. 

 

Our response 

 We will monitor any changes to the 

Pension Fund investment strategy 

through our regular meetings with 

management. 

 We will consider the impact of changes 

on the nature of investments held by the 

Pension Fund and adjust our testing 

strategy as appropriate. 

 

 We will ensure that the Pension Fund 

financial statements comply with the 

requirements of the Code through our 

substantive testing. 

2. Financial Reporting 

• There are no significant changes to 

the Pension Fund financial reporting 

framework as set out in the CIPFA 

Code of Practice for Local Authority 

Accounting (the Code) for the year 

ending 31 March 2016, however the 

Pension Fund needs to ensure on 

going compliance with the Code. 

 

 

 

• We will continue to discuss with officers  their 

plans for increasing  the level of transparency 

associated with the costs of managing the 

fund. 

3. LGPS 2014 

• Funds have implemented the requirements of 

LGPS 2014 and moved to a career average 

scheme. 

• This will continue to increase  the complexity 

of the benefit calculations and the 

arrangements needed to ensure the correct 

payment of contributions. 

• In addition, this places greater emphasis on 

the employer providing detailed information 

to the scheme  administrator, while also 

requiring the scheme to have enhanced 

information systems In place to maintain and 

report on this data. 

• We will continue to review the arrangements 

that the fund has in place for the quality of its' 

membership data. 

6 

P
age 20



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Devise audit strategy 

(planned control reliance?) 

Our audit approach 

Global audit technology 
Ensures compliance with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 

Creates and tailors  

audit programs 

Stores audit 

evidence 

Documents processes  

and controls 

Understanding 

the environment 

and the entity 

Understanding 

management’s 

focus 

Understanding 

the business 

Evaluating the 

year’s results 

Inherent  

risks 

Significant  

risks 

Other risks 

Material 

balances 

Yes No 

 Test controls 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

 Tests of detail 

 Tests of detail 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

Financial statements 

Conclude and report 

General audit procedures 

IDEA 

Extract 

your data 

Report output 

to teams 

Analyse data 

using relevant 

parameters 

Develop audit plan to 

obtain reasonable 

assurance that the 

Financial Statements 

as a whole are free 

from material  

misstatement and 

prepared in all 

material respects 

with the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting 

using our global 

methodology and 

audit software 

Note: 

a. An item would be considered 

material to the financial statements 

if, through its omission or non-

disclosure, the financial statements 

would no longer show a true and 

fair view. 

7 

P
age 21



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit. 

The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'.  

As is usual in pension schemes, we have determined materiality for the statements as a whole as a proportion of net assets for the fund. For purposes of planning the audit 

we have determined overall materiality to be £17,091k (being 1% of net assets). We will consider whether this level is appropriate during the course of the audit and will 

advise you if we revise this. 

In the previous year, we determined materiality to be £15,065k (being 1% of net assets).  

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with 

governance because we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly 

inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £855k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which 

misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. 

We have identified the following items where separate materiality levels are appropriate. 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Related party transactions Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

£100k 

Management  Expenses Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory 
requirement for them to be made. 

£100k 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

8 

P
age 22



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified 
"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA 315). In this section we outline the significant risks of material misstatement which we have identified.  There are two presumed significant risks which are 

applicable to all audits under auditing standards (International Standards on Auditing  - ISAs) which are listed below: 

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

The revenue cycle includes 

fraudulent transactions 

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 

may be misstated due to the improper recognition of 

revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at  Gloucestershire  Pension Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud 

arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because: 

 

 there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

 opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

 the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Gloucestershire 

County Council as the administering authority, mean that all forms of fraud are seen 

as unacceptable. 

 

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA 240 it is presumed that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Testing of journal entries 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

Further work planned: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Testing of journal entries 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

9 

P
age 23



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

Level 3 Investments – 

Valuation is incorrect 

Under ISA 315 significant  risks often  relate 

to significant non-routine transactions and 

judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by 

their very nature require a significant degree 

of judgement to reach an appropriate 

valuation at year end. 

Work completed to date: 

 We have updated our understanding and discussed the cycle with relevant personnel from the team  

 We have performed walkthrough tests of the controls identified in the cycle. 

Further work planned: 

 For a sample of investments, test valuations by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts at latest date 

for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager reports at that date.  Reconciliation of 

those values to the values at 31st March with reference to known movements in the intervening period. 

 Review the qualifications of the fund managers as experts to value the level 3 investments at year end and 

gain an understanding of how the valuation of these investments has been reached. 

 To review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance management has over the 

year end valuations provided for these types of investments. 

 Review the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

10 

P
age 24



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Other risks identified  
"The auditor should evaluate the design and determine the implementation of the entity's controls, including relevant control activities, over those risks for which, in the 

auditor's judgment, it is not possible or practicable to reduce the risks of material misstatement at the assertion level to an acceptably low level with audit evidence obtained 

only from substantive procedures"(ISA (UK & Ireland) 315).  

In this section we outline the other risks of material misstatement which we have identified as a result of our planning. 

Other risks Description Audit approach 

Investment Income Investment activity not valid. Investment income not 

accurate. (Accuracy) 

Work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances   

Investment values – Level 2 

investments 

Valuation is incorrect. (Valuation net) Work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances 

Contributions  Recorded contributions not correct (Occurrence) Work planned: 

 Controls testing over occurrence, completeness and accuracy of contributions 

 Rationalise contributions received with reference to changes in member body payrolls 

and numbers of contributing pensioners to ensure that any unexpected trends are 

satisfactorily explained. 

Benefits payable Benefits improperly computed/claims liability 

understated (Completeness, accuracy and occurrence) 

Work planned: 

 Controls testing over, completeness, accuracy and occurrence of benefit payments 

 Test a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to member files. 

 We will rationalise pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and 

increases applied in the year to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily 

explained. 

Member Data  Member data not correct. (Rights and Obligations) Work planned: 

 Controls testing over annual/monthly reconciliations and verifications with individual 

members 

 Sample testing of changes to member data made during the year to source 

documentation 

11 

P
age 25



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

The audit cycle 

Key dates 

Completion/ 

reporting  
Debrief 

Interim audit  

visit 

Final accounts 

Visit 

March  2016 June 2016 August/September 2016 September 2016 

Key phases of our audit 

2015-2016 

Date Activity 

February/March 2016 Planning 

March 2016 Interim  site visit 

23 March 2016 Presentation of audit plan to Audit and Governance Committee 

June 2016 Year end fieldwork 

August 2016 Audit findings clearance meeting with Strategic Finance Director 

September 2016 Report audit findings to those charged with governance (Audit and Governance 

Committee) 

September 2016 Sign financial statements opinion 

Planning 

February/March 2016 

12 

P
age 26



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund  |  2015/16 
 

DRAFT 

Fees 

£ 

Pension Fund Scale Fee                                   

Proposed IAS19 fee                                             

23,799 

1,190 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 24,989 

Fees and independence 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list. 

 The scope of the audit, and the Fund and its activities, have not 

changed significantly. 

 The Fund will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations. 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

 

Fees for other services 

Fees for other services reflect those agreed at the time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any 

changes will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and the Annual Audit Letter of the 

Administering Authority. 

 

Independence and ethics 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as 

auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services will be included in our Audit 

Findings Report at the conclusion of the audit. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of 

the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ 

None Nil 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

P
age 27



©  2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire Pension Fund |  2015/16 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, 

prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 

governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings Report will be issued prior to approval of the financial 

statements  and will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 

with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to those charged with governance. 

Respective responsibilities 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Administering Authority's independent external auditors 

by the Audit Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local 

public bodies in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a 

broad remit covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

fund's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

It is the responsibility of the fund to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the 

conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 

for.  We have considered how the fund is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

 

 

14 

P
age 28

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

15 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

The Audit Plan 

for Gloucestershire County Council 

 

Year ending 31 March 2016 

 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

T 0117 3057885 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

Terry Tobin 

Senior Manager 

T 0121 2325276 

E  terry.p.tobin@uk.gt.com 

Grace Hawkins 

Associate 

T 029 20347542 

E  grace.e.hawkiins@uk.gt.com 

1 

P
age 31



The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, 

which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a 

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in 

particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect 

the Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely 

for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written 

consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, 

or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not 

prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.  

 

2 

P
age 32



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 3 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Gloucestershire County Council, the Audit and Governance Committee), an 

overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit 

Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015.  

Our responsibilities under the Code are to: 

- give an opinion on the Council's financial statements 

- satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

Grant Thornton UK LLP  

Hartwell House,, 

55-61 Victoria Street, 

Bristol, 

BS1 6FT 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council for the year ending 31 March 2016 

Gloucestershire County Council 

Shire Hall 

Westgate Street 

Gloucester 

GL1 2TG 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 33



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business 5     

Developments and other requirements relevant to the audit 6 

Our audit approach 7 

Materiality 8 

Significant risks identified 9  

Other risks identified 11  

Value for Money 13 

Results of interim audit work 15 

Key dates 18 

Fees and independence 19 

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 20 

4 

P
age 34



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Understanding your business 

Our response 

• We will consider the Council's plans for 

addressing its financial position as part 

of our work to reach our VFM 

conclusion. 

 

• We will review the Council's 

treatment of entries relating to the 

Better Care Fund in its financial 

statements. 

In planning our audit we need to understand the challenges and opportunities the Council is facing.  We set out a summary of our understanding below. 

Challenges/opportunities 

1. Autumn Statement 2015 and 

financial health 

• The Chancellor  proposed that local 

government would have greater 

control over its finances, although this 

was accompanied by a 24% reduction 

in central government funding to local 

government over 5 years.  

• Despite the increased ownership, the 

financial health of the sector is likely to 

become increasingly challenging. 

4. Integration with health sector 

• Developments such as the 

increased scope of the Better Care 

Fund and transfer of responsibility 

for public health to local 

government are intended to 

increase integration between health 

and social care. 

3. Adult Social Care  

• The Council is committed to the 

modernisation and 

transformation of adult social 

care; an area which represents 

the largest single area of 

expenditure and the most 

significant change agenda faced 

by the council  

• As at December 2015 the 

forecast overspend on Adult 

Services was £4.1 million (2.9% 

of budget)  

 

• Through discussions with key 

officers and document review, 

we will monitor progress in this 

area  

2. Devolution  

• The Autumn Statement 

2015 also included 

proposals to devolve 

further powers to 

localities.  

• Gloucestershire submitted 

a devolution proposal  to 

the Secretary of State last 

Autumn. 

• We will discuss your plans 

as part of the local 

devolution agenda. 

• We are able to provide 

support and challenge to 

your plans based on our 

knowledge of devolution 

elsewhere in the country. 

5. Earlier closedown of accounts 

• The Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 require councils 

to bring forward the approval and 

audit of financial statements to  

31 May and 31 July respectively 

by the 2017/18 financial year. 

  

 

• We will work with you to identify 

areas of your accounts production 

where you can learn from good 

practice in other authorities.  

• We aim to complete all 

substantive work in our audit of 

your financial statements by 31 

July 2016 as a 'dry run'  

5 

P
age 35



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Developments and other requirements relevant to your audit 

In planning our audit we also consider the impact of key developments in the sector and take account of national audit requirements as set out in the Code of Audit Practice 

and associated guidance. 

Developments and other requirements 

1. Fair value accounting 

• A new accounting standard on fair value (IFRS 13) 

has been adopted and applies for the first time in 

2015/16. 

• This will have a particular impact on the valuation of 

surplus assets within property, plant and equipment 

which are now required to be valued at fair value in 

line with IFRS 13 rather than the existing use value of 

the asset. 

• Investment property assets are required to be carried 

at fair value as in previous years. 

• There are a number of additional disclosure 

requirements of IFRS 13. 

 

4. Joint arrangements 

 Councils are involved in a 

number of pooled budgets 

and alternative delivery 

models which they need to 

account for in their financial 

statements. 

Our response 

 We will keep the Council informed of changes to the 

financial  reporting requirements for 2015/16 through 

ongoing discussions and invitations to our technical 

update workshops. 

 We will discuss this with you at an early stage, 

including reviewing the basis of valuation of your 

surplus assets and investment property assets to 

ensure they are valued on the correct basis. 

 We will review your draft financial statements to 

ensure you have complied with the disclosure 

requirements of IFRS 13. 

 We will review your Narrative 

Statement to ensure it reflects the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of 

Practice when this is updated, and 

make recommendations for 

improvement. 

 We will review your arrangements for 

producing the AGS and consider 

whether it is consistent with our 

knowledge of the Council and the 

requirements of CIPFA guidance. 

2. Corporate governance 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015 require local authorities to 

produce a Narrative Statement, which 

reports on your financial performance 

and use of resources in the year, and 

replaces the explanatory foreword. 

 You are required to produce an 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

as part of your financial statements. 

 

 

 

 We will review your proposals 

for accounting for these 

arrangements against the 

requirements of the CIPFA 

Code of Practice. 

 

3. Highways Network Asset 

 Although you are not required to 

include Highways Network 

Assets until 2016/17, this will be 

a significant change to your 

financial statements and you will 

need to carry out valuation work 

this year. 

 We will discuss your plans for 

valuation of these assets at an 

early stage to gain an 

understanding of your approach 

and suggest areas for 

improvement. 

6 

P
age 36



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Devise audit strategy 

(planned control reliance?) 

Our audit approach 

Global audit technology 
Ensures compliance with International 

Standards on Auditing (ISAs) 

Creates and tailors  

audit programs 

Stores audit 

evidence 

Documents processes  

and controls 

Understanding 

the environment 

and the entity 

Understanding 

management’s 

focus 

Understanding 

the business 

Evaluating the 

year’s results 

Inherent  

risks 

Significant  

risks 

Other risks 

Material 

balances 

Yes No 

 Test controls 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

 Tests of detail 

 Tests of detail 

 Substantive 

analytical 

review 

Financial statements 

Conclude and report 

General audit procedures 

IDEA 

Extract 

your data 

Report output 

to teams 

Analyse data 

using relevant 

parameters 

Develop audit plan to 

obtain reasonable 

assurance that the 

Financial Statements 

as a whole are free 

from material  

misstatement and 

prepared in all 

material respects 

with the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting 

using our global 

methodology and 

audit software 

Note: 

a. An item would be considered 

material to the financial statements 

if, through its omission or non-

disclosure, the financial statements 

would no longer show a true and 

fair view. 

7 

P
age 37



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in 

planning and performing an audit. 

The standard states that 'misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements'.  

As is usual in public sector entities, we have determined materiality for the statements as a whole as a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For 

purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £15,000k (being  approximately 1.8% of gross revenue expenditure). We will consider whether 

this level is appropriate during the course of the audit and will advise you if we revise this. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with 

governance because we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly 

inconsequential, whether taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which 

misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £750k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which 

misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. 

We have identified the following items where separate materiality levels are appropriate. 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Disclosures of officers' remuneration, salary 

bandings, exit packages and members' allowances 

in notes to the statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

Within the right salary band 

Disclosure of auditors' remuneration in notes to the 

statements 

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made. 

£1k 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

8 

P
age 38



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified 
"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 

uncertainty" (ISA 315). In this section we outline the significant risks of material misstatement which we have identified.   

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

The revenue cycle includes 

fraudulent transactions 

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue 

may be misstated due to the improper recognition of 

revenue. 

 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition. 

 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at Gloucestershire County Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud 

arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:  

•there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition  

•opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited  

•the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Gloucestershire County 

Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable.  

  

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA 240 it is presumed that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Testing of journal entries (months 1-9) 

Further work planned: 

 Testing of journal entries (months 10-13) 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

Better Care Fund  In addition to the pooled budgets operating for many 

years with Gloucestershire CCG, from1 April 2015 the 

Council has entered into a s75 pooled budget 

arrangement in respect of the Better Care Fund. The 

accounting arrangements for this are complex and 

there is a risk of material misstatement. 

Work  planned: 

 We will obtain the s75 agreement governing the pooled budget and gain an 

understanding of the Council's assessment of where control lies and the expected 

accounting entries to be made. 

 We will document and review the operating effectiveness of the Council's controls 

over the BCF pooled budget. 

 We will test the accounting entries made in respect of the BCF pooled budget to 

check they are consistent with our understanding of the arrangement and that 

transactions and balances recorded are consistent with those recorded by 

counterparty organisations. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

9 

P
age 39



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Substantive audit procedures 

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment 

The Council revalues its assets on a rolling basis 

over a five year period. The Code requires that 

the Council ensures that  the carrying value at 

the balance sheet date is not materially different 

from current value. This represents a significant 

estimate by management in the financial 

statements. 

 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate. 

 Review of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used. 

 Review of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work 

 Discussions with valuer about the basis on which the valuation is carried out and challenge of the 

key assumptions. 

 Review and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent 

with our understanding. 

Further work planned: 

 Testing of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the Council's 

asset register 

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year 

and how management has satisfied themselves that these are not materially different to current 

value. 

Valuation of pension fund 

net liability 

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as 

reflected in its balance sheet represent 

significant estimates in the financial statements. 

Work planned: 

 We will identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is 

not materially misstated. We will also assess whether these controls were implemented as 

expected and whether they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement. 

 We will review the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out your 

pension fund valuation. We will gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried 

out. 

 We will undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made.  

 We will review the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

10 

P
age 40



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Other risks identified  
"The auditor should evaluate the design and determine the implementation of the entity's controls, including relevant control activities, over those risks for which, in the 

auditor's judgment, it is not possible or practicable to reduce the risks of material misstatement at the assertion level to an acceptably low level with audit evidence obtained 

only from substantive procedures"(ISA (UK & Ireland) 315).  

In this section we outline the other risks of material misstatement which we have identified as a result of our planning. 

Other risks Description Audit approach 

Operating expenses Creditors related to core activities understated or not recorded in 

the correct period.  

 Document our understanding of the controls operating the creditors system 

 Perform a walkthrough to confirm that the controls identified are in operation 

 Obtain an understanding of the accruals process 

 Substantive testing of operating expenses  

 Testing for unrecorded liabilities, including review of payments made after the 

year end 

 Review of creditor balances. 

 Review of the completeness of subsidiary system interfaces and control 

account reconciliations 

 Reviewing a reconciliation demonstrating that all material sources of 

expenditure have been captured and reconciled to total expenditure in the 

accounts and that internal transfers have been  correctly eliminated. 

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration and benefit obligations and expenses 

understated 

 Document our understanding of the controls operating the payroll system 

 Perform a walkthrough to confirm that the controls identified are in operation 

 Payroll Trend Analysis 

 Reconciliation of payroll system to the general ledger 

 Substantive testing of staff and officer payroll payments 

11 

P
age 41



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Other risks identified (continued)  

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous section but will include 

Other audit responsibilities 

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in the Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and consistent 

with our knowledge of the Council. 

• We will read the Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the statements on which we give an opinion and disclosures are in line with the 

requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

• We will carry out work on consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors. 

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about the accounts and consider and decide upon objections received in relation to the accounts  
 

• Investments (long term and short term) 

• Cash and cash equivalents 

• Borrowing and other liabilities (long term and short term) 

• Provisions 

• Usable and unusable reserves 

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes 

• Statement of cash flows and associated notes 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure 

• Taxation and non-specific grants 

 

 

• Schools balances and transactions 

• Segmental reporting note 

• Officers' remuneration note 

• Leases note 

• Related party transactions note 

• Capital expenditure and capital financing note 

• Financial instruments note 

12 

P
age 42



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Value for Money 

Background 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion.  

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 
2015. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required 
to give a conclusion on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in 
place.  

The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:  

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out below: 

Sub-criteria Detail 

Informed decision 

making 

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of good governance 

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information to support informed decision 

making and performance management 

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 

of internal control 

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment 

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 

delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions 

• Managing assets effectively to support the delivery of 

strategic priorities 

• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities. 

Working with 

partners and 

other third parties 

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 

priorities 

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities 

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities. 

13 

P
age 43



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Value for Money (continued) 

Risk assessment 

We completed an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's guidance. In our initial risk assessment, we considered: 

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial 
statements. 

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies, including Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission. 

• illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO. 

We have identified the following (overleaf) significant risks which we are required to communicate to you. Our definition of significant risks, based on the definition in 
the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, is:  

The Code defines ‘significant’ as follows: A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or 

the wider public. Significance has both qualitative and quantitative aspects. Note that classifying something as a risk at this stage does not mean that we are of the view that there 

is a particular business risk in that area – it may be that it is an area which falls within the criteria where we do not have sufficient information at present to reach a 

conclusion on the Council's arrangements, but that we will in due course be satisfied with the arrangements in place. 

We have set out below the risks we have identified, how they relate to the Code sub-criteria, and the work we propose to undertake to address these risks. 

 

 

 

 

14 

P
age 44



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Value for Money (continued) 

15 

We set out below the significant risks we  have identified as a result of our initial risk assessment and the work we propose to address these risks.. 

Significant risk Link to sub-criteria Work proposed to address the risk identified 

The Council entered into a  Deed of Variation and 

Restatement with Urbaser Balfour Beatty Ltd in 

respect of the Residual Waste contract originally 

signed on 22nd February 2013. This effectively brought 

the contract up to date following planning delays and 

enacts the changes arising out the Revised Project 

Plan process. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

informed decision making. 

We will review the Council's governance arrangements 

around making this important decision.  

The Council identified savings of £32.3m as part of the 

2016/17  budget setting,  A transformation reserve has 

been set aside  in case this is not fully delivered. 

Delivery of this level of savings will be challenging for 

the Council. Savings plans for 2017/18 are still being 

developed. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

ensuring it plans finances effectively to support its 

strategic functions, and it's arrangements for 

ensuring informed decision making. 

We will review the Council's arrangements for identifying 

and agreeing savings plans, and communicating key 

findings to the Council and key decision making 

committees. 

As at October 2015 the forecast overspend in 

Children's and Families is projected to be £2.36m after 

the application of £1.65m from the vulnerable 

children's reserve. There has been sustained pressure 

from children coming into care, which has principally 

affected the external placements and safeguarding 

budgets. There are high agency costs due to 

difficulties in attracting permanent social workers. 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

ensuring it plans finances effectively to support its 

strategic functions. 

We will review the Council's arrangements for managing 

the overspend, and the plans in place to ensure that this 

service is sustainable. 

The forecast overspend in Adults services is projected 

to be £3.9m after the drawdown of £1.2m  Adults 

earmarked reserve. Virtually all of this overspend is 

attributed to Older Peoples and Physical Disabilities 

where there is a £7.2m (12.1%) overspend. This area 

of expenditure continues to cause significant financial 

pressures on the overall budget 

This links to the Council's arrangements for 

ensuring it plans finances effectively to support its 

strategic functions 

We will review the Council's arrangements for managing 

the overspend, and the plans in place to ensure that this 

service is sustainable 

 

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report.  

P
age 45



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Results of  interim audit work 

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below: 

Work performed Conclusion 

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention.   

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key 

financial systems to date. We have not identified any significant 

weaknesses impacting on our responsibilities.   

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service 

provides an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Council and that internal audit work contributes to an effective 

internal control environment. Our review of internal audit work 

has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our audit 

approach.  

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including: 

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values 

• Commitment to competence 

• Participation by those charged with governance 

• Management's philosophy and operating style 

• Organisational structure 

• Assignment of authority and responsibility 

• Human resource policies and practices 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements  

 

16 

P
age 46



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Results of  interim audit work (continued) 

Work performed Conclusion 

Review of information technology 

controls 

Our information systems specialist will perform a high level review of 

the general IT control environment, as part of the overall review of 

the internal controls system. We will also perform a follow up of the 

issues that were raised last year.   

Our work is expected to be undertaken in March 2016, on 

agreement with officers.   

 

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council's controls 

operating in areas where we consider that  there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements.  

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your 

attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in 

accordance with our documented understanding.  

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach.  

17 

P
age 47



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

 

 

Work performed Conclusion 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council's journal entry policies and 
procedures as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy 
and have not identified any material weaknesses which are likely to 
adversely impact on the Council's control environment or financial 
statements. 
 

No issues have been identified that we wish to highlight for 

your attention.  

We will complete detailed testing on journal transactions during 

our year end audit visit. 

Early substantive testing We have undertaken some early testing on employee remuneration, 

income and operating expenditure covering months 1-9. 

  

No issues identified based on work undertaken to date. We will 

test items from the remaining three months of the year and 

post year end as part of our year end visit.  

Results of  interim audit work (continued) 

18 

P
age 48



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

The audit cycle 

Key dates 

Completion/ 

reporting  
Debrief 

Interim audit  

visit 

Final accounts 

Visit 

February – M arch 2016 June - July 2016 September 2016 September 2016 

Key phases of our audit 

2015-2016 

Date Activity 

January 2016 Planning 

February – March 2016 Interim site visit 

April 2016 Presentation of audit plan to Audit  and Governance Committee. 

June – July 2016 Year end fieldwork 

August 2016 Audit findings clearance meeting with Strategic Director of Finance 

September 2016 Report audit findings to Audit and Governance Committee 

September 2016 Sign financial statements opinion 

Planning 

January 2016 

19 

P
age 49



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for ANOTHER Council  |  2015/16 
 

Fees 

£ 

Council audit £98,010 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £98,010 

Fees and independence 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are 

supplied by the agreed dates and in accordance with the 

agreed upon information request list. 

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its 

activities, have not changed significantly. 

 The Council will make available management and 

accounting staff to help us locate information and to 

provide explanations. 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, 

supporting working papers and evidence agree to the 

accounts, and all audit queries are resolved promptly. 

 

Fees for other services 

Fees for other services reflect those agreed at the time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be 

reported in our Audit Findings Report and Annual Audit Letter 

 

Independence and ethics 

 

Ethical standards and International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260 require us to give you full and 

fair disclosure of matters relating to our independence. In this context, we disclose the following to 

you:  

• The firm is the advisor to Balfour Beatty who are now the Council’s PFI partners following 

financial close of the waste disposal contract in February 2013. We have considered whether the 

issue is a threat to our independence and have concluded it is not.  

 

We confirm that there are no other significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as 

auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Auditing 

Practices Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are independent and are able 

to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. 

Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services will be included in our Audit Findings 

Report at the conclusion of the audit. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the 

Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ 

Certification of Teachers' Pension return  £4,200 

Fire PFI £14,000 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

P
age 50



©  2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Gloucestershire County Council  |  2015/16 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs, 

prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 

governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings Report will be issued prior to approval of the financial 

statements  and will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 

with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council. 

Respective responsibilities 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Council's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

 

 

21 

P
age 51

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

22 

P
age 52



Audit and Governance Committee  

Gloucestershire County Council 

Progress Report and Update  

Year ended 31 March 2016 
March 2016 

Elizabeth Cave 

Director 

T 0117 305 7885 

E  liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com 

Terry Tobin 

Senior Manager 

T 0121 232 5276 

E  terry.p.tobin@uk.gt.com 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

2 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

P
age 54



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

3 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, 

where we have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications: 

• Innovation in public financial management (December 2015); www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-

in-public-financial-management/ 

• Knowing the Ropes – Audit Committee; Effectiveness Review (October 2015); 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/ 

• Making devolution work: A practical guide for local leaders (October 2015) 

www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/ 

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive 

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager. 

This paper provides the Audit  and Governance 

Committee with a report on progress in delivering our 

responsibilities as your external auditors.  

P
age 55

http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/innovation-in-public-financial-management/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/making-devolution-work/


Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

4 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at March 2016 

2015/16 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Fee Letter  
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2015/16' by the 

end of April 2015 

 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

The 2015/16 fee letter was issued in April 2015 

Accounts Audit Plan 
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2015-16 financial statements. 

 

March 

 

In progress  

 

Our audit plan has been drafted and is included as a separate agenda 

item for the Audit  and Governance Committee to consider. 

Interim accounts audit  
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included: 

• updated review of the Council's control environment 

• updated understanding of financial systems 

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems 

• early work on emerging accounting issues 

• early substantive testing 

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment. 

 

January - 

February and April 

 

 

In progress 

 

Our interim audit work is in progress. This includes early audit testing to 

support a more efficient final accounts audit. We are having routine 

meetings with the Finance Team to discuss emerging accounting 

issues and that the team is aware of the progress we are making. 

Final accounts audit 
Including: 

• audit of the 2015-16 financial statements 

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts 

• proposed Value for Money conclusion 

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2015/16   

 

June - July 

 

Not started  

 

We are planning to complete our audit fieldwork by the end of July 

2016 as part of the transition to the earlier closedown and audit cycle 

from 2018. We are working with the Finance Team to support 

improvements in accounts production efficiency and the project 

management of the audit visit. 

P
age 56



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

5 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Progress at March 2016 

2015/16 work Planned Date Complete? Comments 

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion 
The scope of our work has changed and is set out in the final 
guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. 
The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council 
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources". 

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant 
respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people". 

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 
conclusion overall are: 

• Informed decision making 

• Sustainable resource deployment 

• Working with partners and other third parties 

 

March - July 

 

In progress 

 
We have considered the potential significant risks for our VfM 
conclusion and these are referred to in the audit plan. 
 
We will carry out key document reviews and interviews to inform our 
conclusion. 
 
 

Other areas of work  
Meetings with  Members, Officers and others 

 

 

 

On-going 

 

We are continuing to hold regular meetings with key officers of the 

Council.   

We have run a Better Care Fund Seminar in our Taunton office which 

was attended by both the Council and the CCG 

Finance staff have attended a training session we held on final 

accounts technical issues. 

 

P
age 57



Local Government 
Accounting and other issues 
 

P
age 58



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

7 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

7 

Accounting for the Better Care Fund  

As the Government's service integration and devolution agenda's progress, the level of joint working between NHS bodies and 

councils, including the use of pooled budgets is increasing. One example of this is the Better Care Fund (BCF) which became 

operational on April 1 2015 with a baseline allocation to CCGs for 2015/16 of £3.46bn. 

 

In many areas, including the South West, the value of funds committed to pooled budgets is highly material so it is important that 

both CCGs and councils get the accounting right. Our sector intelligence indicated that practitioners across both the health and Local 

Government sector wanted further guidance on accounting for pooled budgets, including the BCF.  

 

Grant Thornton ran a free seminar on January 13th considering the accounting issues around the BCF and Pooled Budgets.  It was 

attended by 35 finance officers from councils and CCGs in the South West including the County Council. By bring representatives 

from both sectors together it was possible to facilitate a consistent approach to accounting. If the accounting is not consistent it could 

lead to material errors within accounts and also  between bodies which would create difficulties with the NHS agreement of balances 

exercise and whole of government accounts. 

The actual accounting approach is dependent on the detail of the local agreements and the operation of the funds. The seminar 

considered: 

relevant accounting standards  

the nature of controls and the impact on the accounting treatment 

accounts disclosure requirements; and  

the approach to auditing the funds 

 

The seminar ended with a session on action planning 

Local Authorities need 

to: 
• agree with the partner 

organisations the proposed 

accounting approach for each 

of the pools including those 

within the 'Better Care Fund'.    

• Ensure that the proposed 

approach has been agreed 

with the auditors of the 

partner organisations. 

 

P
age 59



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

8 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

8 

Local Authority Trading Companies 

On 11th February Grant Thornton hosted a free client seminar, in Taunton, looking at Local Authority Trading Companies (LATC). 

It was attended by 29  officers from councils in the South West.  

As councils look for different ways to reduce costs, improve efficiency and generate income some are setting up local authority trading 

companies. We predict that the number of these companies will continue to grow over the next five years. 

The seminar considered the themes set out in our recent report, 'Spreading their Wings', focusing on how to set up and build 

successful local authority trading companies.  

Attendees heard from Grant Thornton Local Government Advisory and Tax colleagues, with a focus on the complexities of  

Corporation tax, SLDT, VAT and Employment taxes when entering into such arrangements. 

 

Martin Farrow from Buckinghamshire Care Limited shared his experiences from the Buckinghamshire Care journey "A merger 

between sustainability and purpose". He set the scene – underfunded social care, government savings, rising demand, and ageing 

population, service cutbacks mean a lot fewer people receiving services. The solution? A seismic shift in commissioning. 

 

Hugh Lambourne from Bournemouth Borough Council explained his Council's approach to developing its commercial services 

"Building a successful LATC & Commercial Council". Offering an insight into why you might create an LATC or alternatively why 

you might choose not to trade through an LATC! 

 

The day ended with a panel session with Martin and Frank being joined by Sarah Longthorpe  - Bournemouth Borough Council, Giles 

Letheren – Delt shared Services limited and Frank Wilson – Ubico Limited. A lively set of questions were posed by delegates. 

 

Grant Thornton's next report on Joint Ventures will be available at the end of March 

 

 

P
age 60



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

9 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

9 

Auditor Appointment 

The Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) abolished the Audit Commission, paving the way for 

local authorities to appoint their own external (local) auditors. 

 

Principal authorities must have their local auditors appointed by 31 December 2017 in order for them to begin 

their engagement on 1 April 2018.   

 

 There are three options available to local public bodies for appointing an auditor. These are to: 

1. undertake an individual auditor procurement and appointment exercise; 

2. undertake a joint audit procurement and appointing exercise with other bodies, those in the same locality 

for example; or 

3. join a ‘sector led body’ arrangement where specified appointing person status has been achieved under the 

relevant Regulations 

The PSAA website provides further details: 

 

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors 

 

For options 1 and 2 the  legislation requires an auditor panel to be established.   

In December 2015 CIPFA published guidance that considers the various options available to principal and 

smaller authorities for setting up an auditor panel. 

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-

guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-

panels-pdf 

P
age 61

http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.psaa.co.uk/supporting-the-transition/procurement-and-appointment-of-auditors
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


Grant Thornton 
Publications P

age 62



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

11 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Reforging local government: Summary findings of  financial 
health checks and governance reviews 

The recent autumn statement represents the biggest 

change in local government finance in 35 years. The 

Chancellor announced that in 2019/20 councils will 

spend the same in cash terms as they do today and that 

"better financial management and further efficiency" will 

be required to achieve the projected 29% savings. Based 

on our latest review of  financial resilience at English 

local authorities, this presents a serious challenge to many 

councils that have already become lean.  

 

 

• the majority of councils will continue to weather the financial storm, 

but to do so will now require difficult decisions to be made about 

services 

 

• most councils project significant funding gaps over the next three to 

five years, but the lack of detailed plans to address these deficits in the 

medium-term represents a key risk 

 

• Whitehall needs to go further and faster in allowing localities to drive 

growth and public service reform including proper fiscal devolution 

that supports businesses and communities 

 

• local government needs a deeper understanding of their local partners 

to deliver the transformational changes that are needed and do more to 

break down silos 

 

• elected members have an increasingly important role in ensuring good 

governance is not just about compliance with regulations, but also 

about effective management of change and risk 

 

• councils need to improve the level of consultation with the public when 

prioritising services and make sure that their views help shape council 

development plans. 

Our report is available at  

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-

government/, or in hard copy from your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager. 

 

Our research suggests that: 

P
age 63

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/reforging-local-government/


Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

12 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

CFO Insights – driving performance improvement    

The tool provides a three-dimensional lens through which to 

understand council income and spend by category, the outcomes for 

that spend and the socio-economic context within which a council 

operates. This enables comparison against others, not only nationally, 

but in the context of their geographical and statistical neighbours. CFO 

Insights is an invaluable tool providing focused insight to develop, and 

the evidence to support, financial decisions.  

CFO insights is an online analysis tool that gives 

those aspiring to improve the financial position 

of  their local authority instant access to insight 

on the financial performance, socio- economy 

context and service outcomes of  every council in 

England, Scotland and Wales. 

. 

  

We are happy to organise a 

demonstration of the tool if 

you want to know more. 

P
age 64



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

13 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

Innovation in public financial 
management 

In December 2015 we issued a report, 

which drew on a survey of  almost 300 

practitioners worldwide, also includes 

insights from experts at the International 

Consortium on Governmental Financial 

Management (ICGFM) and the 

Massachusetts Institute of  Technology's 

Centre for Finance and Policy. 

 The report is the latest in a decade-long series jointly 

published by Grant Thornton and the ICGFM and it 

covers four major topics that, globally, will impact on the 

future of public financial management: 

Changing practices. Our research showed that the 

biggest issue ahead will be finding the political 

commitment to support more difficult innovations on 

the agenda – such as increasing public engagement.  

The right PPP formula. 90% of respondents felt that 

substantial investment in infrastructure was required to 

drive economic growth. In this age of austerity, most 

governments are also seeking ways to attract outside 

investment – with the majority using some form of 

public-private partnership (PPP). Many countries remain 

inexperienced with such arrangements and the results of 

their application have been mixed. There has been little 

improvement since our 2011 survey, which shows that it 

takes a long time to develop the requisite skills and 

experience to make PPPs work. 

Transparency with technology. Public financial 

managers are convinced of the importance of enhancing 

transparency and most are trying to be innovative in this 

area. However, most are using outdated digital tools. 

Fewer than half use social media to enhance openness. 

Even among the best, most transparency efforts are 

focussed on releasing data sets than data insights. 

The new normal. Public financial management remains 

weighed down by the effects of the global financial crisis, 

but respondents also focussed on important 

developments since 2008, such as the Eurozone 

problems and the collapse of commodity prices. This 

suggests that public financial management is having to 

come to terms with not just the lessons one major 

financial crisis, but with how governments can live with 

less over the long term. 

Our report, Innovation in public financial management, 

can be downloaded from our website: 

http://www.grantthornton.global/en/insights/articles/in

novation-in-public-financial-management/ 

Grant Thornton reports 

P
age 65



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Gloucestershire County Council 

14 © 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

2016 Transparency Report 

Grant Thornton's commitment to quality 

underpins all that we do and this is 

reflected in our 2016 Transparency Report. 

 

We have more than 42,000 people in over 130 countries 

and this report is a public statement of our commitment 

to provide high-quality services to businesses and 

organisations operating throughout the world. 

It is designed to help  clients, audit committees, 

regulators and the public, who make up our many 

stakeholders, understand us better. 

The report covers the three key aspects of our business, 

namely: 

• Audit  and assurance; 

• Taxation; and 

• Advisory services. 

The report provides information on our audit 

methodology and sets out how we monitor the quality of 

our work and engage with external regulators. 

 

 

 

It also covers our arrangements for governance and 

management and sets our most recent financial 

information. 

The report can be downloaded from our website: 

www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-

firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-

2016.pdf 

Alternatively, hard copies can be provided by your 

Engagement Lead or Audit Manager. 

 

Grant Thornton reports 

P
age 66

http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf
http://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-global-transparency-report-2016.pdf


GRT102468 

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Auditing Standards – Communication with the 
Audit Committee

Gloucestershire County Council & Gloucestershire Pension Fund
Audit year ending 31 March 2016

Last updated 31 March 2016 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



Introduction 1
Fraud Risk Assessment 2
Law and Regulation 8
Going Concern 10
Related Parties 13
Accounting Estimates 15

Appendices

Appendix 1 Accounting Estimates 16

Contents

Page 70



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1

The purpose of this report is to ensure there is effective two-way communication 
between the Council's Audit Committee, who are 'those charged with governance' 
and the external auditor.

As your external auditors for both the Council and the Pension Fund we have a 
responsibility under professional auditing standards to ensure there is effective 
communication with the Audit Committee. This means developing a good working 
relationship with Committee members, while maintaining our independence and 
objectivity. If this relationship works well it helps us obtain information relevant to 
our audit and helps Audit Committee members to fulfil their financial reporting 
responsibilities. The overall outcome is to reduce the risk of material misstatement.

In planning and performing our audit of the Council's and the Pension Fund's 
financial statements we need to understand how the Audit Committee, supported by 
the Council's management, meets its responsibilities in the following areas.

 Fraud
 Law and regulation
 Going Concern
 Related parties
 Accounting for estimates

This report summarises the Audit Committee, management's and the external 
auditor's responsibilities in each of these areas, as explained in the International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs).  Our primary responsibility is to 
consider the risk of material misstatement.

Each section of the report includes a series of questions that management have 
responded to. Responses cover arrangements for both the Council and Pension 
Fund. 

We would like to ask the Audit Committee to consider these responses and confirm 
that it is satisfied with the arrangements in place.

Introduction

Page 71



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2

The ISAs define fraud as:

"An intentional act by one or more individuals among management, those charged 
with governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of deception to 
obtain an unjust or illegal advantage."

[ISA (UK&I) 240, paragraph 11]

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud is with the Audit Committee 
and the Council's management. To do this:

 officers need to ensure there is a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence, with a commitment to honest and ethical behaviour; and

 the Audit Committee oversight needs to include the consideration of the 
potential for the override of controls and inappropriate influence over the 
financial reporting process.

As your auditors our overall responsibility is for obtaining reasonable assurance that 
the Council's financial statements are free from material misstatement due to either 
fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit, which means considering the potential for the intentional manipulation of the 
financial statements.

We are also required to carry out a fraud risk assessment to inform our audit 
approach.  This includes considering the following:

 how management assesses the risk of material misstatement in the financial 
statements due to fraud

 officers' response to assessed fraud risk, including any identified specific risks
 investigations into data matches identified through the National Fraud Initiative 

and subsequent outcomes
 how officers communicate the processes for assessing and responding to fraud 

risk to the Audit Committee
 how officers communicate its views on ethical behaviour to the Audit Committee
 how the Audit Committee exercises oversight of officers' fraud risk assessment 

and response processes and the internal controls to mitigate these risks
 what knowledge the Audit Committee has of actual, alleged or suspected fraud.

Table 1 below sets out how officers have responded to our fraud risk assessment.

.

Fraud Risk Assessment

Page 72



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3

Table 1: Fraud Risk Assessment

Question Management response

1. What is management’s assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement in both the Council's and 
Pension Fund financial statements due to fraud?

-Is this consistent with the feedback from your risk 
management processes?

Low residual risk due to current controls 
and likelihood assessment considering 
past history and Internal Audit (IA) 
reports.

The Council’s financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with CIPFA’s 
Code of Practice and any divergence 
from the Code is clearly identified within 
the accounts.

Changes in government funding and 
business rates scheme will continue to 
be reflected in the statements.

Yes

Corporate Risk Management Policy 
Statement and Strategy and associated 
toolkits and guidance clearly states 
financial and fraud risks are key 
categories of risk to be considered when 
delivering outcomes.

The quarterly corporate performance 
reports to Cabinet bring together 
monitoring information on performance, 
finance and risk for the authority.

Director of Finance owns four strategic 
financial risks on the Council’s Strategic 
Risk register which are monitored and 
reported on quarterly.

The Pension Fund risk register is 
regularly reviewed by the Pension 
Committee.

2. Are you aware of any instances of fraud, either 
within the Council as a whole or within specific 
departments since 1 April 2015?

Yes, these are reported to the Head of 
Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer 
and Monitoring Officer on a monthly 
basis.

In addition all are reported within the 
internal audit monitoring reports to the 
Audit and Governance Committee which 
are available on the GCC website.

Page 73



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4

Question Management response

3. Do you suspect fraud may be occurring, either 
within the Council or within specific departments?
- Have you identified any specific fraud risks?

- Do you have any concerns there are areas that 
are at risk of fraud?

- Are there particular locations within the Council 
where fraud is more likely to occur?

15 referrals to IA within 2015/16 plus 
counter fraud work in respect of staff 
expenses and inappropriate internet 
usage in 2015/16. All referrals were 
investigated.

Regular updates on fraud/irregularities 
provided to Head of Paid Service, Chief 
Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer.

Quarterly update reports highlighting 
key outcomes to Audit and Governance 
Committee.

Fraud Risk assessment – Inherent risks 
include payroll, procurement, treasury 
management, pension payments, 
access to cash and third party 
payments. Emerging risks identified 
within Direct Payments. This area has 
been reviewed by Adults, Children, and 
IA; and will continue to be part of the 
Internal Audit plan within 2016/17.

Financial risk mitigated via good internal 
financial controls/ annual internal audit 
review of key financial systems.

Insurance – Fidelity Guarantee policy 
which provides fraud cover for all GCC 
employees plus additional cover for 
those employees deemed to be a high 
risk to the council from a financial 
perspective.

4. Are you satisfied that the overall control 
environment, including:

-  the process for reviewing the system of internal 
control;  

- internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; exist and work effectively?

- If not where are the risk areas?
- What other controls are in place to help 

prevent, deter or detect fraud?

Yes the 2015/16 Chief Internal Auditors 
annual Opinion on the internal control 
environment is satisfactory. 

Please refer to the Annual Governance 
Statement, the revised Local Code of 
Corporate Governance (which includes 
a self-assessment against the 6 key 
principles of good governance) plus the 
significantly enhanced assurance 
gathering framework/process, Annual 
Report on IA activity and the Annual 
Report on Risk Management Activity. 
This includes assurances on good 
governance from Service Heads as well 
as Directors, Lead Cabinet Member 
review and Head of Paid Service, 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 

Page 74



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5

Question Management response

Officer oversight and challenge.

Annual Report on IA activity and the 
Annual Report on Risk Management 
Activity.

Effective External and Internal Audit. 

The Council revised its Anti Fraud and 
Corruption Policy Statement and 
Strategy during 2014/15 which was 
disseminated in accordance with an 
approved communications plan. This 
will be further reviewed in 2016/17

Fraud risk assessment undertaken by 
Internal Audit (IA) to direct IA resources 
as part of the risk based internal audit 
planning.

Fraud risk is one of the key categories 
of risk within the Council’s risk 
management framework.

Member of National Anti Fraud Network 
(NAFN).

Member of peer groups such as Midland 
Counties Chief Auditors Fraud Group to 
share good practice etc.

Participants in the National Fraud 
initiative (NFI).

Dedicated Counter Fraud specialists 
within Internal Audit.

Joint working with NHS Counter Fraud 
Service for joint funding cases.

Membership of Gloucestershire’s Fraud 
Hub.

Staff fraud awareness briefings.

5. How do you communicate to employees about 
your views on business practices and ethical 
behaviour?
- How do you encourage staff to report their 

concerns about fraud?
- What concerns are staff expected to report 

The Employee Code of Conduct was 
reviewed in 2013/14 with additional 
changes made within 2014/15. 

Sections of the code of conduct have 
been highlighted to staff by a global 

Page 75



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6

Question Management response

about fraud? email with a link to an article within the 
monthly produced newsletter ‘Staffstuff’; 
now replaced with ”Talk Smart”. 

In addition, the assurance gathering 
process requests management 
assurances that the code of conduct is 
disseminated to all staff.

All potential concerns re 
fraud/irregularities are required to be 
notified under the Council’s confidential 
reporting procedure ‘Whistleblowing’

The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer is 
made aware and fully briefed on all such 
activity.

6. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what are 
considered to be high-risk posts?
- How are the risks relating to these posts 

identified, assessed and managed?

Finance and ICT staff generally fill the 
high risk posts, especially those with 
certification responsibilities.  These are 
managed as part of general 
management arrangements.

Fidelity Guarantee Insurance Policy 
protects the council against employee 
fraud risks. The Insurer requires annual 
confirmation of the effectiveness of 
employee recruitment checks and 
financial systems and processes. Also 
named officers are provided re high risk 
posts. This information is gained via 
Internal Audit and the Risk Management 
and Insurance Services Framework.

7. Are you aware of any related party relationships or 
transactions within the Council's or Pension Fund 
accounts that could give rise to instances of 
fraud?
- How do you mitigate the risks associated with 

fraud related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

No. Full disclosure of related party 
relationships is obtained annually from 
all members and senior officers as per 
the requirements of the relevant Codes 
of Conduct

The County Council’s Computer 
Insurance Policy has been endorsed to 
include an indemnity for the computer 
fraud risk of the ICT external provider. 

8. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues to Audit Committee?

Quarterly Internal Audit reports provided 
to the Audit and Governance Committee 
which include outcomes relating to fraud 
/ irregularity.

Page 76



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7

Question Management response

Opinions on the effectiveness of risk 
management arrangements are 
provided by IA on each internal audit 
activity.

Annual report on Risk Management 
activity provided to the Audit and 
Governance Committee.

Corporate performance and risk reports 
provided to Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee.

Regular updates to the Head of Paid 
Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer on all such activity.

Assurance gathering process requests 
management assurances that risk 
(including fraud risk) is fully considered 
when delivering outcomes/objectives.

9. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act

No

10. Are you aware of any significant transaction 
outside the normal course of business?

No

Page 77



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8

Auditing standards (ISA 250) require us to consider the impact that law and 
regulation and litigation may have on the Council's financial statements.  The 
factors that may result in particular risks of material misstatement due to fraud or 
error are:

 the operational regulatory framework - this covers the legislation that governs 
the operations of the Council

 the financial reporting framework - according to the requirements of International 
Financial Reporting Standards, the Code of Accounting for Local Authorities in 
England and relevant Directions

 taxation considerations - for example compliance with Value Added Tax and 
Income Tax regulations

 government policies that otherwise impact on the Council's business
 other external factors
 litigation and claims against the Council.

Where we become aware of information about a possible instance of non-
compliance we need to gain an understanding of it to evaluate the possible effect 
on the financial statements.

The Auditing Standards (ISAs) also require us to make enquiries of management 
and the Audit Committee about the arrangements in place to comply with law and 
regulation. To help with this, management have responded to the following 
questions.

Table 2:  Law and Regulation

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all 
relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

Internal Audit (RBIA) compliance with 
legislation reviews

Management assurance via the 
performance/risk management 
monitoring and reporting 
arrangements.

Assurances received for, and set out 
in, the AGS.

Regular attendance at technical 
updates with CIPFA to ensure all 
changes to standards noted and 
acted on.

Law and Regulation

Page 78



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 9

Question Management response

Reports from the Monitoring Officer 
where applicable.

Regular Statutory Officers i.e. 
CEO/MO and CFO meetings.

Legal support is available to all 
Council departments.

2. How is the Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations 
have been complied with?

Annual Governance Statement.

Internal and External Audit reports.

Risk Management reports.

Reports from the Monitoring Officer 
as applicable.

Audited Statement of Accounts

3. Have there been any instances of 
noncompliance with law and regulation since 1 
April 2015?

The Council does have negligence 
claims however the assurance 
gathering process specifically 
requests that management inform the 
Head of Paid Service, Chief Financial 
Officer and Monitoring Officer of any 
such incidents.

4. Is there any actual or potential litigation or 
claims that would affect the Council's or Pension 
Fund's financial statements?

The Council does have negligence 
claims, however, Risk Management 
and Insurance services commission 
an actuarial review of the council’s 
risk profile (as a minimum triennially ) 
however more frequently if the 
council’s risk profile significantly 
changes, which recommends the 
insurance fund levels required to pay 
for claims.

The council’s insurance programme 
is based on the council’s risk profile 
and reviewed and updated 
accordingly with MARSH, our 
insurance brokers annually.

6. Have any of the Council's service providers 
reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected 
misstatements which would affect the financial 
statements?

None that we are aware of.  
Quarterly Internal Audit reports 
provided to the Audit and 
Governance Committee which 
include outcomes relating to fraud / 

Page 79



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10

Question Management response

irregularity.

These would not affect the financial 
statements.

7. Have there been any examinations, 
investigations or inquiries by any licensing or 
authorising bodies or the

    tax and customs authorities?

None that we are aware of.

Page 80



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11

Going concern is a fundamental principle in the preparation of financial statements.  
Under the going concern assumption, a council is viewed as continuing in operation 
for the foreseeable future with no necessity of liquidation or ceasing trading.  
Accordingly, a councils assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that assets 
will be realised and liabilities discharged in the normal course of business.  A key 
consideration of going concern is that the Council has the cash resources and 
reserves to meet its obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future.

The Auditing Standards (ISAs) also require us to make enquiries of management 
and the Audit Committee about the going concern assumption. To help with this, 
management have responded to the following questions.

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that the 
entity is a going concern for the Council and the 
Pension Fund?

The Council’s MTFS covers 
the three years 2016/17 to 
2018/19.  An integral part of 
the Council’s MTFS and 
budget approval framework is 
to consider the Council’s 
financial strategy, financial 
assumptions, and financial 
risks.

The Strategic Finance 
Director’s advice is that the 
reserve levels are adequate, 
the financial standing of the 
Council is sound, and the 
2016/17 budget is robust and 
achievable.

Regular budget monitoring 
reports are reported to 
Cabinet and Scrutiny.

Detailed cashflow monitoring 
is undertaken within Finance. 
Aged debt reports are 
produced and circulated to 
appropriate staff for action.

An actuarial valuation of the 
Pension Fund including a 
review of employer 

Going concern

Page 81



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

contributions takes place 
every 3 years to ensure 
funding levels are 
appropriate.

2. Are the financial assumptions (e.g., future levels 
of income and expenditure) consistent with the 
Council's Business Plan and Pension Fund 
projections and the financial information 
provided to the Council throughout the year?
Are there any current adverse financial 
indicators including negative cash flow?

An integral part of the 
Council’s MTFS and budget 
approval framework is to 
consider the Council’s 
financial strategy, financial 
assumptions, and financial 
risks.

Robust budget monitoring and 
outturn forecasts are regularly 
undertaken throughout the 
year and reported to Cabinet 
and Scrutiny.

The MTFS and budget 
framework provides the 
Strategic Finance Director 
with the assurance that 
reserve levels are adequate; 
and the financial standing of 
the Council is sound, with a 
budget that is robust and 
achievable.  

Yes the Pension Fund’s 
Funding Strategy Statement 
is in line with the assumptions 
and projections used by the 
actuary.

There are no current adverse 
financial indicators

3. Are the implications of statutory or policy 
changes appropriately reflected in the Business 
Plans, financial forecasts and report on going 
concern for both the Council and Pension 
Fund?

Yes.  

Any changes to standards will 
be reflected in the MTFS 
and/or the regular financial 
reports to Cabinet and 
Scrutiny. 

Briefing documents would be 
produced for the Audit and 
Governance Committee if 
relevant.

Page 82



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 13

Table 3 – Going concern
Question

Management response

The LGPS scheme changes 
applicable from 2014 were 
reflected in the assumptions 
used by the actuary in the 
2013 Triennial Valuation of 
the Pension Fund

4. Does the Council have sufficient staff in post, 
with the appropriate skills and experience, 
particularly at senior manager level, to ensure 
the delivery of the Council’s and Pension Fund 
objectives?
If not, what action is being taken to obtain those 
skills?

The Council’s “new operating 
model” is now well 
established and revised 
senior management 
arrangements have been 
implemented to ensure 
sufficient senior staffing 
resource, with appropriate 
skills, are targeted towards 
priority areas following staff 
turnover.  

The continually evolving 
finance function and structure 
reflects a significant change in 
the way financial support is 
provided within GCC, with 
appropriately skilled staffing 
resources targeted towards 
business critical areas.

Staffing levels for the Pension 
Fund are currently under 
review and will be increased 
as appropriate. The CIPFA 
Knowledge & Skill framework 
for the Pension Fund is used 
and the relevant staff are 
required to receive the 
relevant training. 

5. Have there been any significant issues raised 
with the Audit Committee during the year which 
could cast doubts on the assumptions made? 
(Examples include adverse comments raised by 
internal and external audit regarding financial 
performance or significant weaknesses in 
systems of financial control).

No

Page 83



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 14

For local government bodies, the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom (the Code) requires compliance with IAS 24: Related party 
disclosures. The Code identifies the following as related parties to local government 
bodies:

 entities that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or 
are controlled by the Council (i.e. subsidiaries)

 associates and joint ventures
 an entity that has an interest in the Council that gives it significant influence over 

the Council
 key officers, and close members of the family of key officers
 post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the 

Council, or of any entity that is a related party of the Council.

The Code notes that, in considering materiality, regard should be had to the 
definition of materiality, which requires materiality to be judged from the viewpoint of 
both the Council and the related party.

Accounting standards (ISA 550) requires us to review your procedures for 
identifying related party transactions and obtaining an understanding of the controls 
that you have established to identify such transactions. We will carry out testing to 
ensure that the related party transaction disclosures made in the financial 
statements are complete and accurate.

Table 3: Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Who are the Council's and Pension Fund's 
related parties?

GCC’s Related Parties include 
County Council Members and 
Senior Officers. GFirst, Police, 
Health Bodies where joint 
working arrangements exist.
Amey Highways Contractor and 
Waste Contractor.

Re the Pension Fund, staff 
advising the Pension Committee 
have post employment benefits 
in the Pension Fund.

Related Parties

Page 84



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 15

Question Management response

2. What are the controls in place to identify, 
account for, and disclose, related party 
transactions and  relationships?

For GCC, annual declarations.  
At year end a detailed review is 
undertaken for all service areas 
to identify significant related 
parties, including an assessment 
of any entities that could be 
significantly influenced by the 
council.

Details of key staff are provided 
in the Annual Accounts and the 
Pension fund’s Annual Report

Page 85



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 16

Local Government bodies need to apply appropriate estimates in the preparation of 
their financial statements. ISA (UK&I) 540 sets out requirements for auditing 
accounting estimates. The objective is to gain evidence that the accounting 
estimates are reasonable and the related disclosures are adequate.

Under this standard we have to identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement for accounting estimates by understanding how the Council identifies 
the transactions, events and conditions that may give rise to the need for an 
accounting estimate.

Accounting estimates are used when it is not possible to measure precisely a figure 
in the accounts. We need to be aware of all estimates that the Council are using as 
part of their accounts preparation; these are detailed in Appendix 1 to this report.

The audit procedures we conduct on the accounting estimate will demonstrate that:

 the estimate is reasonable; and
 estimates have been calculated consistently with other accounting estimates 

within the financial statements.

Accounting Estimates

Page 86



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 17

Appendix 1 Accounting Estimates

P
age 87



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 20

Table 5

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

P
age 88



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 21

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Property 
plant &

equipment (PPE)
valuations

For the 2015/16 
accounts valuations 
will be made by 
Internal Valuers in 
line with RICS 
guidance.
A revaluation of 
assets has 
traditionally been 
carried out on a 5 
year cyclical basis, 
however to comply 
with CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice the cycle 
has been reviewed 
to ensure the rolling 
programme values 
categories of assets 
within year.

Assets not valued 
during the year are 
the subject of 
review to ensure 
realistic values are 
in the accounts, 
within a new two 
year rolling 
programme..

Finance team 
instructs Valuers of 
the areas and 
categories of the 
program to be 
valued and any 
conditions that may 
impact on that 
valuation.

Valuations are 
made by Internal 
Valuers, with 
appropriate 
professional 
qualifications.  A 
local economic 
review is provided 
by external valuers.

Valuations are made in-
line with RICS guidance 
with reliance on experts.

No

P
age 89



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 22

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

The Council’s 
Internal Valuer is 
asked to consider 
whether there has 
been any 
impairments of 
assets in year. This 
is a year-end 
assessment for 
impairment.

Valuers review 
assets held and 
discuss with finance 
staff any known 
events in year which 
may have impacted 
on the value.P

age 90



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 23

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Estimated
remaining useful 
economic life (UEL) 
of PPE & 
Depreciation

The remaining UEL 
of an asset is 
calculated by the 
Internal Valuer 
during the valuation 
rolling programme 
following the RICS 
guidance. 
Depreciation is then 
calculated on a 
straight line basis in 
line with IAS 16

The Council uses 
the information 
provided by the 
Internal Valuer for 
UEL of assets and 
then uses the 
standard straight 
line depreciation 
formula suggested 
in ISA 16

Valuations are 
made by the 
Internal Valuer.

The method makes some 
assumptions about asset 
lives and how asset are 
being used, which by 
their nature contain a 
degree of uncertainty 
because of the long 
period of time being 
considered.

No

P
age 91



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Council - Pension 
(IAS 19)

Reliance on 
information provided 
by actuary about 
assumptions on 
population and 
future economic 
growth.

Members and 
contribution rates 
are known and 
shared with actuary. 
Actuary uses 
population and 
economic data to 
make estimates of 
future liabilities and 
assets

Pension Actuary There is a degree of 
estimation uncertainty as 
projection of assets and 
liabilities are over a very 
long term. However 
actuary uses most up to 
date information to make 
their assumptions. No 
other alternative 
estimation techniques 
have been identified.

No

P
age 92



© 2016 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1

Estimate Method/model used 
to make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether Management 
have used an expert

Underlying assumptions: 
- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been 
a change in 
accounting
method in year?

Pension Fund – 
Investment returns 

Securities to be 
valued on a Fair 
Value Basis 
therefore assets, 
where there is an 
active and readily 
available market 
price, are valued at 
the bid (selling) 
price and liabilities 
on an offer (buying) 
price basis. Where 
assets do not 
actively trade 
through established 
exchange 
mechanisms a price 
is obtained from the 
manager of the 
investment asset. 

Estimates are 
based on known 
investments held at 
the year end. 

Reliance on the 
information provided 
by investment 
managers

There is an inherent risk 
in calculating fair value of 
investments at a point in 
time, however the SORP 
sets out the approach 
and the estimates are 
made by the 
management experts

No

P
age 93



www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2013 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd ('Grant Thornton 
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.  
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss 
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of  any material in this publication.

P
age 94



Audit and Governance Committee  April 2016

Agenda Item: Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 1998 
report and statistics, January – December 2015.

Summary

This report advises Members of the impact of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
(FOI) and the Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA) (and related legislation) on the 
Council during 2015.

Key Points

 There has been an increase (16%) in the overall number of requests received 
and logged in comparison with 2014. 

 The percentage of requests responded to within the statutory timescales in 
2015 is 82%; this is below the ICO’s target of 85%.

 The complexity of requests continues to increase. 

 The most resource intensive requests have seen an increase of 49%, i.e. the 
subject access requests.

 There has been an increase in the percentage of internal reviews received.

Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Page 95

Agenda Item 7



1.    Proportion of requests meeting statutory deadlines

During 2015 the Council has answered 82% of requests within the statutory 
deadline.  Chart 1 shows the monthly response rates and how they compare with 
the external target of 85% on time. 

Jan Fe
b

M
ar
ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju

ly

Au
gu
st

Se
pt
em
be
r

Oc
to
be
r

No
ve
mb
er

De
ce
mb
er

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

Target

Actual

Chart 1: 2015 Percentage on time 

%

2. Detailed Background Information

Requests for Information

The Council saw a rise in the number of requests, compared with 2014, 
especially in the second half of the year.

1st 
half 
2013

2nd 
half 
2013

1st half 
2014

2nd 
half 
2014

1st 
half 
2015

2nd 
half 
2015

2013 2014 2015

Number 
received

844 911 1043 849 1079 1116 1755 1892 2195

Percentage 
increase 
from 
previous 
period

30% 8% 14.5% -18.5% 3.5% 31.5% 27% 7.8% 16 %

Page 96



2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

1st Half

2nd Half

Chart 2: requests received 
2005 - 2015

N
um

be
r o

f R
eq

ue
st

s

Chart 2 shows that in 2015, 2,195 requests were received, compared with 1,892 in 
2014.  An average of 182.92 requests per month was received over the year; an 
additional 25 requests per month (in 2014  the average was 157.66 requests per 
month).

In addition to managing requests and the provision of advice to Council colleagues, 
the service continues to provide advice to schools as part of the Council’s Traded 
Service.

Page 97



Chart 3: Distribution of requests for information in 2015 by requester type

Requester Type Count %
Member of public 1583 72.12%
Company or commercial 
organisation 239 10.89%
Press or media 170 7.74%
NHS 67 3.05%
Campaign group 37 1.69%
Charity 24 1.09%
Legal organisation 24 1.09%
Academic organisation 13 0.59%
Public Authority 12 0.55%
Student 11 0.50%
Political organisation 10 0.46%
Councillor 4 0.18%
MP 1 0.05%
Grand Total 2195  

Chart 3 shows the variation in the number of requests by requester type.  Requests 
from private individuals remain the overall majority at 72%, which is a 23% increase 
from 2014.  

Requests have been received about a wide variety of topics including:

 Javelin Park
 Superfast broadband
 Adult social care
 School admissions
 Road maintenance, safety on the roads and transport
 Parking charges
 ICT and comms
 Public health services
 Staffing numbers and structure
 Council spend, funding, budgets and compenstion claims
 Libraries
 Fire service

Page 98



Chart 4: Distribution of requests by cluster level

Cluster Number
Average 
in 2015

Core Council 265 12.07%
Adults 390 17.76%
Children and Families 784 35.71%
Communities 568 25.87%
District councils 137 6.24%
Not categorised* 51 2.35%

Chart 4 shows the distribution of requests by cluster level for 2015.  

*Please note that there were a further 22 police requests, 15 requests under the 
Data Protection Act and 14 FOI requests not categorised as they were received 
during the rollout period of the new FOI database before the categorisation of 
requests was set up.  

Overall the numbers in all areas have continued to increase steadily throughout 
2015.  A few examples of the number of requests received in certain areas are listed 
below:

 Community Infrastructure / Highways: 354
 Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service: 102
 HR: 95
 ICT: 68
 Finance: 51
 Waste: 27

3. Refusal of requests

FOI requests were refused in part on 240 occasions and in whole on 70 occasions 
during 2015.  The top five exemptions used were:

 S12 – Cost of compliance exceeds appropriate limit
 S21 -  Information accessible to the applicant by other means
 S22 – Information intended for future publication
 S40 – Personal information
 S43 – Commercial Interests  

The top two EIR (Environmental Information Regulations) exceptions used were:
 EIR 12(3) – Personal data
 EIR 12 5(e) – The confidentiality of commercial or industrial information where 

such confidentiality is provided by law to protect a legitimate economic 
interest

In addition, in instances of partial disclosure, this is because some of the information 
requested was not held (121 occasions).

Page 99



4. Time spent on answering requests

As the input required to respond to requests spans all areas of the Council we 
estimate the time taken and based on our professional experience use following 
average times to measure the completion requests:

 Average request: 5 hours
 Sensitive request: 10 hours
 Internal review: 15 hours
 ICO review: 35 hours

As noted in previous reports the increase in complexity continues to be the case.  
 77.76 hours were spent by Legal Services on requests for information related 

queries in 2015, which is a similar amount of time as spent in 2014. 
 The time spent by the Information Management Service on work relating to 

FOI and DPA internal reviews and complaints received in 2015 was 492.  In 
addition to this time has been spent on managing continued correspondence 
about closed cases.

 This means that there has been an increase of 76% in time spent by the 
Information Management Service compared with 2014. 

 The increase in time spent is indicative of the complexity and sensitivity of the 
requests.

5. Freedom of Information Internal Reviews and Complaints

35 requests for internal reviews were received in 2015, with the following outcomes:
 10 were upheld in part; 
 8 were upheld in full;
 16 were not upheld;
 1 was withdrawn by the requestor.

5 complaints have been received from the Information Commissioner (ICO) for 2015, 
as follows:

 3 relating to Javelin Park have been escalated to the Information Tribunal as 
the ICO requested that the Council release all the contract information (all). 

 1 related to road maintenance and we are awaiting the outcome from the ICO.
 1 related to correspondence between GCC and Hempsted School between 

June 2014 and January 2015 and we are awaiting the outcome from the ICO.

6.  Data Protection

The Council received 596 requests under the Data Protection Act in 2015.  This 
represents a 49% increase when compared with 2014 (399 requests).

Page 100



Gloucestershire County Council has a responsibility under the Data Protection Act 
1998 to ensure appropriate and proportionate security of the personal data held and 
used (DPA 1998 7th Principle).  The Information Management Service continues to 
monitor information security breaches and put in place appropriate measures to help 
prevent breaches from occurring.  We also continue to provide an advisory service 
for schools on this subject as part of the Councils’ Traded Service.

7.  Data Protection Complaints

8 data protection complaints were received and investigated in 2015; 
 1 was upheld in full;
 3 were upheld in part;
 4 were not upheld. 

1 complaint has been received from the Information Commissioner (ICO) for 2015:  
 The requester had concerns about the security and accuracy of their personal 

data. They also felt the Council had not responded in full to their subject 
access request.  
 The ICO confirmed they were satisfied with the accuracy of the Council’s 

records and confirmed that the Council had responded in full to the subject 
access request.

 The ICO requested that the Council considers its information security by 
ensuring that all staff members are adequately trained and aware of their 
obligations with regards the secure sending of information.  The Council 
responded to the ICO explaining how the Council does and will continue to 
fulfil this criteria.  

 The ICO is satisfied with the Council’s response and has not taken any 
further action in the matter.

8.  Customer Feedback

Although we invite feedback on every response it is not obligatory to complete it.  
Ten comments were received in 2015:

 3 felt a process or procedure was not being followed so submitted a request;
 2 felt the service area was not answering their queries so submitted a 

request;
 1 did not understand a decision that had been made so took the FOI route; 
 2 stated that they used the FOI route as they could not find the information on 

the Council’s website;
 1 did not realise that their request would be dealt with under FOI; and
 1 commented that they had received a good service from the FOI team.

Page 101



9. Information Management Service Achievements and Developments

A Council wide requests management system, ManageMyRequests, was launched 
in July 2015.  All requests are now logged and managed via the database, with 
inbuilt workflow and reporting.  

We are continuing to work with colleagues across the Council to manage the 
increasing demand within the available resources.

The service regularly liaises with Corporate Complaints due to the cross-cutting 
nature of many of the requests both areas deal with.  The service ensured advice 
given to staff on personal safety at work and managing challenging cases in the 
Council’s Warning Flags Policy and Health and Safety guidance were consistent. 
We have again retained our Clearmark Access to Records Award for our service to 
allow care leavers to access their records, which helps provide some understanding 
of their time in care.

The Service co-ordinated and submitted the IG Toolkit, required to maintain N3 
connection with health (N3 is an ICT Network, connecting many different sites across 
the NHS and partner organisations).  Further work on developing a network of 
Information Asset Owners across the Council has also progressed.  The governance 
work of the service aims to demonstrate that the Council can be trusted to maintain 
the confidentiality and security of personal information. This work is essential to 
enable secure partnership working and reduce risks associated with the loss or 
inappropriate use of persona information. This good practice work in-turn increases 
public confidence that the Council can be trusted with personal data.

The service has assisted and supported work for high profile and national inquiries, 
such as the complex historic cases in relation to Badgeworth Court.

The Single Point of Contact (SPOC) Co-ordinator role (managing requests from the 
police and other organisations to access Council information) continued to manage 
an increase in the number of requests. The work includes responding to proof of life 
enquiries and investigations into alleged historic child abuse. 

The Records Centre Transformation Project was successfully completed at the end 
of 2015. The project was initiated in 2015 to allow the Council to vacate the former 
Quayprint building to enable the regeneration of Blackfriars and Quayside. The 
project was successful and was achieved ahead of schedule, through creating 
additional space within existing and newly allocated strongrooms, consolidating box 
space and destroying files that have reached the end of their retention period and no 
longer need to be kept. 

The service continues to provide support for corporate projects, such as Joining Up 
Your Information with the NHS, the Customer Programme and the Accommodation 
Review.

Page 102

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=61094&p=0


An independent commission has been looking at the future of FOI. The Council 
responded to the consultation, showing support for the Act, but expressing concern 
about the impact on Local Authorities and requesting that some complex parts of the 
Act be simplified.   As a result of the consultation the commission has issued a report 
with a number of recommendations around timescales, proactive publication of 
responses, the application of exemptions, the review process and request statistics 
becoming a statutory return.  It is not known at this time which of the 
recommendations will be taken forward; the situation will be kept under review to 
ensure the Council keeps up to date with any changes. The full report can be found 
at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/50413
9/Independent_Freedom_of_Information_Commission_Report.pdf

Authors: Teresa Wilmshurst, Information Requests Manager 
     Jenny Grodzicka, Information Management Service Manager

                 
Owner: Jenny Grodzicka, Information Management Service Manager

April 2016

Page 103

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/504139/Independent_Freedom_of_Information_Commission_Report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/504139/Independent_Freedom_of_Information_Commission_Report.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee

Date: 15th April 2016 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit’s Risk and Control Assurance framework
Internal Audit Plan 2016/2017

Purpose of Report: To provide the Committee with a summary of the proposed 2016/2017 
Risk Based Internal Audit Plan as required by the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) 2013.

Recommendations: That the Committee:
 Notes that the Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17 makes adequate 

provision for the risks arising from organisational change; and

 Approve the 2016/2017 Internal Audit Plan. 

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer – Head of Internal Audit & Risk Management Shared 
Service and Gloucestershire County Council’s Insurance Services. Tel: 
01452 328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker – Finance Director 
Tel no: 01452 328469.
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Risk Based Internal Audit Plan (Risk and 
Control Assurance Programme) will impact on the statutory 
requirement to provide the Council with an annual independent audit 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s control environment 
comprising risk management, control and governance.

Page 105

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 
2016/2017

Page 106



1

Background

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local Government Act 
(S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter states that a relevant authority “must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance”.

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises that the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) 2013 as representing “proper internal audit practices”. The standards define the way in which the 
Internal Audit Service should be established and undertakes its functions.

The standards also require that an opinion is given on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
control environment comprising risk management, control and governance, which is informed by the work 
undertaken by the Service.

Gloucestershire County Council’s Internal Audit function conforms to the International Standards for the 
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

What is Internal Auditing?

The role of the internal auditor is to provide independent, objective assurance to management that key risks are 
being managed effectively. To do this the internal auditor will evaluate the quality of risk management 
processes, systems of internal control and corporate governance frameworks, across all parts of an 
organisation and to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of these arrangements. As well as providing 
assurance, an internal auditor’s knowledge of the management of risk enables them to act as a consultant and 
provide support for improvement in an organisation's procedures, for example, at the development stage of a 
major new system where the internal auditor can help management to ensure that risks are clearly identified 
and appropriate controls put in place to manage them. 

Why is assurance important? 

By reporting to senior management that important risks have been evaluated and highlighting where 
improvements are necessary, the internal auditor helps senior management to demonstrate that they are 
managing the organisation effectively on behalf of their stakeholders. Hence, internal auditors along with senior 
management and the external auditors are a critical part of the governance arrangements of our organisation. 
Our work significantly contributes to the statutory Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

Development of the 2016/2017 Internal Audit Plan

To enable the above the Chief Internal Auditor is required to produce an Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan 
to determine the priorities of the internal audit activity. The proposed activity should be consistent with the 
organisation’s priorities and objectives and take into account the organisation’s risk management framework, 
including risk appetite levels set by management and internal audit’s own judgement of risks. 

How did we develop the plan - Risk Based Internal Audit Planning (RBIAP)

To ensure our internal audit resources continue to be focussed accordingly, particularly during periods of radical 
change, it is essential that we understand our clients’ needs, which means building relationships with our key 
stakeholders, including other assurance/challenge providers, in order to gain crucial insight and ongoing 
‘intelligence’ into the strategic and operational change agendas within our organisation. 

Page 107



2

This insight is not only identified at the initial development stages of the plan but dialogue continues throughout 
the financial year(s.  This increases the ability for the internal audit service to adapt more closely to meet the 
assurance needs of the Council.  Our plan therefore needs to be dynamic and should be flexible to meet these 
changing needs. 

How did we achieve the above?

To ensure that an effective plan is developed, each Principal Auditor has been nominated as the ‘Client Lead’ 
supporting at least one of the Commissioning Directors and the Operations Directors.  A wide ranging 
consultation process took place with Senior Management across the Council to establish priorities and agree 
the format and timetabling of ongoing dialogue. This dialogue between Senior Management and the ‘Client 
Lead’ Auditor is dependent upon the change agenda in the area, but is at least quarterly. 

In addition to these Senior Management meetings, parallel consultations were held with the Chairman of the 
Audit and Governance Committee, External Auditors and the Finance Managers. The proposed activity from all 
sources was collated and matched against the internal audit resources available and prioritised accordingly. The 
proposals, following challenge, have been approved by the Corporate Management Team (CoMT), the Finance 
Director and the Head of Financial Management. 

A flexible audit plan - (Risk and Control Assurance Programme)

The audit plan is stated in terms of estimated days input to the Council of 1625 audit days, this compares to 
1423 days in 2015/2016). The increase of 202 productive audit days is as a result of the Internal Audit and Risk 
Management Shared Service restructure, which also achieved budgetary cost savings. By continuing to apply 
risk based internal audit planning principles this level of input, with the ability to commission internal audit 
resources from current audit framework agreements as required, is considered acceptable to provide the 
assurance the Council needs. We will however continue to reassess our resources against the Council’s 
priorities and risks and will amend the plan throughout the year based on in year risk / need / demand, reporting 
any key changes to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Overview of Internal Audit’s Risk and Control Assurance Programme

In order to provide a high level overview of the proposed risk and control assurance programme the pie charts 
below highlight the allocation of audit resources per:

 Category of review; and
 Functional service areas / Clusters. 

Page 108



3

2015/16

2016/17

Page 109



4

2015/16

2016/17

Page 110



5

The key changes to note within the proposals are:

 There is a proportional split, based on risk, between each of the functional service areas to enable the 
provision of an audit opinion, however, due to the risk profile, more focus has been directed to Adult 
Services;

 Continued focus on corporate governance, key financial systems and strategic risks due to the 
significant change agenda; 

 Continued emphasis on commissioning, procurement and contract management and monitoring 
arrangements; and

 Taking into consideration other assurance providers.

The detail supporting this overview is attached at Appendix 1 which shows:

 Audit activity per service area;
 Name of the audit activity;
 Reason for the audit i.e. as a result of risk based internal audit planning (RBIAP) and link to the Council’s 

Strategic Risk Register, statutory requirement etc;
 Outline scope of the review. (please note that a detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior 

to the commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is continually focused on the key risks and 
is undertaken within agreed time periods, to ensure our service adds value to the Council); and

 The priority of the audit i.e. Priorities 1 and 2. The aim is to focus on priority 1 audits, with the priority 2 
audits being reassessed in the eventuality of any new emerging risk areas highlighted where assurances 
may be required, or where additional fraud investigations/irregularities materialise.

Page 111



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 Appendix 1

6

Core Council Cluster 

Asset Management and Property Services (AMPS)

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Contractor 
Partnering 
Framework 
Agreement: Major 
Construction Works

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has recently awarded a framework contract for major construction contracts. The total 
value of this contract is estimated as £95m.

Major projects are awarded to contractors within the framework following mini competition. Smaller 
projects are awarded to contractors by rotation.

This audit will review the process of awarding contracts to ensure that it is robust and equitable.

Priority 1

Dynamic Purchasing 
System – Asset 
Management and 
Property Services 
(AMPS)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has entered into a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for routine maintenance and 
minor works. The DPS is an electronic system which can be used to purchase goods and services. 
New contractors can be added to the DPS at any time as long as they satisfy the selection criteria.

This audit will review the operation of the DPS, ensuring that it complies with legislation, that work is 
procured equitably and that new contractors are admitted to the DPS in accordance with the agreed 
selection criteria.

Priority 1

Review of Contract 
Monitoring of 
Schools Catering 
Contract

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

A new contract for the provision of school meals in Gloucestershire is currently being let. The contract 
value is in excess of £20m. This review will look at the contract monitoring arrangements to ensure 
that they are robust.

Priority 1

P
age 112



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

7

Business Service Centre (BSC)

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Business Service 
Centre (BSC) Payroll

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Follow up of limited 
assurance report

Following the limited assurance report on the implementation of the LGPS14 scheme by the BSC 
payroll, this audit will revisit the high priority recommendations made, testing the system to ensure 
that the agreed management action has been implemented.

Priority 1

Duplicate Payments 
/ Fiscal Technology

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

A duplicate payment occurs when the same invoice from a vendor is paid more than once in error.  
GCC uses dedicated software (Fiscal Technologies) to run reports on a daily basis that identifies 
potential duplicate payments.  The reports include all values of invoices due for payment and several 
items are checked from the report each day.  If the Business Service Centre identifies any potential 
duplicates, they are investigated and the errors are reversed if necessary before the vendor 
payments are made.  This audit will review the processes in place for identifying and correcting 
duplicate vendor payments to ensure that they are operating as intended.

Priority 1

National Insurance 
Contributions

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

National Insurance Contribution rates will be changing from 1st April 2016.  This audit will sample 
check a number of employees to ensure that the new rates are being applied correctly.

Priority 1

P
age 113



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

8

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Payroll – Payments 
to Third Parties

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Business Service Centre is a major provider of payroll services for the County Council and other 
employers, through traded service agreements.

Deductions are made from salary in respect of tax, national insurance, pension contributions (to 
various pension providers), salary sacrifice schemes, attachment of earnings orders, pennies from 
heaven etc.

This review will ensure that there are processes in place to set these up, make amendments (e.g. 
new tax and NI rates) ensuring that the correct deductions are made and that they are paid over to 
the correct third party, accompanied by an appropriate breakdown of deductions made.

Priority 1

Vendor Master Data Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

This audit will review the process of setting up new vendors in SAP and amending those records, 
including contractor name, address and bank details. Reviewing the effectiveness of the checks that 
are undertaken to ensure that the vendor does not already exist, that any changes are bone fide, that 
contracts are amended if necessary and data cleansing is carried out to block old records held in 
SAP.

Priority 1

BACS payments – 
Creditors and Payroll

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

BACS payments are made for creditor payments and payroll payments.  Electronic files are received 
from the Business Service Centre (BSC) and the BACS payments are processed by Strategic 
Finance.  BACS transactions are processed daily and values range from very small (advance 
payments related to an individual’s salary), through to payment of a full payroll which can be as high 
as £10m plus.

The main focus of the audit will be to ensure that payments are authorised by approved signatories 
within the BSC, accurately batch totalled and presented via a secure file for processing by Strategic 
Finance and Strategic Finance adhere to a processor/checker governance authorisation process.

Priority 2

P
age 114



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

9

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Consolidated 
Invoices

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has contracts in place for a variety of services that can be procured by all service areas, 
e.g. agency staff (Comensura), training (WDR) and recruitment advertising and public notices 
(Penna). All of these organisations supply the Council with consolidated invoices. This audit will 
review the systems in place, in relation to a sample of these contracts, for authorisation and 
reconciliation of the invoices to ensure that managers are able to understand and challenge charges 
made to their cost centres.

Priority 2

Retrospective 
Orders 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Retrospective Purchase Orders (purchase orders produced after delivery of goods or services to 
which they relate) were introduced to allow SAP procurement processes to be demonstrated for those 
activities where advance notification of supply and cost was not possible. Therefore there should be 
minimal use of these at GCC.  However, retro orders are common-place at GCC.

Currently GCC raises approximately 10,000 retrospective Purchase Orders in SAP on an annual 
basis with an approximate value of £30m.  The basis of the audit will be to determine why the use of 
retrospective orders is so widespread, to understand the reasons for initiating a retrospective order 
(which could relate to an irregularity) the process for creating a retrospective order and the 
authorisation route.  Using sample testing, the audit will determine if the use of a retrospective order 
was necessary and make recommendations as to their use in the future.

Priority 2

P
age 115



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

10

Finance

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Budget Setting Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Due to the introduction of the new BWIP system for budget monitoring and forecasting, Budget 
Monitoring was audited in 2015/16.  This audit will review the budget setting process for 2016/17 to 
provide assurance that accurate and operationally reflective budgets will be set at the start of each 
financial year and that the MTFS challenge process is operating effectively.

Priority 1

Capital: Virements 
and Delegated 
Powers 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

Cabinet, Cabinet Members or appropriate Officers under delegated powers are responsible for taking 
in-year decisions on resources and priorities for the Capital Programme and can approve virements 
between schemes providing the decision is not contrary to the budget.  The audit undertaken in 
January 2016 highlighted governance and control weaknesses and in particular the absence of a 
formal scheme of delegation clearly identifying which officers can approve virements. This follow-up 
audit will provide assurance that the actions taken by management have been implemented.

Priority 1

Compliance with 
Debt Policy

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The value of monies owing to the Authority at any one point in time constantly fluctuates but averaged 
between £8m and £10.9m during 2015/16 with approximately 60% of the debt relating to Adult 
Services.  During 2013/14 an audit was undertaken on corporate debt management, particularly 
focusing on the process whereby Strategic Finance circulates an aged debt report and trend 
information to all appropriate parties on a monthly basis, highlighting current issues (including 
provisions for bad debt and write-offs) that need to be addressed.  One of the outcomes of the audit 
was that there was a need for a new corporate Debt Policy.  The new debt policy has now been 
approved (March 2016). The audit will review compliance with the new Debt Policy, focusing on the 
debts process within Adult Services, the Business Service Centre and also ascertaining Legal 
Services involvement in these debt recovery arrangements.

Priority 1

VAT Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The County Council processes some £38m worth of VAT each year.  It is essential that procedures 
for accounting for this are sound in order to minimise the risk of penalties and the Council’s tax 
liability.  This audit will examine the effectiveness of the processes in place.

Priority 1

P
age 116



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

11

HR

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Approval of 
Payments for 
Agency Staff

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

In recent years agency staff have been engaged by the Council through Comensura, an organisation 
who act as a broker for various agency staff providers. The contract is currently being retendered.

Expenditure is in excess of £3m per annum and is mainly related to Social Care. The system is such 
that managers should approve employees’ timesheets on a weekly basis, however should they fail to 
do this, the system will auto approve the timesheets to enable the individual agencies to pay their 
staff. This review will review the effectiveness of the authorisation of invoices and payment 
processes.

Priority 1

Recruitment / 
Promotion

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

GCC has a suite of policies relating to recruitment including policies on the promotion of internal staff. 
This review will look at a selection of appointments both internal and external to ensure that policies 
have been adhered to.

Priority 1

Staff Expense 
Claims

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council reimburses travelling and subsistence expenses incurred in the course of official 
business. Claims must be made monthly and payments are in accordance with locally and nationally 
agreed rates.  Receipts must be attached to each claim where appropriate.  Accounting Instruction 8 
stipulates the requirements.

This audit will review the top 20 claims, by value, to provide assurance that the requirements are 
being complied with and claimants are not submitting fraudulent or inappropriate claims.  

Priority 1

P
age 117



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

12

ICT to include audits provided by ICT external auditors

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

ContrOCC 

(Finance Module)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Audit scope 1 (Children’s)

ContrOCC is an electronic payment system that was implemented in November 2015 for managing 
contract and payment information in Children’s social services, e.g. calculating payments to all in-
house foster carers,  Short-Breaks, Special Guardianship Orders, Adoption Allowances, Section 17 
payments, Direct payments, Taxis, etc.

The benefits include providing improvements to the efficiency of payment processes, allowing the LA 
to build up a full picture of the service costs for a client; the impact on the budget commitment is 
calculated and displayed to the user at the point of authorisation; and the link through to payments 
processing in SAP is seamless, meaning that payments can be processed automatically.

This audit will review how information is input, the controls that are in place to reduce human error, 
the system’s ability to provide timely and accurate payments to carers as well as clear and useful 
management reporting.

Audit scope 2 (ICT)

This audit will review the set-up, access controls, configuration, administration of the application 
which provides an interface between existing applications (Liquidlogic, ERIC) and SAP for 
authorising and making payments and file security of financial records.

Priority 1

P
age 118



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

13

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

ContrOCC 

(Finance Module)

Audit scope 3 (Adults)

Gloucestershire County Council uses an in-house bespoke computer system (ERIC) to support the 
delivery and management of its social care provision for adults across the county. 

Options for a full replacement of this system has been explored, however, in the interim, it was 
agreed that a new Finance solution, that integrates with the case management functionality would be 
procured to ensure that the Council has an appropriate IT Finance Module that meets the need of 
the service area, commissioners and fits with the corporate IT strategy, whilst ensuring that GCC can 
meet the legislative requirements of the Care Act 2014.

Following a tender for the replacement IT Finance Module, the project is now entering the 
implementation phase of which we will review two key areas:

• Process redesign;

• Data migration / Data quality

The scope of this review will be to test the adequacy of the arrangements for the effective 
implementation of the IT Finance Module in respect of these two key areas.

Priority 1

Cyber Security Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Following the denial of service (ransomware) attack at a local council, an assessment of the GCC 
ICT infrastructure against the 5 control elements in the Government’s Cyber Essentials Scheme 
(firewalls and Internet gateways, secure configuration, access control and administrative privilege 
management, malware protection, and patch management) will be undertaken. 

The audit will focus on the Council’s ability to withstand an attack, its likely impact and recovery 
activities/timescales.

Priority 1

P
age 119



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

14

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Database Security Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

This audit will review the Oracle / SQL / other (Linux) database environments encompassing super-
user roles, technical (build and/or operating) standards, user management, access rights, password 
standards, vulnerability scanning, patch management and support, audit logging, performance and 
capacity management.

Priority 1

Fire and Rescue 
System Application 
Security

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

This audit will undertake a review of access to key applications containing sensitive data and the 
security surrounding the underlying database architecture.

Priority 1

GCC Websites Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

This audit will assess the effectiveness of the identification of and then management (hosting) 
arrangements, security, configuration and control over websites (domains) which the Council owns 
and provides, reviewing both the main www.gloucestershire.gov.uk domain and also other specific 
purpose websites including libraries.

Priority 1

ICT Managed 
Services Contract 
– Steria

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

In 2013/14 Steria Limited were awarded the ICT Managed Services contract. The new contract 
commenced on 1st April 2014 and is estimated to be worth £2.5m to £3m per annum. This review 
will look at the contract monitoring of the new agreement, specifically looking at the payment 
mechanism and the underlying data supporting payments made to the contractor.

Priority 1

SAP Access 
Controls

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

This audit will review the range of users from super-user (e.g. system administrators), and business 
users and their rights and privileges to ensure that all accesses are relevant to the job role, 
maintained up to date when staff change or leave, and that there are no conflicts or gaps in the 
functionalities.

Priority 1

P
age 120



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

15

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

SAP Interfaces Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Various applications throughout GCC create files that interface with SAP and generate payments to 
third parties.  This review will look specifically at issues with two interfaces that have been brought to 
Internal Audit’s attention and will be widened to include other interfaces with SAP to ensure they are 
robustly controlled and properly checked and reconciled with an adequate level of early warning 
reporting when exceptions / errors occur.

Priority 1

Follow up audits Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited assurance 
opinion follow up

Internal Audit will review the actions taken by management to address the recommendations made 
in respect of the limited assurance opinions provided during 2015/2016. 

Priority 1

P
age 121



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

16

Information Management

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Freedom of 
Information 
Requests (FOI)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Freedom of Information Act 2000 provides public access to information held by public authorities. 
It does this in two ways:

• public authorities are obliged to publish certain information about their activities; and
• members of the public are entitled to request information from public authorities.

In 2015 GCC introduced a new electronic system for the recording and processing of FOI requests. 

This audit will review the processing of a sample of requests to ensure compliance with the legislation 
and relevant Codes of Practice.

Priority 2

P
age 122



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

17

Pensions

Pension Payments Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Gloucestershire County Council Pensions Administration team is responsible for the administration of 
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) within the geographical area of Gloucestershire. 
They are responsible for processing pension payments. 

The Pensions Administration team administers the pensions for 180 different employers with circa 
18,000 active members and 16,000 deferred members. 

This audit will review a sample of calculations relating to active members, whether for retirement or 
early leaving and will need to take into account both the pre and post LGPS 2014 schemes.

Priority 1

Teachers Pension 
Scheme

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

On 1 April 2015, the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) changed, becoming both a final salary 
scheme and a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme.  The TPS is administered on 
behalf of the Department for Education by Capita. GCC provides payroll services for both schools and 
some academies. As part of this role they are required to deduct both employers and employees 
contributions in accordance with the scheme and pay this to the TPS. They are also required to 
supply information on salary and service to the TPS. This review will provide assurance that this is 
being undertaken in accordance with the legislation.

Priority 1

P
age 123



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

18

Adults Cluster 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Active Together / 
Healthy Together 
and Children’s 
Activity Fund 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

During 2015-16, Internal Audit undertook a review of the governance, management and monitoring 
arrangements of the Active Together, Healthy Together and the Children’s Activity Fund. With 
£2,915,000 funding to improve health and wellbeing in communities right across the county; the aim 
of the review was to seek assurance that the expenditure incurred by grant applicants has been made 
in line with the Council’s Accounting Instruction 15 and the criteria of the grant condition. 

The findings emanating from the review resulted in a limited assurance rating in respect of the control 
environment and whilst the Active Together and Healthy Together schemes have ceased the 
Children’s Activity Fund will continue during 2016/17. 

Therefore, a further review of this area is to be undertaken to establish whether the agreed 
management actions to address the high priority recommendations have now been fully implemented; 
and as part of the monitoring arrangements, validation checks are being undertaken to ensure that 
the grants awarded have been spent in line with the grant criteria.  

Priority 1

Annual Care 
Assessment Process 
(re-
assessment/reviews)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Individuals who have been assessed as being eligible for social care support under the national ‘fair 
access to care’ criteria should also have their assessed needs periodically reviewed to ensure that 
their assessed needs continue to be met.

This review will seek to determine whether there are effective governance arrangements in place to 
ensure that timely reviews/reassessments of current service user’s needs are being undertaken.

Priority 1

P
age 124



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

19

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Contract 
Management 
Arrangements Adults 
and Public Health

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

As a commissioning organisation 70% of the Council’s income flows back out to external third party 
service providers and this will increase further over the coming years. Managing these relationships 
therefore becomes an increasingly vital component to ensure that quality, service and cost 
outcomes are met or exceeded.

An approach to the development and implementation of contract management activities across the 
Council was adopted by the Chief Officers Management Team in July 2013, with the expectation 
that all contracts would be aligned to these principles in the forthcoming 12-18 months.

This review will seek to establish whether there are effective arrangements in place to drive forward 
the implementation of the requirements of the Contract Management Framework across all Adult 
Social Care and Public Health contracts.

Priority 1

P
age 125



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

20

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Deaths and 
Discharges 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

The demand for external care services for adults within Gloucestershire over recent years has 
placed significant pressure upon the Council’s Adult Services external care budget.

The largest pressure resides with the budget for older people and people with physical disabilities. 
This budget has been reported as an overspend for a number of years and continues to be under 
significant pressure this financial year.

The financial value of reported deaths and discharges for older people and people with disabilities 
represents on average more than 20% of the actual annual spend on external care. 

Notifications of a service user’s death may be received into the Council through various pathways, 
such as the Customer Services Contact Centre, the Registrars Service “Tell Us Once” system, 
notification from a family member/representative into a service area and provider notification either 
direct to, the Commissioning Personalisation Adults and Children’s (CPAC) team or the Disability 
Commissioning (DC) team.

In light of the above, Internal Audit undertook a review of this area during 2015/16. The findings 
emanating from the review led to a limited assurance opinion being provided on the control 
environment. Therefore, a further review is to be undertaken during 2016/17 to establish whether 
the agreed management actions to address the recommendations made have been fully 
implemented.

Priority 1

P
age 126



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

21

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Direct Payments 
(Adults – Older 
People)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Consultancy

Direct payments and personal budgets are fundamental to achieving the Government’s aims of 
personalisation and self directed support which are intended to give people more choice and control 
over the services they need.

The Council wants service users to have as much freedom as possible to design their own social care 
packages. To put this into practice, direct payments will be offered at every assessment and 
reassessment to all eligible people. 

Self directed support is about choice. People must be willing to have direct payments and be able to 
manage them, either independently or with whatever help is available. 

It is paramount that the Council has effective arrangements in place for the monitoring and review of 
these accounts and has recently developed new arrangements to address the known shortfalls in the 
control framework.

As a result of the improved monitoring arrangements it is anticipated that there may be a number of 
irregularities that are identified that will need to be further investigated. 

The Older People and Physical Disability Support Planning Lead has requested whether a provision 
of time could be made available within the 2016/17 IA plan in order for IA to be able to respond 
effectively should these occur.

Priority 1

P
age 127



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

22

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Electronic Call 
Monitoring (ECM) – 
Learning Disabilities 
(LD)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Audit Scope 1

Electronic call monitoring is a method of recording the date, time and amount of time spent with a 
person or persons receiving social care. It also allows for care delivery information to be provided in 
real-time and can aid the streamlining of financial processes, removing much of the administrative 
burden and expense of timesheet management and billing.

In the area of Support and Care the partnership (Gloucestershire County Council, National Health 
Service Gloucestershire, Gloucestershire Care Services and 2gether Trust) expend circa £24 million 
on the provision of externally provided support and care.

During 2015-16 the Council introduced the use of an Electronic Call Monitoring system within 
supported living settings in order to provide additional safeguards for both service users and staff; to 
aid care monitoring and to support the drive for efficiency savings.

Priority 1

Electronic Call 
Monitoring (ECM) – 
Older People (OP)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Audit Scope 2

The Council now intends to further roll out the use of the electronic call monitoring system under the 
new contract for the provision of domiciliary care services (circa £16million).  

These reviews will seek to determine the effectiveness of the Council’s new arrangements for 
monitoring contract compliance using the ECM system.   

Priority 1

P
age 128



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

23

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Financial 
Assessment and 
Benefits Team 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP) 

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

Gloucestershire County Council’s Adult Social Care relies on people who use services making a 
financial contribution to the cost of providing them, (if they are able to afford to do so). 

The Financial Assessments & Benefits (FAB) team ensure that any financial contributions required 
from service users for residential and non-residential Social Care services are calculated fairly and in 
accordance with GCC policies and Government guidelines.  The team also help to maximise income 
for individuals and maximise charging revenue for GCC by providing advice and practical assistance 
to all service users, their partners and carers to ensure that they are in receipt of their full welfare 
benefit entitlement.  

A review of the FAB team was undertaken as part of the 2014-15 Internal Audit plan. The findings 
emanating from the review resulted in a limited assurance opinion being given in respect of the level 
of assurance over the Service’s Risk Identification Maturity and the Control Environment.

A follow-up review was subsequently undertaken during 2015/16, the review highlighted that whilst 
management had responded positively and quickly to the findings emanating from the 2014-15 audit 
review and good progress had been made in implementing the agreed management actions to the 
recommendations made; further ongoing work was required to ensure that not only are there robust 
systems and processes in place for the management, monitoring and delivery of financial 
assessments, but that the arrangements are operating effectively and are shown to be sustainable.

In light of the above, Internal Audit will undertake a further follow-up review during 2016/17. 

Priority 1

P
age 129



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

24

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Gloucestershire 
Care Partnership 
(Order of St John)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

The Gloucestershire Care Partnership (GCP) is a single purpose vehicle set up and funded by 
contributions from the Orders of St John Care Trust (OSJCT) and the Bedfordshire Pilgrims Housing 
Association (BPHA). The Partnership arrangement allows for the OSJCT to provide care under a sub 
let arrangement, as it is to GCP that the Council has let its former Elderly People’s Homes and with 
whom it has contracted the refurbishment/development/rationalisation of properties under an agreed 
Estates Strategy.

In 2012-13, Internal Audit undertook a planned review of the GCP commercial agreement to look at 
the strategic fit of the Estates Strategy to ensure that it was in line with the Council’s corporate 
objectives for the future delivery of adult care provision within Gloucestershire. 

During 2014-15, we revisited this area to determine the effectiveness of the current:

 contract management and monitoring arrangements; and 
 to determine whether the agreed management actions to address the recommendations 

emanating from the 2012-13 Internal Audit review had now been fully implemented.

The findings emanating from the 2014-15 review resulted in a limited assurance rating in respect of 
the control environment.  Therefore, a further review of this area is to be undertaken during 2016-17 
to establish whether the agreed management actions to address the high priority recommendations 
have now been fully implemented.  

Priority 1

P
age 130



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

25

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Gloucestershire 
Industrial Services 
(GIS) Healthcare

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

During 2014-15 the Council’s Commercial Services Team undertook a Category Review of 
Gloucestershire Industrial Services (GIS) Healthcare to ensure that the Council has in place effective, 
legally compliant, value for money processes for the procurement of medical equipment and aids, 
whilst ensuring that prescribing professionals have confidence in the products and services being 
delivered.

The findings emanating from the review resulted in a series of recommendations and it was agreed 
that an implementation plan would be developed to support the implementation of the agreed actions.

This review will seek to determine whether the agreed actions have now been fully implemented.

Priority 1

Mental Health 
Services

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has a Section 75 agreement in place with the Clinical Commissioning Group 
Gloucestershire (CCGG).  Section 75 agreements can include arrangements for pooling resources 
and delegating certain National Health Service and local authority health-related functions to the other 
partner(s) if it would lead to an improvement in the way those functions are exercised.

The Section 75 agreement provides for the CCGG to contract with the 2Gether Trust to deliver the 
Mental Health service on behalf of the Council.

The 2015-16 budget is circa £6m and is being pressurised with a forecast overspend of 
approximately £600k. 

Internal Audit will review the governance arrangements for this agreement with a view to determining 
whether these are adequate and are operating effectively.

Priority 1P
age 131



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

26

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Outcome Based 
Commissioning

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Consultancy

Outcomes Based Commissioning includes 3 inter-linked work strands namely:

 Specialist Support Brokerage;

 All Age All Disability Contract Frameworks; and

 An Outcomes Framework for Delivery to use to purchase outcomes based support for 
individuals.

The work in this area has already commenced to incorporate a more integrated approach between 
physical disability, mental health and learning disability commissioning, and to incorporate children 
with disabilities into the overall planning.

The role of Internal Audit will be to provide professional risk and control advice, support and challenge 
during the delivery of the project.

Priority 1

Reshaping of 
Delivery Function – 
All Age Disability

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Consultancy

This transformational project aims to create a single, joined up, all-age and disability service which 
delivers on the principles of Building Better Lives. This will require structural change and will involve 
broadening the bridges across communities to include transport, leisure and housing support.

The role of Internal Audit will be to provide professional risk and control advice, support and challenge 
during the delivery of the project.

Priority 1

P
age 132



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

27

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Workforce 
Development of 
Social Workers 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

During 2013-14, Internal Audit undertook a review of the Council’s arrangements to drive through the 
social care reform guidelines as outlined in the Social Work Reform Board’s Standards for Employers 
of Social Workers in England.

The findings emanating from the review resulted in a limited assurance opinion in respect of the control 
environment. During 2015/16 Internal Audit obtained a position statement from management of the 
action taken to date.  

A further full review of this area is to be undertaken during 2016-17 to establish whether the agreed 
management actions to address the high priority recommendations have now been fully implemented.  

Priority 1

P
age 133



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

28

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the commencement 
of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Gloucestershire 
Industrial Services 
(GIS) -  Stock 
Control

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

GIS Healthcare is a Gloucestershire County Council service organisation, operating as the in-house 
provider of community medical equipment, aids and adaptations that enable service users in 
Gloucestershire to live at home; return home from hospital or intermediary accommodation. They are 
responsible for the delivery, collection, refurbishment and servicing of the community equipment.

GIS Healthcare has been awarded the Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES) contract from 
April 2014 to April 2017 with a possible 2 year extension clause. The new contract requires GIS 
Healthcare to carry out a major review of their business, structure, operating practices and procedures.

In addition, demand for the service/equipment is anticipated to rise due to:

 A rise in the number of older people being cared for at home;
 Increasingly complex and/or chronic medical conditions being supported at home;
 Avoidance of hospital admission or early discharge from hospital through increased care 

support at home;
 More technically complex and expensive equipment to support these conditions;
 Increasing need for bariatric equipment i.e. (obesity/plus sizes) users over 22 stone; and
 Changes in the service delivery model, requiring a 24 hour turnaround and urgent 4 hour call 

out service.

This review will seek to determine whether there are adequate systems and processes in place for the 
management /valuation of stock.

Priority 2

P
age 134



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

29

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the commencement 
of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Spot Purchase of 
Day Care

Identified as part of 
Risk Based 
Internal Audit 
Planning (RBIAP)

The demand for external care services for adults within Gloucestershire over recent years has placed 
significant pressure upon the Council’s Adult Services external care budget.  In particular, the 
external care budget for older people and people with physical disabilities has been reported as an 
overspend for a number of years and continues to be under significant pressure.

During 2015/16 the forecast outturn for spot purchased Day Care outside of care homes is reported 
to be in the region of circa £1m. 

This review will look to determine the adequacy of the systems and processes in place for the 
validation/authorisation of provider invoices.  

Priority 2

P
age 135



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

30

Children and Families Cluster

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Alternative 
Provision Schools 
(APSs)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

There are three Alternative Provision Schools in Gloucestershire (Chelt/Tewks; Glos/Forest; 
Stroud/Cotswold).  In the last two years these schools have become independent providers and are 
now Local Authority maintained schools in their own right.  They are in receipt of base funding, top-up 
funding per pupil plus additional funding for procuring provision through other providers.

The LA commissions a set number of places for pupils that are excluded from mainstream education. 
This audit will review the financial management and governance processes in place at one of the 
APSs to provide assurance that the funds are being spent appropriately on the pupils and for the 
purposes intended.

Priority 1

P
age 136



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

31

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Community and 
Interaction Centres 
(Primary)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Communication & Interaction Centres have been operational for over five years and are an integral 
part of schools. The Centres are staffed by Centre Managers, specialist teachers, Teaching 
Assistants and experienced Speech and Language Therapists. The children who attend the Centres 
have severe to profound communication and interaction difficulties. Their needs are reviewed and 
assessed by a Gloucestershire County Council SEN Caseworker before they are given a place 
through an admissions panel.

Each child has an Educational Health Care Plan, setting out their particular difficulties and any special 
requirements needed for them to access learning. The children follow the National Curriculum and 
have opportunities to integrate into the mainstream classes as and when appropriate.

There are six C & I Centres in Gloucestershire (five Primaries and one Secondary) with a recent 
expansion of provision.  Each Centre has 10 places, except for one which has 20 places.  These 
places are automatically funded through the DSG budget whether the places are filled or not.  In 
addition to the places funding, the schools also receive a flat rate top-up for each child based on their 
actual attendance.  The total budget for all C & I Centres for 2015/16 was £793k.

This audit will review the arrangements at two of the Primary C & I Centres to ensure that the SEN 
funding is being spent in accordance with the purposes for which it has been given.

Priority 1

P
age 137



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

32

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Early Years – 2 
Year Olds

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Nursery Education Funding (NEF) is funded through the Dedicated Schools Grant and is based on 
the Early Years census.  The budget for NEF for 2 year-olds for 2016/17 is £3,306,551.

Funded free early years places are available for some two year old children up to 15 hours a week. 
Providers must have signed Gloucestershire County Council's Agreement for Early Years Funded 
Free Entitlement for 2, 3 & 4 year olds and for inclusion to the Directory of Early Years Providers 
2014/15, to be able to offer a funded free place to parents.

There are certain criteria that have to be met before the parents will be eligible for this funding and 
‘proof of eligibility’ has to be shown to the provider.

This audit will review the systems in place for making payments for 2 year-olds to Nursery providers 
to ensure such payments are made in the correct amount, on a timely basis and in respect of children 
actually attending.  

Priority 1

P
age 138



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

33

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Gloucestershire 
Music Service 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

Gloucestershire Music (GM), which is based at the Colwell Centre, provides a music service to 
schools and young people, which includes whole class music lessons, music groups and workshops.  
An instrument hire service is also provided to individuals, including the general public, as well as a 
repair service for instruments.

GM does not receive any funding from Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) but is funded by a 
mixture of grant from the Department for Education and income from its activities.  It is commissioned 
to provide aspects of the National Plan for Music Education (NPME) from Make Music 
Gloucestershire, the music hub for Gloucestershire (‘The Hub’).  The Council acts as the accountable 
body for this grant and has separated commissioning from delivery.  The majority of the income for 
GM comes from the grant but the instrument hire scheme, which generates approximately £130,000 
per annum and membership of music groups, which generates approximately £80,000 per annum 
form the other main sources of income.  It is therefore important that records are kept up to date and 
there is a robust system in place to identify income that is due.  It is also essential that income is 
collected on a timely basis and that there are sound debt management procedures in place to follow 
up any outstanding debts.

An audit of GM was undertaken during 2015/16 where the focus of the audit was on income, 
inventory, staffing and data security.  A limited assurance opinion was given in relation to the control 
environment.  As a result of this a follow-up audit will be undertaken during 2016/17 to ensure that the 
agreed recommendations have been implemented.  The scope of the audit will also be extended to 
include procurement processes.

Priority 1

P
age 139



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

34

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

PODS Trial Glos 
City

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Pods trial involved a one-off investment to trial new ways of working within children and young 
people’s social work (Circa £1.5 million over 2 years).

Gloucester pods have tested a multi-disciplinary approach to children’s social work.  It has also tested 
a different model of social work organisation where small patch-based Pods have shared ownership 
of cases.

The Pods now pick up all the children and families social work for Gloucester City which equates to 
half of the county’s children’s social work. 

Significant monitoring and evaluation is in place and some significant improvements have been 
observed but it is not yet clear whether the additional investment will result in sufficient gains.

Internal Audit has been requested to provide independent assurance that the current programme 
management, monitoring and evaluation processes (including the decision making processes) are 
robust.   

Priority 1

P
age 140



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

35

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Referral and 
Assessment 
Processes

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Referrals are received into the Helpdesk and then passed onto the Referral and Assessment teams 
and/or the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as appropriate for the assessments to be 
undertaken.  If support is required, this is then passed to the Children and Families teams to develop 
a plan. 

Internal Audit will work with the business to compliment any other reviews to provide assurance over 
the effectiveness of the Referral and Assessment processes.

Specifically, the audit will focus on the following areas:

 The extent to whether the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) has impacted on decision 
making;

 Whether the children are being seen alone;
 A review of the end-to-end referral and assessment process to determine whether there are 

any unnecessary processes and stakeholder involvement that cause delays;
 Whether decision making and responses are appropriate to need;
 When cases are referred to other agencies, whether there is clarity about this; and
 Whether all relevant agencies are contacted as part of the assessment to inform analysis and 

planning.

Priority 1

Schools Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The schools audited will be based on a risk assessment. Priority 1

P
age 141



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

36

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Section 20 -
Children’s Act

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Section 20 agreements (of the Children Act) are voluntary arrangements between the local authority 
and the parents where they cannot provide their children with suitable accommodation or care 
(temporarily or permanently).  However, the parental responsibility remains with the parents until 
permanence arrangements are agreed in court, e.g. adoption, Special Guardianship Orders etc.

As at February 2016, there were 566 children in care of which 213 (38%) were under a Section 20 
voluntary arrangement. GCC has reviewed its Section 20 agreements (which can cause a rise in 
cases going into care proceedings as well as children being returned to their families) and put 
arrangements in place to ensure that they are more effectively managed.

Internal Audit has been requested to undertake a review of the processes to provide assurance that 
they are continuing to operate in practice. The audit will also include a review of the role of the 
Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) in assisting with tackling ‘drift’ as well as the role of Legal 
Planning and the Forum to ensure that purposeful work is going on for children waiting to potentially 
go to court.

Priority 1

P
age 142



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

37

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Section 17 – 
Children’s Act 
Spend (non-
Auriga)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Audit scope 1

Auriga is an organisation that has expertise in ‘grant giving and help’ schemes, specialising in 
working with local authorities and managing funds on their behalf.  Auriga’s corporate schemes are 
individually tailored, enabling them to work in partnership with the local authority to reduce 
administration costs and help organisations meet their own corporate objectives.

Children and Families teams and Referral and Assessment teams can provide support for families by 
using the Section 17 budget where the families would be eligible for this.  For 2015/16 the total 
Section 17 budget was £185,490 with a forecast outturn of £473,442 (over 100% overspend).

This audit will review all Section 17 spend that does not go through Auriga (goods are procured 
through Auriga but services are procured by the Teams themselves).  A sample of Teams will be 
selected where the systems and processes for procuring the services will be reviewed to provide 
assurance that spending decisions are soundly based, authorised, quality assured and appropriately 
coded to identify the nature of the spend and whether the spend is in relation to over 11s or under 
11s.

Priority 1

P
age 143



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

38

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Section 17 Spend 
(Auriga)

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Audit scope 2

Under Section 17(1) of the Children Act 1989, local authorities have a general duty to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children within their area who are In Need; and so far as is consistent with that 
duty, to promote the upbringing of such children by their families, by providing a range and level of 
services appropriate to those children’s needs.  For this reason, the term "Section 17" is often used 
as a shorthand way of describing the statutory authority for providing services to Children in Need 
who are not Looked After.

From April 2013, the effect of the Welfare Reform Act has abolished Community Care Grants and 
Crisis Loans.  All Authorities received funding from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
with the expectation that they would make arrangements to make an offer of support to those in crisis 
from April 2013.  GCC’s Offer provided one-off practical support or other forms of assistance for 
people who were eligible, where the emphasis was on the use of a non-cash scheme, recycled goods 
and food parcels.  A contract was awarded to Auriga Services Limited (Auriga) for the delivery of this 
service.

In December 2015 Cabinet approved the process for tendering the management of the Welfare 
Reform Scheme which included spending for social care welfare where appropriate. The contract was 
awarded to Auriga Services Ltd for one year from April 2016. 

This audit will review the effectiveness, specifically for the social care welfare spends, of these new 
contractual arrangements with Auriga Services Ltd. The audit objective will be to provide assurance 
that:

 funds are being allocated by social care workers for the purposes detailed in Section 17;
 spending decisions are being consistently applied across localities; and
 spending is being properly recorded and monitored by both the provider and the Council.

Priority 2

P
age 144

http://www.proceduresonline.com/resources/keywords_online/nat_key/keywords/in_need.html
http://www.proceduresonline.com/resources/keywords_online/nat_key/keywords/looked_after.html


Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

39

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Children in Care 
Project

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Agency budget is currently overspent by £2.5m.  A project has been set up where an entirely 
new approach to the use of external residential care is being planned as well as what the associated 
partner contributions should be, i.e. Education (Dedicated Schools Grant – DSG), Health (NHS) and 
Social Care.  One of the aims is to replace the provision currently procured through the Agency 
budget by block purchasing residential care.

There is a need to understand what has not worked well in the past so that lessons learned can be 
identified to ensure that they are not repeated going forward.  There is also a need to understand how 
residential care is procured elsewhere and what the demand is.

Internal Audit will provide an independent project management assurance role throughout the course 
of the project.

Priority 2

P
age 145



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

40

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Recoupment Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) can be placed in mainstream or special schools out-
of-county due to insufficient provision being available in-county.  Where this occurs, GCC still has to 
pay for the cost of the education and to this end invoices are received from the other local authorities 
(OLAs).  The cost of this provision for 2015/16 was £970k.

Other local authorities also place children with SEN in Gloucestershire schools.  Where the children 
are also in care and from Welsh authorities, GCC has generated income of £144k for 2015/16 for this 
provision.

The budget for placing children with SEN in other local authority schools is £591k but the net position 
for 2015/16 is £826k (£970k - £144k) which has resulted in an overspend.

This audit will review the systems and procedures in place for recoupment (both from OLAs and to 
OLAs) to ensure that all income due is realised and that costs incurred are valid and accurate.

Priority 2

P
age 146



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

41

Communities Cluster

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Accountable Body 
– Homes and 
Communities 
Agency

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is the accountable body for a Homes and Communities 
Agency (HCA) project for the delivery of a new Further Education Campus and the replacement of St 
Whites Primary School in Cinderford, Forest of Dean, Gloucestershire. To date, match funding of 
£1.35m has been provided and the Council is expecting to enter into a new funding agreement for a 
further £4.075m.

 This audit will review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in operation.

Priority 1

Highways and 
Transportation 
Services contract

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

In December 2013, the Council awarded a managed services contract to AMEY for the provision of a 
number of highways and transportation services from 1st April 2014. The contract will initially be for a 
5 year period with options to extend up to a maximum duration of 11 years – value circa £150m - 
£450m. This audit will review the robustness of the arrangements established between the two 
organisations for the ordering of works through to receipt of the invoice from the contractor requesting 
payment, to the actual payment.

Priority 1

Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue 
Service (GFRS) – 
Control Room 
Refresh Project

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

GFRS are in receipt of £1.8m to help fund the Control Room Refresh Project. The audit will review 
the efficacy of the Control Room Refresh Project Action Plan, the associated implementation plan and 
delivery timescales. Also to consider the Capital Investment Plan to ensure appropriate expenditure 
and governance arrangements.

Priority 1

Household 
Recycling Centre 
Contract

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The contract for the management of the Household Recycling Centres (HRCs) is due to expire in 
August 2016. The contract is around £700k per annum. The Council are considering alternative 
procurement. This audit will review the effectiveness of the procurement, contract management and 
governance arrangements.

Priority 1

P
age 147



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

42

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP)
Growth Deal

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

In June 2011, the Secretary of State granted Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) status to Gfirst Ltd. 
The government has made various funding streams available (e.g. Growing Places £8.4m, Local 
Growth Deal £77m 2016/2021) where the LEP will be heavily involved in the decision making process 
as to how the money is subsequently spent. All of the funding is paid to GCC in the first instance as 
the Accountable Body and potentially can place officers in a difficult position between their role as a 
“scheme promoter” and the wider GCC governance role for the specific funding. This audit will review:

 the governance and decision making processes relating to the allocation of the funding under 
the new structures, taking into consideration the findings emanating from the audit completed 
in 2013/14 and any new government initiatives; and

 how this potential conflict of interest is being managed to minimise the risks to GCC and to 
the individuals concerned.

Priority 1

Public Transport 
Contracts – 
Decision Making 

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Limited Assurance 
Follow Up

The Council awards a significant number of transport contracts and it is important that the rationale to 
support the decision taken is documented in case of challenge. The audit completed in 2015/16 
concluded that the documentation to support the decisions taken was below the new requirements of 
the Council’s Scheme of Delegation and that too many extensions and variations to the existing 
contracts were being signed retrospectively. This audit will review the action taken by the Integrated 
Transport Unit to address these concerns.

Priority 1

P
age 148



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

43

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Residual Waste 
Construction 
Phase

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Residual Waste Project Manager has prepared a contract management programme, to cover the 
construction phase of the project. This is anticipated to last for three and a half years from January 
2016, with the facility becoming operational in July 2019. The total contract value of the residual 
waste project is in the region of £500m. Delays in the construction and commissioning of the facility 
would create a reputational risk for the authority.  

During the construction phase the Residual Waste team will need to ensure that the contract 
guidance manual is completed, including clear instructions on how the payment mechanism operates 
in preparation for when the plant becomes operational.

Internal Audit will review the plan examining the risk management and performance management 
arrangements to provide assurance that arrangements are in place to properly manage the 
construction phase of this major project. 

Priority 1

Street Lighting – 
LED Replacement 
and Term 
Maintenance 
Contract

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The authority has a street lighting asset of 60,000 street lights and 8,000 road signs and bollards.  
Following Cabinet approval, officers undertook a compliant tendering process which resulted in the 
award of a contract (effective from April 2016) with Skanska for Street Lighting – LED Replacement 
and Term Maintenance (estimated value £32m over the 12 year period). The funding for the 
replacement is being provided from a number of sources i.e. GCC reserves and SALIX funding (Salix 
Finance Ltd. delivers 100% interest-free capital to the public sector to improve their energy efficiency 
and reduce their carbon emissions), which in due course will be repaid through the savings generated 
from less energy consumption. This audit will review: 

 The contract management arrangements established to monitor the contractor’s performance 
for this high value contract; and

 The robustness of the loan repayment arrangements.

Priority 1

P
age 149



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

44

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Streetworks Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

It will be necessary for utility companies to gain access to the highway in order to install / repair their 
assets. The streetworks team will receive and process the applications and following completion of 
the work, officers will inspect the highway to ensure that this has been reinstated to the required 
standard. Income received from these applications is substantial in the region of £1m per annum. 
This audit will review the processes in place to ensure that the income is received and the re-
inspection process is robust and being undertaken.

Priority 1

Fleet Management Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Gloucestershire County Council owns a fleet of vehicles to help deliver its aims and objectives. Of the 
216 vehicles, 126 are in operation with GFRS and will be maintained at the Tri-service workshops in 
Waterwells. Consideration is now being given to move the servicing / maintenance of the remaining 
GCC vehicles to the Tri-service workshops with the combined fleet potentially being under one fleet 
manager. This audit will evaluate the effectiveness of the arrangements established by GCC to 
ensure its vehicles continue to operate in an effective and safe manner.

Priority 2

Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue 
Service – Business 
Continuity 
Management

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires all local authorities to have Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) arrangements in place, designed to ensure that as far as possible it can continue 
to operate the critical elements of the service in the event of disruption such as power loss, flooded 
premises or high staff absence. This audit will evaluate the effectiveness of the arrangements in 
place, including a review of generic and departmental plans to ensure that they are appropriate, 
realistic and up to date.

Priority 2

P
age 150



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

45

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope (detailed terms of reference is agreed with the client prior to the 
commencement of every audit to ensure audit activity is focused on risk)

Priority

Integrated 
Transport Unit – 
Use of a Dynamic 
Purchasing System

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council has a statutory duty (in accordance with the Education Act 1996) to provide home to 
school transport for “entitled” students. Furthermore, the 1985 Transport Act provided local authorities 
with the option to fund local bus services that are not provided on a commercial basis by transport 
operators and are deemed as “socially necessary”. The current annual cost of Home to School 
Transport is £13.5m and the annual cost of providing socially necessary local bus services is £2.0m 
(including Park & Ride). From March 2016, the ITU will be using a Dynamic Purchasing System 
(DPS) through which the vast majority of the transport contracts will be advertised and awarded. This 
audit will review how the DPS is being used to confirm compliance with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015.

Priority 2

Trading Standards 
– Use of 
Surveillance

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

Trading Standards will undertake surveillance operations during their investigatory role within the 
County which for example may lead to the seizing of counterfeit goods; or identifying the sale of 
cigarettes / alcohol by shops to underage parties. This audit will review existing practice to provide 
assurance that the requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (and subsequent 
legislation) have been followed.

Priority 2

Highways: 
Environmental 
Maintenance and 
Safety 
Maintenance

Identified as part of 
Risk Based Internal 
Audit Planning 
(RBIAP)

The Council’s appointed Highways and Transportation Services contractor is responsible for 
undertaking a number of maintenance work on behalf of the Council. Failure to complete this 
scheduled or remedial work could expose the Council to reputational damage or potential claims if the 
non-completion of the work is judged to have been a contributing factor leading to an accident or 
death.  This audit will review the adequacy of the processes established by the contractor and GCC in 
relation to (a) tree inspections / surgery and (b) lines (road markings) where the annual spend is circa 
£0.5m.

Priority 2

P
age 151



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

46

Internal Audit Certification 

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Better Care Fund Grant Certification Under the Disabled Facilities Capital Grant Determination 2015/16 (31/2582) Gloucestershire County 
Council has received an allocation of £2.5m grant funding for the period 1st April 2015 to 31st March 
2016.

This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to 
confirm to the Department for Communities and Local Government that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions of the Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Community 
Capacity – Capital 
Grant

Grant Certification Under the Department of Health’s Adult’s Personal Social Services Capital Grant Allocations for 
2013/14 and 2014/15, Gloucestershire County Council will receive £2.75m to support development in 
three key areas: personalisation, reform and efficiency.

This audit will provide assurance to the Department for Health that, in all significant respects, the 
conditions of the Specific Grant Determination(s) have been complied with.

Priority 1

Fire and Rescue 
Capital Funding 
Grants

Grant Certification The Council receives a number of capital grants from the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG):

 Fire and Rescue (Revenue and Capital) No. 2 Grant Determination 2011/12 (No. 31/1992) - 
£1.7m (£0.5m remaining for 2015/16).

 Fire and Rescue (Capital) Grant Determination 2014/15 (No. 31/2322 - £0.8m (£0.78 
remaining for 2015/16).

This audit will provide assurance to the Department for Communities and Local Government that, in 
all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific Grant Determination(s) have been complied 
with.

Priority 1

P
age 152



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

47

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Highways 
Maintenance 
Challenge Fund

Grant Certification Under the Specific Grant Determination: No 31/2530 – 2015/16  Gloucestershire County Council has 
received an allocation of £1.3m grant funding for the period 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016.

This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to 
confirm to the Department for Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific 
Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Local Transport 
Capital Block 
Funding 
(Integrated 
Transport and 
Highway 
Maintenance) 
Grant

Grant Certification Under the LTCBF Grant Determination, Gloucestershire County Council has received an allocation of 
£20.7m grant funding for the period 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016.

This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to 
confirm to the Department for Transport that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Specific 
Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Social Care Capital 
Grant

Grant Certification Under the Social Care (capital) Grant Determination 2015/16 (31/2534) Gloucestershire County 
Council has received an allocation of £1.4m grant funding for the period 1st April 2015 to 31st March 
2016.

This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to 
confirm to the Department of Health that, in all significant respects, the conditions of the Grant 
Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

Transforming Care 
Grant

Grant Certification Under the determination: Transforming Care - No: 31/2457 the Council has received £200k for use 
with services for people with complex needs. This audit will provide assurance to the Chief Executive 
and Chief Internal Auditor who are required to confirm to the Department of Health that, in all 
significant respects, the conditions of the Grant Determination have been complied with.

Priority 1

P
age 153



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

48

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Troubled Families 
Grant

Grant Certification The Prime Minister has confirmed his intention to ensure that 120,000 troubled families are ‘turned 
around’ by the end of this Parliament. The cost of these families to the public purse is very significant 
– approximately £9 billion a year, the vast majority spent on reacting to their problems and with most 
of the money not providing lasting results and changing lives.

As part of the Troubled Families programme, the Government has introduced a results-based funding 
scheme to incentivise and encourage local authorities and their partners to develop new ways of 
working with families, which focus on lasting change, recognising that these approaches are likely to 
incur extra costs but that they will result in a shift in the way we work with these families in the future, 
reducing costs and improving outcomes.

These audits will review whether the Troubled Families grant conditions and criteria have been met in 
support of any grant funding that is claimed.

Priority 1

P
age 154



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

49

Fraud

Audit Reason for Audit Outline Scope Priority

Fraud Investigation 
/ Detection 

To support the 
Annual Governance 
Statement 

To continue to develop and implement the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption arrangements based 
on latest best practice. This also includes an allocation for increasing the profile and awareness of 
anti–fraud, conducting pro-active anti-fraud reviews, undertaking investigations and administering the 
Council’s Confidential Reporting Hotline. 

Priority 1

National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI)

To support the 
Annual Governance 
Statement

To continue to co-ordinate activity as part of the NFI (a national data matching exercise that 
compares data/records (i.e. payroll, pensions, care home residents, insurance, creditors etc) for a 
wide range of public services), including ensuring that matches are investigated promptly and 
thoroughly, and reporting of results. 

Priority 1

Fraud Risk 
Management

To support the 
Annual Governance 
Statement

The CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre has issued guidance on actions to be taken to ‘Manage the Risk of 
Fraud and Corruption’ within an organisation. This allocation is to continue to self assess against the 
criteria set out in the guidance in order to direct/prioritise our counter fraud audit resources/activity 
accordingly.  

Priority 1

P
age 155



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 Appendix 1

50

Management Activity to Support the Audit Opinion

Activity Reason for Activity Outline Scope Priority

Transformational 
Change

Supporting 
transformational 
change

Internal Audit to support the Business with major transformational change programmes / projects. Priority 1

Annual 
Governance 
Statement

Statutory 
Requirement

This allocation is to lead on the development and implementation of the governance assurance 
framework and to produce the 2015/16 Annual Governance Statement.

Priority 1

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee / 
Member / Officer 
and CFO Reporting

Management activity 
to support the audit 
opinion 

This allocation covers Member and Officer reporting procedures, mainly to the Audit and Governance 
Committee and CoMT, plan formulation and monitoring, and regular reporting to and meeting with, 
the Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee, Director of Strategic Finance and the Head of 
Financial Management.  

Priority 1

Provision of 
Internal Control / 
General Advice

To support an 
effective control 
environment

This allocation allows auditors to facilitate the provision of risk and control advice which is regularly 
requested by officers within the authority, including maintained school based staff.

Priority 1

Quality Assurance 
and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP)
Includes the annual 
review of the 
effectiveness of 
Internal Audit and 
the external 
assessment 

Statutory 
Requirement

To support the AGS

The Accounts and Audit  Regulations 2015 states that Internal Audit should conform to ‘proper 
practices’ and it is advised that proper practice for internal audit is currently set out in the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2013. This allocation is to undertake an annual self 
assessment and when required, commission and deliver an external quality assessment, against the 
new standards. 

Priority 1

P
age 156



Internal Audit Plan 2016/17

51

Activity Reason for Activity Outline Scope Priority

External Working 
Groups 

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Attendance / work in relation to the Counties Chief Auditor Network (National Group), Midland 
Counties and Districts Chief Internal Auditors Group, and the Fraud and ICT Groups to enable 
networking and to share good practice.

Priority 1

External Audit 
Liaison

Management activity 
to support the audit 
opinion

The External Auditor and the Chief Internal Auditor regularly meet to discuss plans and audit findings, 
to ensure that a “managed audit” approach is followed in relation to the provision of internal and 
external audit services. 

Priority 1

Carry Forwards Audit Activity 
outstanding

This allocation provides for the completion of various 2015/2016 audits which require finalising. Priority 1

Internal Working 
Groups

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Internal Audit is frequently asked to nominate representatives for working groups to advise on risk 
and control. 

Priority 2

Recommendation 
Monitoring

Activity to support 
the audit opinion

Whilst it is management’s responsibility to manage the risks associated with their 
outcomes/objectives, this allocation enables Internal Audit to monitor management’s progress with 
the implementation of high priority recommendations.

Priority 2

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 15th April 2016 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit (IA) activity progress report 2015/2016

Purpose of Report: To inform Members of the progress of Internal Audit activity in relation 
to the 2015/2016 Internal Audit Programme and provide a progress 
report in relation to those audits undertaken during the period January 
to March 2016.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Committee:

1. Notes the amendments to and progress against the 2015/2016 
Internal Audit Programme; 

2. Requests senior management attendance at the next meeting of 
the Committee to provide an update on the actions taken in 
relation to the recommendations made in the limited assurance 
reports. 

3. Assurance opinions provided in relation to the effectiveness of the 
Council’s control environment comprising risk management, 
control and governance arrangements as a result of the internal 
audit activity completed to date.

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer; Head of Internal Audit & Risk Management Shared 
Service and Gloucestershire County Council’s Insurance Services. Tel: 
01452 328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker – Finance Director 
Tel no: 01452 328469.
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an 
independent, objective assurance opinion to be provided to those 
charged with governance that the key risks associated with the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives are being adequately 
controlled. 

Page 159

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Gloucestershire County Council’s Internal Audit function conforms to the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

 

INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY  
PROGRESS REPORT 

2015/2016

Page 160



(1) Introduction

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local 
Government Act (S151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter states that 
a relevant authority “must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness 
of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance”. Within Gloucestershire County Council the Internal 
Audit function, which sits within Strategic Finance, carries out the work required to satisfy 
this legislative requirement and reports its findings and conclusions to management and to 
this Committee.

The guidance accompanying the Regulations recognises the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) as representing “proper internal audit practices”. The standards define 
the way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established and undertakes its 
functions. 

(2) Responsibilities 

Management are responsible for establishing and maintaining appropriate risk management 
processes, control systems (financial and non financial) and governance arrangements. 

Internal Audit plays a key role in providing independent assurance and advising the 
organisation that these arrangements are in place and operating effectively.

Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance for the Council. There are a range of 
external audit and inspection agencies as well as management processes which also 
provide assurance and these are set out in the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 
and its Annual Governance Statement.  

(3) Purpose of this Report

One of the key requirements of the standards is that the Chief Internal Auditor should 
provide progress reports on internal audit activity to those charged with governance. This 
report summarises:

 the progress against the 2015/2016 Internal Audit Programme, including the 
assurance opinions on the effectiveness of risk management and control processes;

 the outcomes of the Internal Audit activity during the period January to March 2016; 
and

 special investigations/counter fraud activity.

Page 161



Appendix 1

2

(4) Progress against the 2015/2016 Internal Audit Programme, including the 
assurance opinions on risk and control

The schedule provided at Appendix 1 provides the summary of 2015/16 audits which have 
not previously been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee, including, very 
importantly, four limited assurance audit opinions on control.

The schedule provided at Appendix 2 contains a list of all of the audit activity undertaken 
during 2015/2016, which includes, where relevant, the assurance opinions on the 
effectiveness of risk management arrangements and control processes in place to manage 
those risks and the dates where a summary of the activities outcomes has been presented 
to the Audit and Governance Committee. Explanations of the meaning of these opinions are 
shown below. 

Assurance 
levels

Risk Identification Maturity Control Environment

Substantial Risk Managed
Service area fully aware of the risks relating to the area 
under review and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, finance, reputation, 
legal, the environment client/customer/partners, and staff.  
All key risks are accurately reported and monitored in line 
with the Corporate Risk Management Strategy. 

 System Adequacy – Robust 
framework of controls ensures 
that there is a high likelihood of 
objectives being achieved

 Control Application – Controls are 
applied continuously or with minor 
lapses

Satisfactory
Risk Aware
Service area has an awareness of the risks relating to the 
area under review and the impact that these may have 
on service delivery, other service areas, finance, 
reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners, and staff, however some key 
risks are not being accurately reported and monitored in 
line with the Corporate Risk Management Strategy.

 System Adequacy – Sufficient 
framework of key controls for 
objectives to be achieved but, 
control framework could be 
stronger

 Control Application – Controls are 
applied but with some lapses

Limited
Risk Naïve 
Due to an absence of accurately and regularly 
reporting and monitoring of the key risks in line with 
the Corporate Risk Management Strategy, the service 
area has not demonstrated an satisfactory 
awareness of the risks relating to the area under 
review and the impact that these may have on 
service delivery, other service areas, finance, 
reputation, legal, the environment, 
client/customer/partners and staff.  

 System Adequacy – Risk of 
objectives not being achieved 
due to the absence of key 
internal controls

 Control Application – 
Significant breakdown in the 
application of control

Page 162



Appendix 1

3

(4a) Summary of Internal Audit Assurance Opinions on Risk and Control 

The pie charts provided below show the summary of the risk and control assurance opinions 
provided within each category of opinion i.e. substantial, satisfactory and limited in relation to 
the audit activity undertaken during the period April 2015 to March 2016.

Page 163



Appendix 1

4

(4b) Limited Control Assurance Opinions 

Where audit activity record that a limited assurance opinion on control has been provided, 
the Audit and Governance Committee may request Senior Management attendance to the 
next meeting of the Committee to provide an update as to their actions taken to address the 
risks and associated recommendations identified by Internal Audit. 

(4c) Audit Activity where a Limited Assurance Opinion has been provided on 
Control

During the period January to March 2016, four audit reviews have been provided with a 
limited assurance opinion on control which relates to Financial Assessments and Benefits 
Team; Active Together, Healthy Together and Children’s Activity Fund grant schemes; 
Capital – Virements and Delegated Powers; and the exempt limited assurance audit report. 
(please see pages 5 - 11 of this report for further details).

It is important to note that whilst a limited assurance opinion has been provided in these 
instances, management have responded positively to the recommendations made and 
actions are being taken to address them.

(4d) Satisfactory Control Assurance Opinions

Where audit activity record that a satisfactory assurance opinion on control has been 
provided, where recommendations have been made to reflect some improvements in 
control, the Committee can take assurance that improvement actions have been agreed with 
management to address these.

(4e) Internal Audit Recommendations

During the period January to March 2016 Internal Audit made, in total, 106 
recommendations to improve the control environment, 44 of these being high priority 
(fundamental) recommendations (100% of these being accepted by management) and 62 
being medium priority (significant) recommendations (100% accepted by management). The 
Committee can take assurance that all high priority recommendations will remain under 
review by Internal Audit, by obtaining regular management updates, until the required action 
has been fully completed. 

(4f) Risk Assurance Opinions

During the period January to March 2016 there were no limited assurance opinions on risk.

However, where limited assurance opinions on risk are provided, the reports are given to the 
appropriate risk champion to ensure that the risks highlighted by Internal Audit are placed on 
the service area’s risk register. The monitoring of the implementation of the 
recommendations is then owned by the relevant manager and helps to further embed risk 
management into the day to day management, risk monitoring and reporting processes. 

In addition, the Corporate Risk Management Team is provided with the Internal Audit reports 
where a limited assurance opinion is provided, to enable their prioritisation of risk 
management support. 

Page 164



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

5

Completed Internal Audit Activity during the period January to March 2016

Summary of Limited Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Adults Cluster

Audit Activity: Financial Assessment and Benefits Team

Background

Gloucestershire County Council’s Adult Social Care relies on people who use services 
making a financial contribution to the cost of providing them, (if they are able to afford to do 
so). 

The Financial Assessments & Benefits (FAB) team ensure that any financial contributions 
required from service users for residential and non-residential Social Care services are 
calculated fairly and in accordance with GCC policies and Government guidelines.  The 
team also help to maximise income for individuals and maximise charging revenue for GCC 
by providing advice and practical assistance to all service users, their partners and carers to 
ensure that they are in receipt of their full welfare benefit entitlement. In addition, the FAB 
team also assess Adoption Allowances, Fostering Allowances and Special Guardianship 
Allowances for Children’s services and for Disabled Facility Grants for both Adults and 
Children.

In light of the above, it was agreed that a planned review of the FAB team would be 
undertaken as part of the 2014-15 Internal Audit plan. The findings emanating from the 
review resulted in a limited assurance opinion being provided in respect of the level of 
assurance over the Service’s Risk Identification Maturity and the Control Environment.

Scope

The focus of this review was to determine whether the agreed management actions to 
address the high priority recommendations emanating from this review have now been fully 
implemented, ensuring that there are now effective systems and processes in place for the 
management, monitoring and delivery of financial assessments. 

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory 

Control Assurance – Limited

Key findings

The review has highlighted that:

More formal arrangements are now in place that set out the agreed standards / mutually-
accepted expectations between the FAB team and the Administration Hub. There is also 
greater clarity in respect of the roles and responsibilities for specific tasks and investment 
has been made in training the Administrative staff that are deployed to support the FAB 
team. 

Page 165



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

6

Communications between the Administrative staff and the Financial Assessment and 
Benefits team has improved however, going forward there are opportunities to strengthen 
these further through more formalised Service Level Agreement (SLA) meetings and team 
meetings that are inclusive of staff from both the FAB team and the Administration Hub.

Significant improvements have also been made to the method of collection and the data 
source for the FAB team’s performance metrics and going forward, further refinement will be 
required to ensure that these measures remain focused towards the service’s objectives. 
Overall, the source data for the respective service area’s performance metrics is being 
captured and reported upon within “In Phase” (corporate performance system), albeit that 
there is still an opportunity to further improve the accuracy and timeliness of reporting in 
some instances.  

Some performance metrics have been identified for the Administrative team and monitoring 
arrangements for a number of these are in place. This said the metrics that are captured 
within the FAB team’s Annual Business Plan are not currently being captured or reported 
upon within “In Phase” and this should be addressed going forward.  There is also an 
opportunity to further develop metrics to support the monitoring of the team’s performance 
against the service standards as laid down within the Service Level Agreement. 

Similarly, residual risk ratings as detailed within the Annual Business Plan need to be 
accurately and promptly reported within In Phase, for both Service areas.

It is encouraging that the Financial Assessment and Benefits officer’s visiting capacity is now 
being better utilised: in autumn 2014 only 60% of Visiting Officers’ capacity was being 
utilised, this had increased to an average of 90.7% for the four weeks reviewed in 
August/September 2015. It is unfortunate however that the FAB team have once again 
experienced a period of reduced staff resource in respect of the Financial Assessment and 
Benefits Visiting Officer posts during this review period and this has had an impact upon the 
level of outstanding referrals. The excel spreadsheet that is used to record and monitor the 
progress of referrals showed that there were 610 outstanding referrals as at the end of 
September. 

In addition, the excel spreadsheet used is proving to be very unstable. Data is being 
corrupted and the spreadsheet regularly crashes. Internal Audit is advised that this has led 
to some significant periods of staff downtime for the Administrative team. In the interim, a 
work around solution is in place however it is paramount that a more robust long term 
solution is found as soon as possible. Ongoing discussions are being held with the ICT 
provider to determine whether the Council’s electronic social care record ERIC could be 
adapted to provide a suitable solution.

The rollout of access to the Department for Works and Pension’s Customer Information 
System is still pending and therefore until this is operational, access to the information 
required is still limited to one assessment per telephone call which continues to impede the 
efficiency of the service. 

Page 166



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

7

Conclusion

It is pleasing to report that Management has responded positively and quickly to the findings 
emanating from the 2014-15 audit review and good progress has been made in 
implementing the agreed management actions to the recommendations made.

However, from the findings emanating from this follow up review, a limited assurance opinion 
in respect of the control environment can only be given at this point in time, as it is evident 
that the service is still on an improvement journey. Further ongoing work is required to 
ensure that not only are there robust systems and processes in place for the management, 
monitoring and delivery of financial assessments, but that the arrangements are operating 
effectively and are shown to be sustainable.

It is paramount that a suitable alternative system for the management and monitoring of 
financial assessments is concluded as a matter of priority. In addition, some further 
refinements to the Services’ performance and risk management arrangements are also 
needed, ensuring that these are embedded and integral to the management and monitoring 
of the effectiveness of service delivery. 

Management Actions

Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Whilst Internal Audit will include a follow up review within the 2016/2017 internal audit 
plan, it is recommended that senior management attend the next meeting of the Audit 
and Governance Committee and is requested to provide an update on the action taken 
in relation to each recommendation made.

Service Area: Adults, Public Health and Children & Families

Audit Activity: Active Together, Healthy Together and Children’s Activity Fund 
grant schemes 

Background
The Active Together, Healthy Together and Children’s Activity Fund grant schemes were 
launched in 2014.  Active Together funding totalled £2,120,000, to cover the years 2014/15 
and 2015/16, with each county councillor receiving £40,000 for their electoral division.  The 
purpose of the grant was to encourage more sport and physical activity across the county.

There was only one round of Healthy Together funding, in 2014/15.  The funding totalled 
£530,000; £10,000 per electoral division which was pooled per district and used to support 
health and wellbeing projects. The Children’s Activity Fund scheme was funded from the 
Children and Young People’s budget.  Councillors received £5,000 each year for their 
division for 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The aim of the scheme was to enhance the wellbeing of 
children and young people in Gloucestershire by increasing the range of activities and 
opportunities available to them across the county.

Page 167



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

8

As at the end of June 2015, 61% of the available grant funding for Active Together had been 
awarded.  Grants awarded from the Children’s Activity Fund amounted to 61% of the funding 
for 2014/15 and as at the end of June 2015, 4% of the 2015/16 funding had been awarded.  
The Healthy Together grant was only for one year and by the end of March 2015, 86% had 
been awarded.  Three districts did not allocate all their funding and the remainder was 
transferred to the districts’ Active Together funds.

Scope
The objective of the audit was to review the governance, management and monitoring 
arrangements for the schemes, seeking assurance that the applications approved were in 
line with the criteria of the grant conditions, as well as complying with Accounting Instruction 
15 – “Applications for grant aid from outside organisations”.

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Limited

Key findings

At the time of the audit Accounting Instruction 15 published on Staffnet was dated 
September 2013.  It had been acknowledged by management that it needed to be updated 
before the launch of the grant schemes and consequently it was revised and formally 
approved by the Finance Officers Management Team (FOMT) in July 2014.  However, it was 
not published on Staffnet.  The Outcome Manager within Public Health who was responsible 
for overseeing the administration of the grant schemes was informed by Strategic Finance 
by email that the Accounting Instruction had been approved, but a copy of the document was 
not sent with the email.

We found that the administration of the grant schemes has not been undertaken in full 
compliance with the revised Accounting Instruction, in particular the budget holders and/or 
other GCC officers fulfilling their responsibilities especially in relation to the minimum 
financial checks that should be made.  However, the wording within the Accounting 
Instruction could lead to some ambiguity over the interpretation, as it refers to grants ‘under’ 
and ‘over’ £5,000, but not if a grant is for the exact amount of £5,000; therefore we 
recommended that the Accounting Instruction is amended.

A total of 69 Active Together grant applications were subject to a financial check, but if the 
conditions of the revised Accounting Instructions had been applied a further 18 should have 
been subject to a financial check, together with 11 Children’s Activity Fund applications.  The 
applications for Healthy Together funding were assessed by a consultant employed by the 
Council, although the criteria made reference to the need, in respect of financial checks, for 
further scrutiny by Strategic Finance if there was cause for concern.  We were advised that 
none of the applications were forwarded to Strategic Finance.

We also found that two applications each were over £5,000, where accounts had not been 
provided; these should have been approved by the relevant Director but no evidence was 
available to confirm this.  Evidence could also not be found to confirm that where the grant 
funding was for less than the total cost of the project, the balance had been raised.

Page 168



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

9

Where financial checks took place, the documentation provided varied greatly between 
applications.  Discussions have since taken place between Strategic Finance and 
Commissioning staff to define the documents that are required going forward.  

Applications that are subject to a financial check are graded as high, medium or low risk.  All 
of the high risk grants have proceeded although the rationale to proceed has not been 
documented.

The Accounting Instruction requires the budget holder to obtain evidence that the grant 
expenditure is in accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant funding.  As at the 
date of the audit, no independent validation of grant expenditure had taken place.

Staff involved in the decision-making process have not completed a Declaration of Interest 
form, in line with the Council’s Employee Code of Conduct.

Conclusion
The audit did not identify any irregularity or maladministration within the grant process and 
the sample of applications that were checked all met the grant schemes’ criteria.  The 
‘Limited’ opinion given for the control environment is due to the following:

 The revised Accounting Instruction 15 had not been published on Staffnet at the time 
of the audit, however, it has now been published; and

 Non-compliance with Accounting Instruction 15.

A number of high priority recommendations were made as a result of the audit, which should 
strengthen the governance, risk management and control environment for administering 
these and similar future grant schemes.

Management Actions

All recommendations have been accepted by management and the majority will be 
implemented by 1st April 2016; monitoring visits will be implemented once all the grant 
monies have been issued during 2017/18 and financial checks on future grant applications 
will be implemented by March 2017.

Whilst Internal Audit will include a follow up review within the 2016/2017 internal audit 
plan, it is recommended that senior management attend the next meeting of the Audit 
and Governance Committee and is requested to provide an update on the action taken 
in relation to each recommendation made.

Page 169



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

10

Service Area: Strategic Finance

Audit Activity: Capital – Virements and Delegated Powers
1

Background
The Council’s approved Capital Programme (period 2015/16 to 2017/18) is £485m. Once this 
programme was approved, Cabinet, Cabinet Members or appropriate Officers under 
delegated powers become responsible for taking in-year decisions on resources and priorities 
and can therefore approve virements between schemes providing the decision is not contrary 
to the budget. In this context, contrary to the budget, may be through:

 Initiating a new policy;

 Committing capital expenditure in the current or future years to a level above the 
approved budget levels;

 Transferring resources from revenue to capital budgets, except via a revenue 
contribution to capital outlay (RCCO); and

 Entering into a capital commitment if it involves a material change to the nature of the 
project as set out in the agreed project appraisal.

Scope
Financial Regulations and Accounting Instruction (A1) No.19 details the framework for capital 
expenditure when preparing the capital programme, monitoring of capital spend and capital 
delegated processes. This audit reviewed the level of compliance with this Instruction to 
ensure that Capital Virements have been documented, actioned correctly and approved by 
officers under delegated powers.

Risk Assurance –  Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Limited

Key findings

In February 2015, approval was given by Council to the Capital Programme set out in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy and delegated authority to the Director: Strategic Finance, 
to vary allocations between individual schemes in consultation with the Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Change.  In practice, in-year virements are approved by a 
number of officers across the Council.

Strategic Finance has endeavoured to strengthen the control framework for the management 
of the Council’s approved Capital Programme. This includes reporting significant changes to 
Cabinet as a section of the Financial Monitoring reports and a refresh of AI 19 to provide 
further guidance to officers. The vast majority of capital virements made in 2015/16 relate to 
the allocations for (1) Communities and Infrastructure and (2) Children’s and Families. In-year 
changes are approved during the respective Capital Programme / Capital Control meetings 
and are recorded in the minutes of these meetings. Copies of the minutes are held by 
Strategic Finance as a record to support the changes made. This is in accordance with AI 19. 

Page 170



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

11

In other service areas i.e. Adults / AMPS, we found that virements have been requested 
through email to Strategic Finance. However, the use of email (on its own) is not in 
accordance with the guidance published in Accounting Instruction No.19, which advises 
officers to complete and submit a Capital Virement form. 

Conclusion

The framework for the management of the capital programme continues to develop to meet 
the challenges of a changing organisation.

In April 2015, the revised guidance to officers was published in Accounting Instruction No.19 
which incorporates the requirements for the approval of virements and how these should be 
documented.  However, the use of email as a method to instruct virements has not been 
subject to challenge by Strategic Finance despite this being outside of their own published 
guidance. 

Although it has become accepted practice by Strategic Finance that various officers across 
the Council will approve capital virements, the formal authorisation from the Director: 
Strategic Finance / Service Directors has not been obtained and documented as expected 
under the Scheme of Delegation.  The absence of a formal scheme of delegation for the 
Capital budget is considered a significant governance and control weakness that needs to be 
addressed to provide clarity to officers on the limits of their delegated powers in this area.

Management Actions

Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Whilst Internal Audit will include a follow up review within the 2016/2017 internal audit 
plan, it is recommended that senior management attend the next meeting of the Audit 
and Governance Committee and is requested to provide an update on the action taken 
in relation to each recommendation made.

Page 171



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

12

Summary of Satisfactory Assurance Opinions on Control

Service Area: Children and Families Cluster
Audit Activity: Agency/In-house foster placements

Background
As at the end of November 2015 there were 542 children in care.  Children who are in care 
can be placed in In-house or external agency foster placements. The In-house foster 
placement budget for 2015/16 was £5.089m.  The budget for external agency placements 
was £7.855m.  As at October 2015, both budgets were forecast to be overspent.

Scope
The objectives of the audit were to review the effectiveness of the following systems for both 
in-house and external agency placements:

 The commissioning of foster placements to ensure that best value for money and 
‘best fit' for the children and young people is achieved; 

 Payment systems for foster placements; and

 End-date monitoring of existing foster placements to ensure that they continue to 
provide the most appropriate solution and best outcomes for the children and young 
people.

Risk Assurance –  Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings

Value for money
As at the end of Quarter 1, the average weekly cost of an In-house foster placement was 
£556 whereas the cost of an external agency placement was £833.  In-house placements are 
therefore deemed to provide better value for money and any requests for accommodation 
should be sent to the In-house Placements Finding team in the first instance.

The In-house service does not always have sufficient capacity to offer placements for 
children with complex needs and/or challenging behaviour.  These placements are typically 
made through the external agencies where the costs of the placements are considerably 
higher due to the complex needs.  This will have an impact on the average weekly cost of 
external agency placements compared to the In-house service and should be taken into 
consideration when comparing the two average weekly costs.

Commissioning - External agency placements
Commissioning Personalisation Adults and Children (CPAC) have well-defined processes for 
the commissioning of external agency placements.  

A key requirement before commissioning an external agency placement is to receive Service 
Manager agreement and then to issue an Individual Placement Agreement (IPA) to the 
provider.  

Page 172



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

13

Management has agreed to address the following issues from the sample testing that was 
undertaken:

 Ensuring that clear Service Manager agreement is always available within CPAC;

 Ensuring that any outstanding IPAs are issued;

 Monitoring the return of the IPAs once they have been sent to the providers for 
signature; and

 Ensuring that the Director of Children’s Services approval is held by CPAC prior to an 
out-of-county external agency placement being made.

Commissioning - In-house foster placements
The In-house Placements Finding team has developed a series of procedure notes that set 
out all of the processes that should be followed when placing children through the In-house 
foster service.  

The In-house Placements Finding team do not currently notify all of the foster carers when 
accommodation is required.  Consideration is being given to doing this through the secure 
GCC fostering website as it might provide solutions whereby foster carers could offer their 
services when they otherwise might not have been considered.

Issues were identified with the authorisations that are required to search for accommodation 
and it has been agreed that the fully completed forms together with the accompanying 
authorising e-mails will continue to be sent to the In-house Placements Finding team by 
CPAC.

Payment for placements made - External agency placements
CPAC Finance have a comprehensive set of procedure notes for processing the invoices that 
are received from the providers prior to them being sent to the Business Service Centre 
(BSC) for payment.

Invoice payments are treated differently depending on whether the child/young person is in a 
long-term placement at the start of a financial year or not.  Management is considering 
making the following changes:

 Setting up limit carts for all external agency placements that are made and not just for 
those that are regarded as stable for an entire financial year. This would significantly 
reduce the number of invoices that have to be sent individually for authorisation; and

 CPAC goods receipting the services for all ‘limit cart’ invoices without needing to see 
the invoices and the providers sending their invoices directly to the BSC for payment.

Payment for placements made - In-house foster placements
Testing confirmed that all the payments that had been made for the sample selected were 
correct and no issues were identified.

Page 173



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

14

Payments are made to the external agencies on a monthly basis whereas payments to the in-
house foster carers are made every two weeks.  Consideration could be given to aligning the 
payment frequency for both services (monthly) as this would offer efficiency savings for the 
Care Services Finance team in terms of processing time and have an impact on the Council’s 
cashflow.

End-date monitoring - External agency placements
End-dates are requested by CPAC if they are not automatically provided when a referral for 
accommodation is received as they have to be entered on the IPA.  CPAC now has a good 
system for end-date monitoring whereby the Placement Update spreadsheet will flag 
placement end dates that have expired and trigger communications with the social workers to 
ensure that the placements are being effectively managed.

End-date monitoring - In-house foster placements
End-dates should be recorded on the documentation that is used to request accommodation 
as well as on the child’s profile documentation.  However, the In-house Placements Finding 
team does not insist on end-dates being provided as they rely more heavily on effective 
communications between themselves, the social workers and the fostering social workers.

Conclusion
There are well-defined processes in place for the commissioning of in-house and external 
agency placements.  However, testing revealed that these processes are not always being 
applied in practice, particularly in the area of the authorisations that are required before 
placements are commissioned.

Payment processes are being complied with for both In-house and external agency 
placements in terms of how they are currently defined.  However, efficiency savings could be 
made by setting up limit carts for the payment of all external agency placements and 
requesting the providers to send their invoices directly to the BSC for payment.

End-date monitoring is dealt with differently for in-house and external agency placements and 
consideration could be given to aligning these processes to ensure that all placements are 
effectively managed and to minimise the need for emergency arrangements having to be put 
in place.

Management Actions

Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Service Area: Communities Cluster

Audit Activity: Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS) for use by the Integrated 
Transport Unit (ITU)

Background
The Council has a statutory duty to provide home to school transport for “entitled” students 
i.e. those travelling over 2 miles to their nearest school if under 8 years old or those travelling 
over 3 miles if 8 years old or over, together with a number of exceptions as defined by policy. 

Page 174



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

15

Furthermore, the 1985 Transport Act provided local authorities with the option to fund local 
bus services that are not provided on a commercial basis by transport providers and are 
deemed as “socially necessary”.

The current annual cost of Home to School Transport is £13.5m and the annual cost of 
providing socially necessary local bus services is £2.0m (including Park & Ride). Individual 
contracts are awarded by the Integrated Transport Unit (ITU).

Scope
The objectives of this audit are to provide assurance that the:

 Procurement of the DPS has been conducted in accordance with the Council’s 
Contract Standing Orders, the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and EU Legislation; 
and

 Proposals being put forward by the ITU on how the DPS will be operated are in 
accordance with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

Risk Assurance –  Substantial

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings

Unlike a traditional framework the DPS will remain open throughout its duration for the 
admission of any provider that satisfies the selection criteria. Thus a DPS provides increased 
flexibility and allows for the pool of providers to be refreshed on an ongoing basis as new 
providers come to the market.

Cabinet approval was received in October 2014 to the setting up of a DPS (duration four 
years) for use by the ITU, however the implementation was subsequently delayed pending 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 coming into force. Given the delay, a progress report 
was considered by Cabinet on 5th February 2016 where it was confirmed that the DPS could 
be concluded under the new regulations.

The contract notice for this procurement opportunity was published in OJEU on 16th January 
2016 and interested parties were requested to submit an application via Procontract to meet 
the deadline of 10.00am on 16th February 2016. Potential providers will make an application 
to join the DPS under one or more of the following categories: Specialist Transport, Transport 
Required at Short Notice, Home to School Transport and Public Transport.

The DPS became operational from 14th March 2016 through which the vast majority of the 
Council’s transport requirements will be procured. 

Conclusion

The procurement has been conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s 
Contract Standing Orders, the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and EU Legislation. 

Officers within the ITU have a good understanding of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
and fully appreciate how these will apply to the operation of the Dynamic Purchasing System. 

Page 175



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

16

Consequently, providing the proposals are subsequently carried forward into practice, the 
operation of the DPS will be compliant with the Regulations. A further audit review will be 
undertaken as part of the 2016/17 Internal Audit work-plan to confirm this is the case.   

Although it is not a requirement under a DPS to implement a standstill period (prior to 
awarding a contract) in some circumstances this can be beneficial. In particular, the 
introduction of a voluntary standstill period for contracts awarded (where value exceeds the 
EU threshold) would further protect GCC from ineffectiveness claims received and this is 
worth considering.

Service Area: Strategic Finance

Audit Activity: Bank Reconciliation

Background
The accurate and timely processing of bank reconciliations is a fundamental control process 
to ensure the integrity of the transactions in the accounting system.  The Council’s bankers 
are HSBC and there are four main bank accounts, namely:

 ‘A’ account - used for vendor payments;

 ‘C’ account - used for payroll payments;

 County Fund – mainly used for receipts; and

 A separate Pension Fund bank account – used for pensions receipts and payments.

The objective of the bank reconciliation is to ensure that all entries downloaded from the bank 
statement are matched against entries generated within SAP (GCC’s main accounting 
system).  Some items are matched automatically, e.g. presented cheques, but all other 
transactions have to be manually matched by Finance Officers in Strategic Finance.  Any 
unmatched items require investigation and resolution in order to complete the bank 
reconciliation process.

Scope
The objective of the audit was to ensure that effective systems and controls are in place for 
the reconciliation of GCC's main bank accounts and the Pension Fund bank account and 
specifically that:

 Written procedures are in place;

 Staff are properly trained with business continuity arrangements in place;

 There are sufficient segregation of duties;

 Accurate and timely reconciliations are performed and authorised; and

 Non-reconciling items are identified, explanations found and corrections made in a 
timely manner.

Page 176



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

17

Risk Assurance –  Substantial

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings

For both the GCC main bank accounts and the Pension Fund bank account, written 
procedures have been put in place and are being applied on a prompt, regular basis, to 
produce weekly reconciliations which correctly identify the reasons for the variance between 
the bank statements and the ledger balances on the accounts.  The staff are appropriately 
trained and business continuity arrangements are in place to ensure that the bank 
reconciliations will be undertaken as required.

Processes for communicating queries on non-reconciling items, and the action taken, were 
found to be operating satisfactorily with the majority of the items being cleared in a timely 
manner.  However, the ‘A’, ‘C’, County Fund and Pension Fund bank accounts all have a 
number of long outstanding unmatched items on them that relate to previous financial years, 
despite best efforts by the service areas to resolve the anomalies.  Agreement will be 
obtained from the Head of Finance and Finance Director as to the action that should be taken 
to clear the long outstanding items on the general ledger accounts in SAP.  Investigations will 
be undertaken to ensure that the issues do not recur and escalation processes will also be 
put in place to ensure that unmatched items do not remain outstanding for as long in future.

Conclusion
The bank reconciliation processes are working well but there are a number of long 
outstanding unmatched items on the SAP general ledger codes that should be cleared.

Management Actions

Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified.

Service Area: Strategic Finance

Audit Activity: Budget Monitoring 

Background
As part of the Meeting the Challenge programme a review of the finance function was 
undertaken in 2013.  One of the issues this identified was the need to review the approach to 
budget monitoring.  This included the introduction of a more user friendly monitoring system 
for Budget Holders and concentrating finance resources on the high risk budgets which could 
potentially derail the authority if not closely controlled.

Scope
The audit was to review the effectiveness of the new arrangements for the revenue budget 
monitoring processes, looking specifically at:-

 The risk assessment of budgets;

Page 177



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

18

 The monitoring of compliance;

 The role of budget holders, budget managers;

 Accountability for forecasts;

 The audit trail of budget monitoring is held in SAP BW-IP; and

 The role of finance staff including business partners. 

Risk Assurance – Satisfactory

Control Assurance – Satisfactory

Key findings
A new budget monitoring system using SAP Business Warehouse Integrated Planning (SAP 
BW-IP) went live for all budgets in July 2014, making it easier for budget holders to carry out 
their own forecasting. The introduction of the SAP BW-IP system has improved the ability of 
budget holders to manage budgets, forecast expenditure and be accountable for those 
forecasts. Finance staff are now able to concentrate predominately on high risk budgets with 
low and medium budgets managed by the budget holders. An examination of budget 
monitoring reports to Cabinet show that forecasts and outturn are accurate therefore overall 
we consider budget monitoring to be well managed. There were no high priority 
recommendations although the audit identified a number of improvement actions.  These 
included:

 Sharing the risk assessment of budgets with the budget holders;

 Strengthening accounting instructions to remind budget holders of the requirement to 
use SAP BW-IP to forecast expenditure monthly and the penalties for failing to do so;

 Reviewing the role of finance in budget monitoring again, as there are still cases 
where finance take the lead in updating spreadsheets which underpin the forecasts, 
rather than the budget holders themselves, with finance challenging their forecasts;

 Simplifying the forecasting of adult care expenditure to improve ownership of the 
forecasts by the service;

 Ensure that a high level budget monitoring report is created in respect of each 
month’s forecast regardless of whether or not there is a Cabinet meeting scheduled;

 Ensuring that a good audit trail exists between the forecasts in SAP and the high level 
monthly report; and

 Reviewing the roles of finance staff and business partners to ensure consistency and 
reviewing all budgets directly managed by finance staff to ensure that this is 
appropriate.

Management Actions
Management have responded positively to the recommendations made in respect of the 
above issues identified. Workshops to be run to review current practices where necessary.

Page 178



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

19

Service Area: Children and Families Cluster

Audit Activity: Schools

Background
The Council’s Chief Financial Officer (S151 Officer) is required to submit an annual return to 
the Department for Education confirming that there is a system of audit in place for Local 
Authority (LA) maintained schools which gives adequate assurance over their standards of 
financial management and the regularity and propriety of their spending.  Internal Audit 
provides independent assurance as to the effectiveness of these financial management 
arrangements within the schools audited.

Scope
Internal Audit’s activity within schools is prioritised based on risk and as such, 7 schools were 
visited during 2015/16, being 1 secondary school, 5 primary schools and 1 special school.  

Risk Assurance –  1 Substantial; 6 Satisfactory

Control Assurance – 4 Substantial; 3 Satisfactory

Key findings

Individual reports were issued to each school. Listed below are the common themes that 
were identified as improvement areas as well as some issues that were unique to the 
individual schools visited.  

 Governance arrangements;
 Budget and banking;
 Procurement;
 Cash income;
 Debit Card management;
 Breakfast/After School clubs financial management arrangements;
 Vehicle management;
 Staffing and Payroll; and
 Inventory/asset management.

Actions taken by Management

Schools Management responded positively to the recommendations made in relation to the 
above findings.

In addition, Internal Audit will produce a newsletter which contains a summary of common 
audit findings/themes identified as requiring improvement, which will be circulated to 
Headteachers and Governors via ‘Heads Up’, ‘What’s Up Gov’ and placed on Schoolsnet, in 
order to help improve the control environment.

Page 179



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

20

Summary of Consulting Activity and/or support where no Opinions are 
provided

Service Area: Adults Cluster

Audit Activity: ERIC data quality and invoice validation

Background
The Council has various contractual arrangements in place for the provision of care and 
support for Adults. Financial commitments are recorded within the Council’s Electronic Social 
Care Record (ERIC). It is therefore essential that services are promptly recorded within the 
system, including timely input of variations, in order to ensure that budget 
monitoring/forecasting is accurately reported and that invoices can be validated.  Where a 
discrepancy is identified, these should be promptly resolved in order for payments to be 
made in line with the respective contractual terms and conditions.

Key findings

The ongoing work that is being undertaken to understand the key drivers that are placing 
pressure upon the external care budget for Adults has highlighted to management, issues 
concerning the quality of data within ERIC.

Due to the significance of the ERIC data accuracy and invoice validation issues, the 
Operations Lead for Adult Social Care and Business Development assigned the Social Work 
Development Manager to undertake a specific project to review the associated systems and 
propose options for process change to prevent the issues recurring. 

It was agreed that Internal Audit would keep a watching brief over the project. Reasonable 
assurance can be provided that management has developed and is in the process of 
implementing systems and procedures that will tackle the ERIC data quality and invoice 
validation issues. However, please note that internal audit has not physically tested these 
procedures. 

Service Area: Children and Families Cluster

Audit Activity: Joint Working within Children’s Social Care – HR file review

Background
As part of the risk based Internal Audit planning process, the Head of Quality (Children and 
Young People) and Internal Audit agreed to identify opportunities for joint working in relation 
to children’s social care.

An opportunity for joint working was identified in relation to the quarterly HR file review 
process that is undertaken between ‘Quality’ and ‘Recruitment and Resourcing’.  The HR file 
reviews are undertaken to ensure that the recruitment checks and documentation held on file 
meet the Safer Recruitment requirements as well as GCC’s safer recruitment policy.

Page 180



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

21

Scope
Internal Audit was asked to join the HR file review that took place in June 2015 with the aim 
of providing assurance as to the robustness of the process.  A report was issued detailing 
Internal Audit’s observations from that review.

Risk Assurance –  N/A

Control Assurance – N/A

Key findings/Conclusion

The HR file review process is robust in terms of the checks that are undertaken and the 
evidence that is expected to be in place to support the requirements of Safer Recruitment.   
Suggested improvement areas were identified in relation to future file reviews, file testing 
processes, report writing/ownership of recommendations made.

Service Area: Grant Certification

Audit Activity: Troubled Families Grant (Families First)

Background
The Families First (payment-by-result) programme was introduced in a renewed drive to help 
improve the outcomes for troubled families. September 2014 saw Phase One of the roll out of 
the new, expanded Troubled Families Programme. Phase Two of the roll out, which 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) signed up to, began in January 2015 and this 
programme was then rolled out nationally in April 2015.

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has produced a Financial 
Framework for local authorities. This document makes clear that payment- by-result (PBR) is 
the subject of self-declaration, and therefore the purpose of this audit was to provide 
assurance that the Families First grant conditions and criteria had been met by the families to 
support the PBR grant claim.

Scope
To provide assurance that those families forming the PBR claims met the criteria and that 
there was sufficient evidence to support the outcomes recorded.  

Key findings

During 2015/16 two PBR claims were submitted (September 2015 and January 2016). 
Having reviewed and sample tested the two PBR claims, Internal Audit was satisfied that:

 The claims submitted were made up of successful outcomes appropriate to that 
period; and

 There were effective systems and processes for how families and their eligibility 
markers i.e. education/ crime/anti-social behaviour; progress to work; and continuous 
employment (and off out-of-work benefits) are being collated and verified. 

Page 181



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

22

Summary of Special Investigations/Counter Fraud Activities 

Current Status

The Counter Fraud Team within Internal Audit (IA) has received 14 new referrals in 2015/16 
to date, and 10 cases referred in 2014/15 continued to be investigated in 2015/16. Eight of 
these have now been completed. In addition IA continues to be involved in counter fraud 
work concerning staff travel, following-up irregularities with management as they arise. We 
have previously reported work undertaken to date within 2015/16 in this area, where 
arrangements have been made to recover in excess of £11k from employees where 
overpayments have been made, and staff have received disciplinary sanctions as a result. A 
case from 2016/17, reported below has also resulted in a member of staff resigning and the 
recovery in excess of £1,000.

Of the eight cases closed within 2015/16 relating to the previous year, we have previously 
reported on six. Of the other two closed cases one involved an adult care provider, who it 
was suspected of not providing enough staff to cover the care procured by the Council and 
other local Authorities. The care provider was put under a Performance Improvement Plan 
(PIP) and has improved to the point that the PIP has now ended and officers are now 
content with the provision of care provided. In the other case, relating to a Direct Payment 
(DP), which was not being spent in accordance with the support plan, this has now stopped 
and balances recovered. 

New referrals in 2015/16

Five of the cases received in 2015/16 have been closed, two of which have previously been 
reported. Of the other three referrals now closed one was an allegation received about 
overcharging by one of the Council’s care providers and lack of checking of the provider’s 
invoices by the Council. This was not substantiated; the Council had not been overcharged 
in respect of the individual case cited and it was established and evidenced that the invoices 
from the provider concerned are regularly checked and queries followed up. In respect of 
another case a member of staff has resigned and payment relating to over claiming of travel 
expenses of over £1,000 has been recovered. The third case involved a member of staff 
being dismissed following a disciplinary hearing. Many of the cases referred to Internal Audit 
involve intricate detail and Police referral. This invariably results in delay before the 
investigation can be classed as closed and reported to the Audit and Governance 
Committee.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

Internal Audit continues to support the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) which is a biennial data 
matching exercise administered by the Cabinet Office. The latest matches relate to data 
collected in October 2014, although an additional flexible matching report has been obtained 
relating to pensions. In addition to previously reported findings relating to 12 cases of 
overpayment of pension of £18,748 this further report has identified a further 18 cases where 
the Council was unaware that the pensioner had died and their death not reported to us. To 
date this has identified a further £6,428 of overpayment which is in the process of being 
recovered.

The next data matching exercise will be based on data submitted October 2016. 

Page 182



Appendix 1 Appendix 1

23

The Committee can also take assurance that all special investigations/counter fraud 
activities are reported to the Statutory Officers i.e. the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer 
and Director of Finance, on a monthly basis.

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



internalaudit

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit 

Committe
Comments

Authority Wide Complaints Process - Phase 2 High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 25/09/2015 Brought Forward

Authority Wide Internet Usage - Misuse High Audit in Progress Not Applicable Not Applicable Reported in annual report

Authority Wide Corporate Complaints - Ombudsman involvement Medium Audit in Progress

Strategic Finance Manual Authorisation of Creditor Payments High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 25/09/2015 Brought Forward

Strategic Finance Management of LGPS High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 25/09/2015 Included within Annual Governance Statement

Strategic Finance Budget Monitoring High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 15/04/2016 Brought Forward

Strategic Finance Bank Reconciliation High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 15/04/2016

Strategic Finance Budget Setting High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Strategic Finance Corporate Debt Policy High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Strategic Finance Debtor write-offs High Audit in Progress

Strategic Finance Capital - Virements and Delegated Powers High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 15/04/2016 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Strategic Finance Petty Cash Medium Cancelled Medium priority

Adults and Public Health Provision of Care and Support - Extra Care Housing Schemes High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 25/09/2015

Adults and Public Health External Care Recovery Plan - Deaths and Discharges High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 22/01/2016 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Active Together - Healthy Together and Childrens Activity Fund High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 15/04/2016 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Adult Social Care - Data Quality - Invoice Validation
High

Watching Brief Not Applicable Not Applicable 15/04/2016 Due to Management commissioning specific 

project

Adults and Public Health Better Care Fund High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 22/01/2016

Adults and Public Health Client Contributions Adult Social Care High Audit in Progress

Adults and Public Health Direct Payments (Adults) High Audit in Progress

Adults and Public Health Financial Assessment and Benefits Team Limited Assurance follow up High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 15/04/2016 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Support Planning - Brokerage - Consultancy
High

Cancelled Management no longer require support until 

17/18

Adults and Public Health Workforce Development of Social Workers - Limited Assurance Follow up High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Annual Care Assessment Process (re-assessment - reviews) High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Contract Management Arrangements Adults and Public Health High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Deferred Payments High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan 

Adults and Public Health Gloucestershire Care Partnership - Limited Assurance follow up High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Gloucestershire Industrial Services (GIS) Healthcare High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Adults and Public Health Client Affairs - Limited Assurance follow up High Audit in Progress

Adults and Public Health Contract Management Framework Implementation Group High Consultancy Reported in annual report

Adults and Public Health Electronic Call Monitoring - Consultancy High Consultancy Reported in annual report

Adults and Public Health Re-commissioning Brandon Trust High Consultancy Reported in annual report

Adults and Public Health Safeguarding Adults - Adult Case Review High Consultancy Reported in annual report

Adults and Public Health Adults Probity
High

Audit in Progress Not Applicable Not Applicable Internal Audit supporting transformational 

change

Adults and Public Health Adult Safeguarding - Consultancy High Consultancy Reported in annual report

Children and Families Gloucestershire Music Service High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 25/09/2015 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Children and Families Library 1 High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 26/06/2015 Brought Forward

Children and Families Library 2 High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 26/06/2015 Brought Forward

Children and Families Agency - Inhouse Foster Placements High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 15/04/2016

Children and Families Joint Working on Children's Social Care High Consultancy Not Applicable Not Applicable 15/04/2016

Children and Families Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) High Audit in Progress

Children and Families Adult Education Service High Audit in Progress

Children and Families Schools High Final Reports Issued 15/04/2016

Children and Families Contact Team High Audit in Progress

Children and Families Direct Payments (Childrens) High Audit in Progress

Children and Families Child Protection Conference Team High Audit in Progress

Children and Families Youth Offending Service Medium Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 26/06/2015 Brought Forward

Children and Families Recruitment of Social Workers within Children and Families Medium Audit in Progress

Communities and Infrastructure Parking Management Services Contract High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 26/06/2015 Brought Forward

Communities and Infrastructure Highways Local High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 25/09/2015 Brought Forward

Communities and Infrastructure Local Enterprise Partnership - Growing Places High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 25/09/2015 Brought Forward

Communities and Infrastructure Public Transport Contracts - Decision Making High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 26/06/2015 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Communities and Infrastructure Developers Contributions - Limited Assurance follow up High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 25/09/2015

Communities and Infrastructure Invoice Verification Process for Public Transport Contracts and SEN Home to 

School Transport Contracts
High

Final Report Issued Satisfactory Substantial 25/09/2015

Communities and Infrastructure Major Highways Scheme High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 25/09/2015

Communities and Infrastructure Street Lighting – LED Replacement and Term Maintenance Contract High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 25/09/2015 New Activity

Communities and Infrastructure Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) - Statement of Assurance - 

Year 2014-15
High

Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 22/01/2016

Page 1 of 2

P
age 185



internalaudit

Progress Report including Assurance Opinions

Department Activity Name Priority Activity Status Risk Opinion Control Opinion
Reported to Audit 

Committe
Comments

Communities and Infrastructure Business Continuity - Limited Assurance follow up High Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 22/01/2016

Communities and Infrastructure Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) - Governance High Deferred Carried forward to 2016/17 plan

Communities and Infrastructure Public Transport - Revenue Guarantee Contracts
High

Cancelled Priority on Public Transport Contracts Decision 

Making

Communities and Infrastructure Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) - Fleet Management High Deferred Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Communities and Infrastructure Highways and Transportation Services Contract

High

Planned Internal Audit currenly participating in project 

meetings prior to commencement of audit. In 

2016/17 plan

Communities and Infrastructure On-street Parking - Cash collected via Pay and Display Machines High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 22/01/2016

Communities and Infrastructure Risk Management of the Residual Waste New Contract High Planned

Communities and Infrastructure Integrated Transport Unit - Dynamic Purchasing System Medium Final Report Issued Substantial Satisfactory 15/04/2016

Communities and Infrastructure Coroners Service Medium Cancelled Medium priority

Communities and Infrastructure Retained Fire-fighters Fees Medium Cancelled Medium priority

Enabling and Transition Review of Statutory Compliance arrangements High Audit in Progress Brought Forward

Enabling and Transition ICT Managed Services Contract - Steria High Deferred Carried forward into 2016/17 plan

Enabling and Transition Agency Staff
High

Cancelled Audit cancelled due to the agency contract 

currently being reviewed and renewed

Enabling and Transition Overtime Payments Medium Cancelled Medium priority

ICT ICT Strategy & Business Objectives High Audit in Progress Brought Forward

ICT Fire and Rescue IT High Draft Report Issued Brought Forward

ICT Data Storage - Structures High Audit in Progress

ICT Change Management High Audit in Progress

ICT Joint working GCC & NHS - Information Governance Review High Draft Report Issued Brought Forward

ICT Cyber Security High Draft Report Issued

Internal Audit Certification Community Capacity High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Transforming Care Grant - No 31-2457 High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Capital Funding to Support Drug and Alcohol Recovery Centres High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Fire and Rescue Authorities Capital Funding Grants High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Local Transport Capital Block Funding (Integrated Transport and Highway High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Sixth Form Funding High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 25/09/2015

Internal Audit Certification Troubled Families Grant High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 15/04/2016

Internal Audit Certification Troubled Families Grant - Claim 2 High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 15/04/2016

Internal Audit Certification Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) - Cheltenham and Gloucester High Final Report Issued Not Applicable Not Applicable 22/01/2016

Superannuation Fund Pension Payments High Final Report Issued Substantial Substantial 27/06/2014 Brought Forward

Superannuation Fund LGPS New Regulations 2014 / BSC Payroll High Final Report Issued Limited Limited 22/01/2016 Follow up audit in 2016/17 plan

Exempt Limited Assurance Report
High

Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 25/09/2015 & 

22/01/2016

Brought Forward

Exempt Limited Assurance Report High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Limited 15/04/2016

Exempt Assurance Report High Final Report Issued Satisfactory Satisfactory 15/04/2016

Page 2 of 2

P
age 186



Report to Audit and Governance Committee 15th April 2016 on actions 
taken in relation to key recommendations made in the audit report 
relating to the audit of Deaths and Discharges

Lead Officer: Tina Reid Operations Lead: Adult Social Care and 
Business Development

Presenting officer (if different to above)

Summary of Audit Area 
The demand for external care services for adults within Gloucestershire over recent 
years has placed significant pressure upon the Council’s Adult Services external 
care budget. The largest pressure resides with the budget for older people and 
people with physical disabilities. This budget has been reported as an overspend for 
a number of years and continues to be under significant pressure this financial year. 
The cost of reported deaths and discharges for older people and people with 
disabilities represents on average more than 20% of the actual annual spend on 
external care.

Notifications of a service user’s death may be received into the Council through 
various pathways, such as: the Customer Services Contact Centre; the Registrars 
Service, “Tell Us Once” system; notification from a family member/representative 
into a service area and provider notification either direct to, the Commissioning 
Personalisation Adults and Children’s (CPAC) team or the Disability Commissioning 
(DC) team. 

Summary Terms of Reference of the Audit

The focus of this review was in the main limited to the systems and processes 
currently operated within the CPAC and DC teams. The objective being to review 
the effectiveness of the current systems and processes in place for the receipt of 
notification of a service user’s death or discharge from permanent care and that 
there is a sound control environment for promptly updating the Council’s Electronic 
Social Care Record (ERIC).  

Risks
 Non-compliance with the contractual terms and conditions of the contract.
 Overpayments.
 Inaccurate financial commitments/budget forecasting.
 Budget pressures.  
 Possible overpayments/under recovery of excess monies.
 Possible complaints.
 Inaccurate social care records.

Page 187

Agenda Item 10



Key Findings

Contract Management/Monitoring 
The process for monitoring contract compliance within the CPAC and DC teams needs to 
be reviewed and refreshed as appropriate giving due consideration as to whether there 
could be a greater use of ICT, alongside the Council’s and service area’s risk appetite for 
monitoring contract compliance. 

Recommendations 1 & 2

Provider Compliance
Provider compliance with the contractual terms and conditions for the notification of a 
death, discharge or other absence within the prescribed timescales is poor overall. On 
average, for the period February 2013-February 2015, approximately 84% of the 
Occupancy reports that were sent out from the CPAC team to providers was returned. 
From these, approximately 9.7% recorded deaths or departures where previously no 
notification of the change had been received.

In addition, from a sample of 35 cases selected for review, only 44% (CPAC) and 70% 
(DC) of notifications were received in line with the contractual requirements, i.e. within 
one or two working days.  

Recommendation 4

Administration – CPAC and DC teams
Procedural guidance needs to be refreshed/further developed to support the 
administrative processes within the CPAC and DC teams. The CPAC team will also need 
to ensure that the findings emanating from this review in respect of the administrative 
errors are shared with staff as appropriate and enhance the delivery of future staff 
training programmes.

Recommendations  3 & 7

Processing Notifications
From a sample of 30 death cases, it is evident that only approximately 79% of 
notifications received by the Council are being correctly entered onto the ERIC system 
(CPAC 76%, DC 82%) including closure of service and financial adjustments, where 
appropriate having been made.

There is evidence of some inaccurate data keying entries in respect of the service user’s 
date of death and service end dates (CPAC). 

In addition a copy of the notification (Schedule 4A) is not always being placed within the 
Documents section of the respective service user’s record within ERIC. (CPAC)

Page 188



Recommendation 8

Closure of Cases/Services
Cases and services are remaining open within ERIC post death of a service user, in 
particular in relation to Countywide services, as far back as 2006 however, the number of 
open cases/services significantly increase, from the period 2010/11 to date.

Recommendation 9

Budget Pressures/Cash-flow
From a review of a sample of 39 death cases, the timescale for the claw-back of overpaid 
monies for 21% of these cases (8) span between three and 21 months. 

Incorrect payments have also been made due to services not being correctly ended 
within ERIC. These in part relate to either (a) an incorrect service end date being input 
following a change in care category, in particular in respect of Funded Nursing Care 
(FNC) (CPAC) and/or b) a rate change. 

Recommendation 7

From a review of 121 cases we identified six cases (5%) that have led to overpayments 
amounting to approximately £38,375; one underpayment of £1,095; one under recovery 
of £894 and one non-recovery of unspent monies for £1,988 in respect of a direct 
payment, with regard to this latter case this, in part, was due to poor social work practice 
involving a student social worker

Recommendation 6

Whilst the focus of this review is primarily in respect of permanent care, it has also been 
identified that in respect of Direct Payments, balances held in Service User’s bank 
accounts are not always being fully recovered post death. 

For the period 2013-14 to date, following a review of service users’ direct payment 
accounts, using prime documents (financial statements) to validate the value of  unspent 
balances that should be repaid, we found that Care Services Finance had taken action to 
recover (61%) £599,306 of direct payments that have ended.

However, (39%) £258,855 is not being fully recovered as financial statements are not 
always being provided/made available by the Service User or their representative. 
Therefore the value of the debtor invoice that is being raised in these instances is only 
based upon the excess direct payment that has been paid out post notification of the 
Service User’s death within the accounting period.

Therefore, during the financial years 2013/14, 2014/15 and 2015/16 (as at the date of the 
audit) when comparing the validated balances to the ERIC figures, the amount of unspent 
monies that was/is due to be recovered is almost double or three-fold the ERIC 
calculation figure, indicating that the Council is potentially significantly under recovering 

Page 189



unspent balances held within direct payment accounts.

Recommendation 5 

Communications/Information Sharing 
Information concerning service users may be received into the Council through various 
sources/pathways. Each service area will have a finite list of business critical information 
that is key to ensuring that they can deliver an effective service; social care records are 
accurate and up-to-date; budget setting/forecasting/monitoring; payments for 
services/support is accurate, alongside the need to ensure that there are effective 
contract management and monitoring arrangements in place.

In light of the findings emanating from this review it is evident that communications 
between service areas and partner organisations could be strengthened further. One 
solution may be to co-ordinate a review of each service to identify and agree the key 
information that should be shared with other service areas 
(operational/financial/contractual), alongside the timing/frequency for doing this. This may 
be best facilitated through the Governance in Adult Processes (GAPS) group.

Recommendation 10

Conclusion

We conclude that the current pressure being placed on the External Care budget/cash-
flow, could be improved, alongside the reduction of debts incurred due to overpayments, 
if contract compliance was enhanced to promote the timeliness of the notification of 
deaths, alongside improved data accuracy and the prompt closure of services/financial 
episodes.

The governance, systems and processes need to be enhanced, these should set out the 
Council’s expectations concerning the timeliness of notification of a death and that 
balances held within direct payment accounts will be fully recovered in respect of Direct 
Payments.

The training programme and staff supervision for student social workers is reviewed and 
refreshed as appropriate; to ensure that students are able to deliver safe social work 
practice and all members of the community are treated equally.

Communications between service areas and partner organisations could be strengthened 
further, ensuring that business critical information is shared with respective service areas 
on a timely basis. 

It is paramount for management to fully consider the findings emanating from this review, 
giving due consideration to any adaptations that may be required to the Adults change 
programmes/projects. 

Page 190



Actions taken as at the end of March 16 and/or proposed.

Recommendation 1: CPAC Team-Occupancy Reports Accompanying Letter
The accompanying letter that is sent with the Occupancy report is reviewed and 
refreshed as appropriate, giving due consideration to the prescribed timescale for the 
return and the wording of the letter.

Management action taken:

An additional letter was sent to all providers reminding them of contractual requirements 
relating to this area. In addition to this the need to complete and return death notifications 
has been added as a standard question in the provider self-assessment forms. The 
occupancy report is being reviewed as, although it provides additional information the 
process is cumbersome and the information received has a built in additional delay.

Recommendation 2: CPAC Team Contract Monitoring-Occupancy Reports
The current systems and processes for monitoring contract compliance concerning the 
contractual obligations to notify the Council of an absence, return, departure, or death is 
reviewed and refreshed as appropriate; giving due consideration to the Council’s and 
Service’s risk appetite for monitoring contractual compliance.

Management action taken:

In the long term we are exploring the use of the ContrOCC provider portal as a means of 
ensuring provider compliance, through this means providers will report on occupancy, 
death and variations to packages as part of submitting invoice requests. We recognise 
that this system will not be in place before October 2016 so we are also exploring issuing 
the occupancy report via email rather than a paper copy. A reminder on the contractual 
obligation to provide death notification is included in the provider self-assessment and is 
part of any discussions during QA vistis.

Recommendation 3: Disability Commissioning team
Written guidance procedures for the processing of Notification of Absence, Permanent 
Departure, or Death forms needs to be reviewed and refreshed.

Management action taken:

The current procedure has been reviewed and now reflects the process required by the 
Brokers to ensure we maintain a complete and auditable trail of all Schedule 4a forms 
completed and that this is sent to all the relevant internal stakeholders to ensure data 
accuracy.  In addition we will discuss with CPAC how the LD Quarterly Monitoring Forms 
issued by them can be sent to Disability Commissioning to log and follow up on any 
amendments identified by the Providers.

Recommendation 4: Disability Commissioning team-Notice of provider non-
compliance-Schedule 4A  

The process for notifying providers of non-compliance with the contractual clauses 
concerning the notification of an absence, return, departure, or death needs to be 
reviewed and refreshed. Going forward, the new process should be applied consistently; 

Page 191



giving due consideration to the Council’s and Service area’s risk appetite for monitoring 
contract compliance. 

Management action taken:

The reviewed process above includes clear guidance on ensuring that there is 
consistency across all providers being notified of their contractual requirements where a 
death/discharge has been brought to our attention and no Schedule 4a has been 
received.  This is in the form of a standard e-mail which clearly states the Contract 
Clause and guidance on the process.

Recommendation 5: Management/Monitoring of Direct Payments

Management to give due consideration to the findings emanating from this review in 
respect of the current/future governance/systems and processes for the effective 
management and monitoring of direct payment accounts. 

Management action taken:

Considerable work has taken place in the review of all existing Direct payments.  We now 
have in place a Direct Payments team who set up all new direct payments.  They have 
written to all clients regarding excess funding within their Direct payment bank accounts 
and have a number of people return money that is not required.  They are reviewing all 
the cases and ensuring that the Direct payment is appropriate and being appropriately 
administered.  Further work has also taken place regarding the implementation of a 
Payment Card Scheme which would eliminate the need for Direct payment bank 
accounts and offer a higher level of control and transparency.

Recommendation 6: Social Care Workforce Development-Training/Supervision

In light of the findings concerning PRN 100146362 (ref. page 18 of the IA report) 
consideration is given as to whether changes may need to be made to the current 
training programme and staff supervision of student social workers to ensure, going 
forward, that students are able to deliver safe social work practice and all members of the 
community are treated equally.

Management action taken:

Since August 2015 the line management arrangements for social care staff have 
changed and regular supervisions are now taking place.  It has also been discussed at 
GAPS the need to have in place a competency check list for staff who use ERIC.  This is 
already in place for administration staff and the plan is to have one for social care staff 
who input data into ERIC, this ensures that staff not only understand how to input 
correctly but fully appreciate the consequences of not getting the information correct or 
timely.

Recommendation 7: Procedural Guidance FNC/CHC

Management to review/refresh the FNC/CHC process to ensure that they include, as 
appropriate, a check to determine whether there has been a notification of death prior to 
the date of the determination that may alter the service change entries. 

Page 192



Management action taken:

Four joint workshops have taken place with Health colleagues reviewing the end to end 
process of clients being recorded in health and social care systems and processes this 
follows.  Currently the FNC/CHC determinations are being undertaken by Health 
colleagues until further work takes place around the possibility of a joint commissioning 
team.  

Recommendation 8: Staff Training CPAC team

Staff are alerted to/reminded of the importance of:
 Giving consideration to death data when entering other data such as FNC/CHC 

funding to a service user’s record, to ensure that overpayments are not generated by 
entering incorrect end dates within the financial episode screens within ERIC;

 Accuracy when keying-in data to ERIC;
 Placing a copy of the Schedule 4A within the documents section of the respective 

service user’s record within ERIC.

Management action taken:

Training on ERIC for the brokerage team is now taking place within teams so we are able 
to control messages relating to the importance of date entries being correct and timely. 
We are developing process maps which will inform the practice of both existing and new 
team members.

Recommendation 9: ERIC Records/Data Quality

Management should consider what action should be taken to ensure that the records 
pertaining to “Open Cases” are promptly closed and that going forward roles and 
responsibilities, in particular, in respect of Countywide cases is clarified to ensure that 
records are promptly closed post death of a service user. 

Management action taken:

Discussed at GAPS and Administration Leads reminded to run monthly “death reports” in 
ERIC and ensure that any open care events have been closed down appropriately.

Recommendation 10: Communications/Information Sharing

Management to consider how communications between service areas/partner 
organisations could be strengthened further. 

Management action taken:

Operations Director for Adult Social Care has had conversation with Information 
Management and the Head of Registrars regarding obtaining data of death notices direct 
from the Registration services.  Please find below Sally Bye’s reasoning for why they 
cannot share this information with us.  Tell Us once is not robust because it depends on 
relatives opting in and taking action rather than opting out.

“I have personally spoken with the Head of Policy at the General Register Office 
who confirms that we are not able to share data that is captured for the purposes 
of registration unless there is a legal gateway. This is in the Births and Death 

Page 193



Registration Act (BDRA) 1953. Further, civil death registers are excluded from 
being public information under the Public Records Act (PRA) 1958. Registration 
officers collect information for the specific purpose of making death registrations 
and so can only share where there is a legal gateway.

The Registration service does Part One of TUO at every death registration. 
Sometime later, the informant then may complete Part Two either over the phone 
or on line. Part Two includes notifications to adult social care. This means that 
you should still be receiving or be able to receive the data that you need via 
TUO.” 

Page 194



Report to Audit and Governance Committee 15th April 2016 on actions 
taken in relation to key recommendations made in the audit report 
relating to the audit of Business Service Centre (BSC) - Payroll

Lead Officer: Cheryl Chambers – Head of Business Service Centre

Summary of Audit Area 

The Local Government Pension Scheme became a career average pension 
scheme from April 2014 (LGPS14 Regs.). Pensions for existing employees 
now consist of a final salary element for the pre-2014 service and a career 
average re-valued earnings (CARE) element for the post 2014 service.

Employers are required, under the Gloucestershire Pensions Administration 
Strategy, to provide Pensions Administration with an annual return by 31 May 
each year (CARE report). This is used to prepare the Annual Benefit 
Statements for all active members, which must be sent to members by 31 
August each year.

The Business Service Centre (BSC) provides payroll services for 
approximately 12,000 LGPS active members, employed by a number of 
different organisations, accounting for approximately 2/3rds of all active 
members.

In April 2015, Internal Audit (IA) was advised by the Director of Finance of an 
incident where the contributions, for a senior member of staff deducted from 
their March 2015 pay, were twice the amount that they should have been. IA 
was asked to investigate this matter, to give assurance that it had not impacted 
on other employees and that corrective action had been taken. As a result of 
this request this investigation was included within the scope of this audit.

Page 195



Summary Terms of Reference of the Audit

The objective of the audit was to assess whether the:-

 SAP (GCC’s financial/payroll system) correctly accumulates pensionable 
pay and contribution totals to account for the requirements of the LGPS14 
regulations;

 New pensionable pay wage types have been set up correctly to feed into the 
CARE accumulators but not the final salary accumulators and that these 
wage types have been used for all relevant payments;

 LGPS year-end reports (CARE reports) are created on a timely basis for 
Gloucestershire County Council and all other payrolls, facilitated by the BSC, 
who are under the Gloucestershire LGPS and that the integrity of the data 
produced has been tested for completeness and accuracy;

 To investigate why contributions were incorrectly calculated and deducted 
from salary for a senior member of staff, whether this affected any other 
employees and whether remedial action has been taken to prevent such 
errors occurring in the future; and

 To ascertain whether controls are in place to identify variances in pay and to 
establish that these are operating effectively.

Risks

 The annual CARE report may be inaccurate with either the ‘final salary’ 
and/or the CARE element of pensionable pay incorrectly calculated;

 That employee and employer pension contributions have been incorrectly 
deducted;

 That income tax may have been incorrectly deducted;
 That the annual CARE report is not provided to Pensions by either the 

internal or statutory deadline;
 That the late receipt of the annual CARE report may delay the issue of the 

Annual Benefit Statements to individuals;
 Fines may be levied by the Pensions Regulator for the late issue of the 

Annual Benefits Statement; and
 The control for checking exception and variance reports is only partially 

effective and therefore payroll errors could go undetected.  

Page 196



Key Findings

The requirements of the LGPS14 scheme

There are various key differences in the way pension is accumulated under the final 
salary scheme compared to the new career averaged scheme (e.g. non-contractual 
overtime is now included under pensionable pay). As a result the employer, through 
their payroll provider, are required to keep accumulators in the payroll system that 
calculate what the final salary on retirement would be for each employee under the 
old final salary regulations and the annual pension pot created for each employee 
under the new regulations.

Internal audit testing showed that these accumulators were incorrect for some 
employees who had received non-contractual overtime. Payroll had not realised 
that they needed to maintain an ongoing ‘final salary’ figure, which is required to 
calculate the pre-2014 element of any new pension. As a result, no testing had 
been undertaken by the BSC during the year to ensure the accuracy of this 
information, held in the accumulators.

At the year end employers are required to extract this information from the payroll 
system and send a CARE report to the Pension Administration Manager. 
Capgemini (SAP service provider) only provided the first test version of the CARE 
report in May 2015. Internal Audit (IA) used this test report to calculate the pension 
figures for a sample of employees. IA found that the test CARE report did not 
provide the correct information. During the course of the audit, findings were fed to 
the BSC, who were also carrying out their own testing, so that they could address 
the various issues. The BSC then worked with Capgemini to correct the report. The 
BSC informed IA on 3 July 2015, that the CARE report was fully tested and working 
correctly.

As a result the deadline of 31 May 2015 for provision of the year-end CARE reports, 
to Pensions Administration Manager was missed with the final reports only being 
received on 8 September 2015. Pension’s Administration had requested a 3 month 
window to enable them to upload the information to their Pensions software and 
produce the Annual Benefit statements. The delay has resulted in Annual Benefits 
statements not being dispatched until November 2015. Failure to deliver the 
statements to members by 31 August is a breach of the Pension Administrator’s 
statutory duty, which may have led to fines being levied by the Pensions Regulator. 
However, the Pension’s Administration Manager informed the Regulator of the 
delay and was awarded an extension of time, until 30th November 2015. This new 
deadline was met.

Page 197



Investigation into incorrect pension contribution deductions

A bug was introduced to the SAP payroll system, following patching. In total 24 
employees were affected, to differing degrees. In the worse case an employee’s net 
take home pay was 25% less than it was in the previous month. Although this 
member of staff queried their salary with the BSC and received a manual payment 
to correct their salary, it was not until the senior member of staff raised this with the 
BSC that it was escalated to Capgemini.

Recommendations

We made 21 recommendations of which 11 were high priority. Key recommendations 
included:-

 Ensuring SAP staff have clear guidance on how to calculate pensionable pay 
during child related leave, as this is not automatically calculated by the system;

 Ensuring that old wage types that incorrectly feed into the accumulators are 
suspended, that new wage types correctly feed into the final salary accumulator 
and that the final salary accumulator shows the final salary, as it would have been 
under the old regulations;

 Fully test the new CARE report and give assurance to external employers that the 
year- end CARE report is to the best of their knowledge correct and accurate for 
all members of the scheme. As those employers are liable for providing accurate 
information to the Pension Scheme;

 Provide future CARE reports by the deadline set by the Pension Administrator, 
either 31 May or earlier as required;

 Reconcile the contributions shown in the CARE report for each employer to the 
actual contributions paid over to the Pension scheme;

 Ensure that protocols are in place for Capgemini to alert GCC to issues, before 
we raise them. In the case of the over deduction of contributions other authorities 
had already alerted them to this problem;

 Consider patching more regularly. Patches are generally applied annually;

 Undertake a risk assessment as to the level of checking of exception and 
variance reports and incorporate the level of checking required in SLA’s with GCC 
and contracts with external employers; and

 Review the treatment of tax and NIC on purchased leave as the scheme is 
designed not to impact on individual’s pensions.

Page 198



Action taken as at the end of March 2016 and/or proposed

The work associated with this audit has been a priority for the BSC since the report was 
issued.  Good progress has been made, including:

Clear guidance has been provided on calculating pension during child related leave and 
corrections have been made where necessary.

Old wagetypes have been suspended where technically feasible and new wagetypes 
correctly feed into the final salary accumulator.  A compliance report is being run monthly 
which ensures correct wagetypes are used prior to running of payroll.

The CARE report was fully tested and reconciliations for 2015/16 are already underway 
and the BSC are confident that the report will be provided by the new deadline (1 month 
earlier than previous deadline).

The issue regarding alerting GCC of problems experienced by other authorities was with 
SAP, who as the world’s second largest supplier of software are difficult to influence.  
Capgemini are aware that any issues they find during their work with other authorities 
should be shared with GCC to ensure learning points are picked up.

The purchased leave scheme has been changed from 1st April 2016 and outstanding 
back-dated contributions corrected.

The BSC want to ensure that checking reports make effective use of staff time and are 
focussed on areas of highest risk.  The priority is to check red errors which would prevent 
payroll running and then check almost 10,000 rows of data in exception and variance 
reports.  The BSC have recently implemented a new way of working – Perform – and 
now have a more structured & robust approach to process confirmation – i.e. confirming 
that changes made have had the anticipated results and challenging how capacity is 
used and ensuring that limited resources ar4e focussed on the greatest areas of need.  
As part of this approach specific instances where errors have been found are process 
confirmed as part of the monthly payroll checking period.  The BSC will continue to focus 
on this area to make even more effective use of resources.

The only recommendation that has not been progressed relates to patching of the SAP 
system.  In line with many other authorities (and private organisations), SAP is patched 
annually and fixes are applied as required throughout the year.  The patching project 
takes 13 weeks to complete as patches are applied, tested and then moved through each 
SAP environment.  During this period there is a 6 week “freeze” during which time 
changes cannot be made to the system.  It is not feasible to patch the system more 
frequently without impacting on our ability to apply statutory fixes and customer 
commissioned improvements.

 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 15th April 2016 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit Charter 2016 - 2018

Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to present the Internal Audit Charter which 
sets out the role, responsibility, status and authority of Internal Auditing 
within Gloucestershire County Council, and to outline the scope of 
internal audit activity in line with the Account’s and Audit Regulations 
2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2013 (PSIAS). 

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee approves the Internal Audit 
Charter. 

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer; Chief Internal Auditor. Tel: 01452 328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker; Finance Director. Tel: 01452 328469
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an 
independent, objective assurance opinion to be provided to those 
charged with governance, that the key risks associated with the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives are being adequately 
controlled. 

Page 201

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


INTERNAL AUDIT 

CHARTER
2016-2018

Page 202



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

1 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Introduction

Organisations in the UK public sector have historically been governed by an array of 

differing internal audit standards.  The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), 

which took effect from the 1st April 2013, provide a consolidated approach across the whole 

of the public sector enabling continuity, sound corporate governance and transparency.

The Standards require all internal audit activities to implement and retain an ‘Internal Audit 

Charter’.  The purpose of the Charter is to formally define Internal Audit’s statutory role, 

responsibility, status and authority within Gloucestershire County Council. 

Authority

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 Local 

Government Act (Section 151) and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The latter 

requires authorities to:

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 

management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 

auditing standards or guidance.”

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)

The guidance accompanying the Regulations currently recognises the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2013, as representing “proper internal audit practices”. 

These standards define the way in which the Internal Audit Service should be established 

and undertake its functions. 

The PSIAS also requires a mandatory Code of Ethics, which promotes an ethical and 

professional culture. It does not supersede or replace internal auditor’s ‘own professional 

bodies’ code of ethics or those of employing organisations. In addition, all internal auditors 

in the public sector must have regard to the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s Seven 

Principles of Public Life. A statement of conformance with the standards is required.

Page 203



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

2 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Purpose

The County Council (management) is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

appropriate risk management processes, control systems, accounting records and 

governance arrangements.  Internal audit plays a vital role in advising the Council that 

these arrangements are in place and operating effectively. 

It is important to think of the internal auditor as the organisation’s critical friend, someone 

who can challenge current practice, champion best practice and support management in 

improvement, so that the organisation as a whole achieves its strategic outcomes, priorities 

and objectives. 

This is achieved through internal audit providing a combination of assurance and consulting 

activities. The role of internal audit is best summarised through its mandatory definition 

within the Standards, as: 

‘an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and 

improve an organisation’s operations.  It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by 

bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of 

risk management, control and governance processes’. 

Assurance

The profession of internal audit is fundamentally concerned with evaluating an 

organisation’s management of risk. The key to an organisation’s success is to manage 

those risks effectively, as stakeholders demand. 

The primary role of the internal auditor is to provide independent, objective assurance to 

Members and management that key risks are being managed effectively. To do this, the 

internal auditor will evaluate the quality of risk management processes, systems of internal 

control and corporate governance processes, across all parts of the Council, (taking into 

consideration other relevant internal and external assurance providers) and to provide an 

annual opinion on the effectiveness of these arrangements. This opinion supports the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

Page 204



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

3 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Assisting management in the improvement of internal controls

As well as providing assurance, an internal auditor’s knowledge of the management of risk 

enables them to act as a consultant and provide support for improvement in the Council's 

procedures. 

Accountability/Responsibility

The accountability for maintaining an adequate and effective system of internal audit within 

Gloucestershire County Council lies with the Finance Director, as the authority’s Chief 

Financial Officer (Section 151 Officer).

The Chief Internal Auditor is responsible for effectively managing the internal audit activity 

in accordance with the ‘Definition of Internal Auditing’, the ‘Code of Ethics’ and ‘the 

Standards’.

In addition, for the purposes of this Charter, the following definitions shall apply regarding 

responsibilities in relation to Internal Audit:

Definition Details Responsibility in relation to 
Internal Audit at GCC

The Board The governance group charged with 

providing independent assurance on 

the adequacy of the control 

environment, comprising risk 

management, control and governance.

Audit and Governance 

Committee.

Senior 

Management

Those responsible for the management 

of the Council.

Corporate Management Team

Position in the organisation

The Chief Internal Auditor reports functionally to the Board, and organisationally to the 

Finance Director (Section 151 Officer). 

Page 205



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

4 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Right of Access

The Chief Internal Auditor has the right of direct access to the Statutory Officers, i.e. Chief 

Executive, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (s151 Officer).

Where it is considered necessary for the proper discharge of the internal audit function, the 

Chief Internal Auditor has the right of direct access to elected Members of the Council and 

in particular those who serve on committees charged with governance (i.e. the Audit and 

Governance Committee).

To provide independent assurances to senior management and the board, internal audit, 

with strict accountability for confidentiality and safeguarding records and information, is 

granted full, free and unrestricted access to all personnel, documents, personal records, 

other records, assets, and premises, belonging to the County Council and/or its key delivery 

partner organisations, as considered necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In addition, internal audit has authority to obtain such information and explanations as it 

considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. 

If required, this access should not be subject to prior notice, which extends to partner 

bodies and external contractors working on behalf of the council. Internal audit’s right of 

access to third parties should be reflected in contracts and service level agreements.

All employees are requested to assist the internal audit activity in fulfilling its roles and 

responsibilities.

Page 206



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

5 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Independence and objectivity

The Internal Audit activity will remain free from interference by any element in the 

organisation in determining the scope of activity, performing work and communicating 

results. Internal auditors must:

 be sufficiently independent of the activities they audit to enable them to provide 

impartial, unbiased and effective professional judgements and advice; 

 exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, evaluating and 

communicating information about the activity or process being examined; and

 make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be duly 

influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgements and opinions.

To achieve the degree of independence and objectivity necessary to effectively discharge 

its responsibilities, effective arrangements are in place within Gloucestershire County 

Council, to ensure the internal audit activity:

 operates in a framework that allows unrestricted access to ‘Senior Management’ and 

‘the Board’;

 reports functionally to ‘the Board’;

 reports in their own name;

 rotates responsibilities for audit assignments within the internal audit team;

 freedom to determine its priorities;

 completes individual annual declarations confirming compliance with rules on ethics, 

independence, objectivity, conflicts of interest, the Bribery Act 2010 and acceptance 

of inducements; and

 ensures the planning process recognise and address potential conflicts of interest 

through internal audit staff not undertaking an audit for at least two years in an area 

where they have had previous operational roles and/or undertaken consulting 

activity;

 ensures independence and objectivity where executive or operational responsibilities 

lie with the Chief Internal Auditor i.e. In addition to managing the internal audit 

function, The Chief Internal Auditor is also responsible for managing Risk 

Management and Insurance Services (RMIS). 

Page 207



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

6 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

However, any audit activity undertaken within RMIS is managed by a Principal 

Auditor (specifically nominated as the activity manager), with no undue influence 

from the Chief Internal Auditor, and overseen by the Head of Financial Management. 

Apart from RMIS, the internal audit service does not have any executive 

responsibilities and is independent of all audited activities.

The Chief Internal Auditor will confirm to the board at least annually that the internal audit 

activity is organisationally independent.

If there has been any real or apparent impairment of independence or objectivity, the details 

of the impairment will be disclosed to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’.  The nature of 

the disclosure will depend upon the impairment.

To ensure the independence of the Chief Internal Auditor is safeguarded and that 

remuneration and performance assessment are not inappropriately influenced by those 

subject to audit, the Finance Director will contribute to the performance appraisal of the 

Chief Internal Auditor. 

Internal audit resources

The Chief Internal Auditor will be professionally qualified (CMIIA, CCAB or equivalent) and 

have wide ranging internal audit, risk management and management experience.

The Finance Director will provide the Chief Internal Auditor with the resources necessary to 

fulfil the County Council’s requirements and to meet statutory obligations. The internal audit 

budget is reported to Cabinet and Full Council for approval annually as part of the overall 

Council budget.

The Chief Internal Auditor will ensure that the internal audit service has access to an 

appropriate range of knowledge, skills, personal attributes, qualifications, experience and 

competencies required to perform and deliver its responsibilities. In addition to in-house 

internal audit resource, the Chief Internal Auditor may engage the use of external resources 

where it is considered appropriate, including the use of specialist providers e.g. IT internal 

audit provision and counter fraud specialists.

Page 208



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

7 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

The plan will be kept under review to ensure it remains responsive to the changing priorities 

and risks of the County Council. 

Significant matters that jeopardise the delivery of the plan or require changes to the plan will 

be identified, addressed and reported to ‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’. 

‘Senior Management’ and ‘the Board’ will be advised where, for whatever reason, internal 

audit is unable to provide assurance on any significant risks within the annual internal audit 

plan, due to limitations on resources.

If ‘Senior Management’, ‘the Board’ or the Chief Internal Auditor, consider that the scope or 

coverage of internal audit is limited in any way, or the ability of internal audit to deliver a 

service consistent with the Standards is prejudiced, they will advise the Finance Director 

accordingly.

Proficiency and Due Professional Care

Internal auditors will perform work in accordance with the PSIAS and with due professional 

care, competence and diligence. Internal auditors cannot be expected to identify every risk, 

control weakness or irregularity but their work should be designed to enable them to provide 

reasonable assurance that the key risks (including the consideration of fraud and 

information technology risks) within the scope of their review, are being effectively 

controlled / managed, taking into consideration the relative complexity, materiality or 

significance of matters to which assurance procedures are applied. Auditors will take into 

consideration the cost of assurance, in relation to the potential benefits and risk exposure.

Internal Auditors will be required to undertake a programme of Continuing Professional 

Development in order to develop and maintain their professional and behavioural skills, 

competencies and knowledge. 

Relationship with External Audit/Other Relevant Assurance 
Providers/Regulatory Bodies

Internal Audit will liaise, share information and co-ordinate its activities with internal and 

external providers of assurance to ensure there is adequate coverage and minimise 

duplication of effort. Where other external and internal assurance providers have 

undertaken assurance work, Internal Audit will seek to rely on the work of these other 

providers, if deemed relevant. 

Page 209



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

8 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Scope of Internal Audit Activities

Assurance
The service is responsible for providing assurance across the Council’s entire ‘control 

environment’, comprising risk management, control and governance. This means that the 

scope includes all of the Council’s operations, resources, services and responsibilities to 

enable the Chief Internal Auditor to provide an annual opinion. However, in addition to the 

core assurance activity, Internal Audit also provides the following services:

Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. Internal Audit 

procedures alone, even when performed with due professional care, cannot guarantee that 

fraud and corruption will be detected. However, whilst Internal Audit does not have 

responsibility for the detection or prevention of fraud and corruption, Internal Audit fully 

considers the risk of fraud and corruption when undertaking its activities.

Investigations into potential financial irregularities are undertaken by Internal Audit, whether 

reported directly to the Chief Internal Auditor, or referred by the Monitoring Officer, as 

required under the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Strategy and 

Whistleblowing Policy. The scope and approach taken to the investigation is dependent 

upon the nature of the allegations, which may also require referral to the police or other 

enforcement agencies. 

In certain circumstances, Internal Audit may delegate the investigation of specific 

allegations to the service itself following an assessment of risk and financial impact.

On completion, findings are reported to an appropriate level of management, who will then 

be responsible for determining action to be taken.

Internal Audit also facilitates the County Council’s participation in the National Fraud 

Initiative (NFI) in which data from the Council’s main systems are matched with data 

supplied from other Local Authorities and external agencies to detect potential fraudulent 

activity.

Page 210



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

9 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Consultancy
The service also undertakes consultancy work designed to improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance processes at the request of the Council, subject to 

there being no material impact on the core assurance activity and the availability of skills 

and resources.

Due to Internal Audit’s knowledge of the Council’s systems and processes Internal Audit is 

well placed to provide risk and control advice and support to managers on potential 

implications of changes to policy, process and/or systems. The provision of such advice 

does not prejudice Internal Audit’s right to evaluate the established systems and controls at 

a later date.

In order to help services to develop a greater understanding of audit activity and have a 

point of contact in relation to any support they may need, Internal Audit has put in place a 

set of service liaison arrangements that provides a specific named contact for each service 

and regular liaison meetings. The arrangements also enable Internal Audit to keep in touch 

with key changes and developments within services that may impact on its work. 

Other Activity
The Chief Internal Auditor, may, at the request of ‘the Board’ or ‘Senior Management’, carry 

out investigations into issues where the Council’s strategic, operational and/or financial 

interests are at stake.

The Chief Internal Auditor shall seek approval from the Board for any significant additional 

consultancy services/other activity not already included in the Annual Internal Audit Plan, 

prior to accepting the engagement, if this materially affects the core assurance activity.

Internal Audit Planning

The Chief Internal Auditor will produce an Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plan to 

determine the priorities of the internal audit activity. 

Page 211



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

10 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

These plans are developed in consultation with senior managers across the Council with 

the proposed activity taking account of the Council’s priorities, objectives, risk management 

framework, including risk appetite levels set by management and internal audits own 

judgement of risks. 

To ensure internal audit resources continue to be focussed accordingly, particularly during 

periods of radical change, it is essential that Internal Audit understand the Council’s’ needs, 

which means building relationships with key stakeholders, which includes the Audit and 

Governance Committee, in order to gain crucial insight and ongoing ‘intelligence’ into the 

strategic and operational change agendas within Council. 

This insight is not only at the initial development stages of the plan but dialogue continues 

throughout the financial year(s) which increases the ability for the internal audit service to 

adapt more closely to meet the assurance needs of the Council. The plan is therefore 

dynamic and flexible to meet these needs. 

‘Senior Management’ will be consulted on the Annual Risk Based Internal Audit Plans, 

which will detail the Internal Audit activities and submitted to ‘the Board’, for approval. The 

Chief Internal Auditor will be responsible for delivery of the plan. 

Reporting

Reporting to Management

A written report will be prepared and issued by the Chief Internal Auditor or designee 

following the conclusion of each Internal Audit activity and will be distributed as appropriate. 

The Internal Audit report will include management’s response, corrective action taken, or to 

be taken and target dates in regard to specific findings and recommendations. Internal Audit 

will follow up all high priority recommendations made.

Page 212



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

11 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

Reporting to ‘the Board’ and ‘Senior Management’

The Board (at Gloucestershire County Council the Audit and Governance Committee)

The Chief Internal Auditor shall deliver an annual internal audit opinion and report (and 

quarterly progress reports on Internal Audit activity) to ‘the Board’ that helps to inform the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

The annual internal audit report and opinion will conclude on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the organisations framework of governance, risk management and control. 

The annual report will include, as a minimum:

 The opinion;

 A summary of the work that supports the opinion;

 A statement of conformance with the PSIAS; and

 The results of the quality assurance and improvement programme.

Organisational independence is effectively achieved when the Chief Internal Auditor reports 

functionally to the Board. Such reporting will include:

 approving the internal audit charter;

 approving the annual risk based internal audit plan;

 receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the internal audit 

activity’s performance relative to its plan and other matters, including the annual 

report and opinion;

 receiving and considering major Internal Audit findings and recommendations;

 monitoring management’s response to Internal Audit findings and the implementation 

of the recommendations;

 making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal Auditor to 

determine whether there are inappropriate scope and resource limitations;

 agreeing the scope and form of the external assessment as part of the quality 

assurance and improvement plan;

 receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the quality assurance 

and improvement programme, including areas of non-conformance with professional 

standards; and

Page 213



Internal Audit Charter – Gloucestershire County Council

12 Internal Audit Charter
Internal Audit 01452 328885 | February 2016 

 approving significant consulting services not already included in the audit plan, prior 

to acceptance of the engagement, if this materially impacts on core assurance 

activity.

Senior Management 

As those responsible for the management of the Council it is imperative that the Corporate 

Management Team is engaged in:

 reviewing and being consulted on the internal audit charter;

 reviewing and being consulted on the risk based internal audit plan;

 receiving communications from the Chief Internal Auditor on the internal audit 

activity’s performance relative to its plan and other matters;

 making appropriate enquiries of management and the Chief Internal Auditor to 

determine whether there are inappropriate scope and resource limitations; and

 receiving the results of internal and external assessments of the quality assurance 

and improvement programme, including areas of non-conformance.

Within Gloucestershire County Council, the Finance Director and the Chief Internal Auditor 

ensure that all of the above are brought to the attention of the Corporate Management 

Team.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP)

The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit function is subject to a quality assurance and 
improvement programme that must include both internal and external assessments. The 
Chief Internal Auditor has developed and implemented a QAIP that covers all aspects of the 
internal audit activity which enables conformance with all aspects of the PSIAS to be 
evaluated. 

In addition, the Chief Internal Auditor will communicate to the Senior Management and the 
Board on the internal audit activity’s QAIP, including results of annual internal assessments 
and external assessments conducted at least every five years. The external assessment 
will be undertaken by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside 
the Council. Progress against any improvement plans agreed following external 
assessment, will be reported in the Internal Audit Annual Report. The Chief Internal Auditor 
will discuss options for the assessment jointly with the Finance Director and the ‘Board’. 

Page 214



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 15th April 2016 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Internal Audit Code of Ethics 2016 - 2018

Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to present the Internal Audit Code of 
Ethics which is a statement of principles and expectations governing 
the behaviour of individuals in the conduct of internal auditing as 
mandated by the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 2013

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Committee approves the Internal Audit 
Code of Ethics

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer; Chief Internal Auditor. Tel: 01452 328883
Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Jo Walker; Finance Director. Tel: 01452 328469
joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Key Risks Failure to deliver an effective Internal Audit Service will prevent an 
independent, objective assurance opinion to be provided to those 
charged with governance, that the key risks associated with the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives are being adequately 
controlled. 

Page 215

Agenda Item 12

mailto:Theresa.Mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:joanna.walker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


INTERNAL AUDIT 
CODE OF ETHICS

2016-2018

Page 216



Internal Audit Code of Ethics

1 Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Internal Audit 01452 328885- February 2016 

Code of Ethics

The Code of Ethics is a statement of principles and expectations governing the behaviour of 

individuals and organisations in the conduct of internal auditing as mandated by the Public 

Sector Internal Auditing Standards 2013. The purpose of the Code is to promote an ethical 

culture in the profession of internal auditing and applies to both individuals and entities that 

provide internal auditing services. It does not supersede or replace internal auditors’ own 

professional bodies’ codes of ethics, or those of employing organisations.  

The Code provides principles and rules of conduct under four headings, as summarised below.

Rule Principle

Integrity The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus provides the 

basis for reliance on their judgement.

Objectivity Internal auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in 

gathering, evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or 

process being examined. Internal auditors make a balanced assessment of 

all the relevant circumstances and are not unduly influenced by their own 

interests or by others in forming judgements.

Confidentiality Internal auditors respect the value and ownership of information they 

receive and do not disclose information without appropriate authority unless 

there is a legal or professional obligation to do so.

Competency Internal auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the 

performance of internal auditing services.

Page 217



Internal Audit Code of Ethics

2 Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Internal Audit 01452 328885- February 2016 

1. Integrity Principle
The integrity of internal auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis for reliance 

on their judgement.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

 Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence, and responsibility.

 Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the profession.

 Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are 

discreditable to the profession of internal auditing or to the organisation.

 Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the organisation.

2. Objectivity Principle
Internal auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 

evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or process being examined. 

Internal auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and are 

not unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgements.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

 Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be presumed to 

impair their unbiased assessment.  This participation includes those activities or 

relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the organisation.

 Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their 

professional judgement.

 Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort the 

reporting of activities under review.

Page 218



Internal Audit Code of Ethics

3 Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Internal Audit 01452 328885- February 2016 

3. Confidentiality Principle
Internal auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive and do not 

disclose information without appropriate authority unless there is a legal or professional 

obligation to do so.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course of 

their duties.

 Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be 

contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 

organisation.

4. Competency Principle
Internal auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the performance of 

internal auditing services.

Rules of Conduct

Internal Auditors:

 Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary knowledge, 

skills, and experience.

 Shall perform internal audit services in accordance with the International Standards 

for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

 Shall continually improve their proficiency and the effectiveness and quality of their 

services.

Page 219



Internal Audit Code of Ethics

4 Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Internal Audit 01452 328885- February 2016 

The Standards of Public Life

In addition, Gloucester City Council’s Internal Auditors also have regard to the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life’s Seven Principles of Public Life. The principles of public life apply to 

anyone who works as a public office-holder.  This includes all those who are elected or 

appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to work in the civil 

service, local government, the police, courts and probation services, and in the health, 

education, social and care services.  All public office-holders are both servants of the public 

and stewards of public resources.  The principles also have application to all those in other 

sectors delivering public services.

Further details can be found here.

The Seven Principles of Public Life

Selflessness
Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of the public interest. They should 

not do so in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or 

their friends.

Integrity
Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to 

outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the performance of their 

official duties.

Objectivity
In carrying out public business, including making public appointments, awarding contracts, or 

recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make 

choices on merit.

Page 220

http://www.public-standards.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/01/Standards_Matter.pdf


Internal Audit Code of Ethics

5 Internal Audit Code of Ethics
Internal Audit 01452 328885- February 2016 

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public and must 

submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that 

they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the 

wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty
Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public 

duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public 

interest.

Leadership

Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and 

example. 

Page 221



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 223

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 225



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Jan 16

	4 Grant Thornton Audit Plan for GCC & Pension Fund
	Audit Plan GCC201516final

	5 Grant Thornton Annual Progress Report
	6 Grant Thornton Auditing Standards
	7 Freedom of Information Annual Report
	8 Internal Audit Plan 2016/17
	9 Internal Audit Activity Progress Report 2015/16
	Copy of Spreadsheet v2.0

	10 Reports from Internal Audit on Limited Assurance Reports
	Limited Assurance Report LGPS14 update for April AGC

	11 Internal Audit Charter 2016- 18
	12 Internal Audit Code of Ethics 2016 - 18
	14 Exempt Internal Audit Limited Assurance Reports
	Remote- Mobile working EXEMPT


